AD-A094 297 UNCLASSIFIED	GENER HIGH JAN 7 R78AE	RAL ELE VELOCI 19 N B 16628	CTRIC C TY JET AUMGARD	O CINC Noise S T, J F	SOURCE BRAUSC	OH AIR LOCATIO H, W S FAA-R	CRAFT E N AND F CLAPPER D-76-79	F/6 20/1 K 5ETC(U) 34 NL					
ог Э 4094297	1 5 3	c							1				
								Ľ					
	નંડ			ė	5						·		
++											•		
, ,					100.0								
A													



and the second second

R78AEG628

HIGH VELOCITY JET NOISE SOURCE LOCATION AND REDUCTION

TASK 5 - INVESTIGATION OF "IN-FLIGHT" AEROACOUSTIC EFFECTS ON SUPPRESSED EXHAUSTS

TECHNICAL CONTRIBUTORS:

N. Baumgardt	R. Mani	P. Vogt
J.F. Brausch	E.J. Stringas	R. Whittaker

W.S. Clapper

GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY AIRCRAFT ENGINE GROUP CINCINNATI, OHIO 45215



JANUARY 1979

FINAL REPORT

Document is available to the U.S. public through the National Technical Information Service, Springfield, Virginia 22161.

Prepared for

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION Systems Research & Development Service Washington, D.C. 20590

NOTICE

The contents of this report reflect the views of the General Electric Company which is responsible for the facts and the accuracy of the data presented herein. The contents do not necessarily reflect the official views or policy of the Department of Transportation. This report does not constitute a standard, specification or regulation.

1.	Report No. FAA-RD-76-79, V	2. Government Acces	sion No.	3. Recipient's Catalog	g No.
4.	Title and Subtitle			5. Report Date	
1	High Velocity Jet Noise Source I	ocation and Redu	iction	January 1979	
	Task 5 - Investigation of "In-Fl on Suppressed Exhausts	light" Aero-Acous	tic Effects	6. Performing Organi	zation Code
7.	Author(s)			8. Performing Organiz	ration Report No.
	E.J. Stringas (Technical Project	: Manager)	or), et al.	R78AEG628	
9.	Performing Organization Name and Address			10, Work Unit No.	
I.	General Electric Company	Logy Programs Der	artment	11 Contract or Grant	No
	Auvanced Engineering and recimon	logy flograms ber	artment		140,
	Cincinnati, Ohio 45215			DOT-0S-30034	
Į.	cincinaci, onto 40210		Ţ	13. Type of Report a	nd Period Covered
12.	Sponsoring Agency Name and Address			Task 5 Final Dec. 1976 - J	Report July 1978
	U.S. Department of Transportation	711	F	14 Conversion Arrest	· Code
1	Systems Research and Development	t Services		14. apomoring Agency	
	Washington, D.C. 20590			ARD-550	
15.	Supplementary Notes This report is	in partial fulfi	llment of the subject	t program. Rela	ated documents
1	to be issued in the course of the	ne program includ	le final reports of t	he following tas	sks: Task 1 -
ł	Activation of Facilities and Val	lidation of Source	e Location Technique	es; Task 2 - Theo	oretical Devel-
	opments and Basic Experiments; 1	Task 3 - Experime	ental Investigation of	of Suppression Pr	inciples;
Ł	Task 4 - Development/Evaluation	of Techniques for	or Inflight Investiga	ition; Task 6 - N	Noise Abatement
	Nozzle Design Guide. FAA Progra	am Monitor R.S.	Luckerman.		
16	. Abstract The flight noise characteristic:	s in terms of pea	uk noise, directivity	and spectra wer	e
ł	projected for five suppressor no	ozzle designs. S	Static and flight sup	pression levels	are
	established using conical nozzle	e data as a refei	ence. The noise cha	racteristics wer	e
	determined by testing each nozzl	le design in the	anechoic free jet fa	cility and then	apply-
ļ	described and a computer program	for dynamic effe	ons is presented.	tion process is	
Í		.1	•		6
l	Each of the five suppressor noza	les was selected	by balancing suppre	ssion level, per	rormance
1	An accessment is made on how the	se suppressore	es and periormance e	stimates are pre	rades
	for typical variable cycle engin	ne (VCE) operatir	ig conditions.	us periormanee e	.18005
1	Suppressors are found to have mi	inimal peak noise	suppression loss in	flight at high	
	velocities. As mass average vel	locity decreases.	the flight peak noi	se suppression 1	evels
l	are less than those measured sta	tically from 0 t	o 5 PNdB. In all ca	ses, the suppress	ors
1	were quieter than the conical no	ozzle in flight.	In the forward quad	lrant, multieleme	ent
1	suppressors are effective in rec	lucing shock nois	e; also, the forward	quadrant noise f	for a
Į	suppressor is not amplified to t	the same degree a	is a conical nozzle.	Overall, suppre	ssion
	characteristics measured statica	ally are differen	it than in-flight and	l are function of	the
	specific suppressor design.				
1					
<u> </u>				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	`
17.	key words (Suggested by Author(s))		18. Distribution Statement		· •.
l			Document to and	1	
l			through the Mark	apie to the U.S	S. public
1			Service. Soring	iald. Vivototo /	Information
			,	-ore, ALRINT X	
19.	Security Classif. (of this report)	20. Security Classif. (of this page)	21. No. of Pages	22, Price*
L	UNCLASSIFIED	UNCLASSI	IED	174	1
L				L	L

* For sale by the National Technical Information Service, Springfield, Virginia 22151

NASA-C-168 (Rev. 6-71)

te Metric Messures 6	ighy by To Find Symbol 25 2000 Symbol Whon Yeu Know Meltiply by To Find Symbol			t and the matter of the state o	continuences on 2 more a motors 1.1 yands yd	3 medias no 🗾 tun kilometors 0.6 miles ni	6 kilometes kn and 2 2 2 2			s source continenters and a control of a source continenters 0.16 source inches inc 3 control of a continenters 0.16 sources inches		B square maters m ² array of the square anterest maters in the maters of the square maters maters are and the maters of the square maters are a square maters and the square maters are a square maters and the square maters are a square maters and the square maters are a square maters a	5 square kilometers km²	A hetares ba	aintri MASS (weight)		grams g 0 grams 0.035 winces 02	45 kilograms kg i i i kilograms 2.2 poundes 10				milititers mi milititers 0.03 flaid ounces fl or	milifilitors ml e l litors 2.1 pints pt	milliliters mi come 📑 🧮 📔 litors 1.06 quarts qt		event interes i enternante de la contranteres 3.3 cuale rende era 1.3 cuale rende era 2.5 cuale erantes e		03 cubic meters m ³	76 cubic metors m ³ 7 5 IEMPERATURE (exact)	E (exact) 6 (ben Fahrenheit *	ther Colsius °c	cting temperature	
tric Measures	To Find		1		contimeters	meters	kilometers		1	square centimeters	Square melers	square meters	square kilometers	hectares		1	grams	k i logrants	lonnes		1	milliliters	millilitors	millifiters	liters	itere	liters	cubic meters	cubic meters	0	Celsius	temperature	
e Conversions to Ne	r Multiply by	LENGTH		3 61	8	0.9	1.6	ARFA	2112	6.6 6.5	60.0	ts 0.6	11 2.6 1	0.4	MASS (meinhe)	Infrant open	28	0.45	0.9	VOLUME		un	s 15	š 30	0.24	96.0	3.8	0.03	0.76	TEMPERATURE (exa	5/9 (atter	re subtracting	32)
Apreximat	When Yee Kaer			inches	j	yands	miles			toutere incl	square feet	uek ejenbs	square mil.	RCTOR			Ounces	spund	short tons (2000 It			tespoons	tablespoon	fluid ounce	cups	OWARS	gallons	cubic feet	cubic yard	- I	Fahrenheit	1emperat.	

METRIC CONVERSION FACTORS

-

ii

PREFACE

This report describes the work performed under Task 5 of the DOT/FAA High Velocity Jet Noise Source Location and Reduction Program (Contract DOT-OS-30034). The objectives of the contract were:

- Investigation of the aerodynamic and acoustic mechanisms of various jet noise suppressors, including scaling effects.
- Analytical and experimental studies of the acoustic source distribution in such suppressors, including identification of source location, nature and strength, and noise reduction potential.
- Investigation of in-flight effects on the aerodynamic and acoustic performance of these suppressors.

The results of these investigations have led to the preparation of a design guide report predicting the overall characteristics of suppressor concepts from models to full-scale static, to in-flight conditions, as well as a quantitative and qualitative prediction of the phenomena involved.

The work effort in this program was organized under the following major tasks, each of which is reported in a separate Final Report:

- Task 1 -- Activation of Facilities and Validation of Source Location Techniques
- Task 2 -- Theoretical Developments and Basic Experiments
- Task 3 -- Experimental Investigation of Suppression Principles
- Task 4 -- Development and Evaluation of Techniques for "In-flight" Investigation
- Task 5 -- Investigation of "In-flight" Aeroacoustic Effects on Suppressed Exhausts
- Task 6 -- Preparation of Noise Abatement Nozzle Design Guide Report

Task 1 was an investigative and survey effort designed to identify acoustic facilities and test methods best suited to jet noise studies. Task 2 was a theoretical effort complemented by theory verification experiments which extended across the entire contract period of performance. Task 3 represented a substantial contract effort to gather various test data on a wide range of High Velocity Jet Nozzle suppressors. These data, intended to help identify several "optimum" nozzles for "in-flight" testing under Task 5, provide an extensive high quality data bank useful to preparation of the Task 6 design guide, as well as to future studies. Task 4 was similar to Task 1, except that it dealt with the specific test facility requirements, measurement techniques and analytical methods necessary to evaluate the "in-flight" noise characteristics of simple and complex suppressor nozzles. This effort provided the capability to conduct the "flight" effects test program Task 5, which is the subject of the present report (FAA-RD-76-79,V).

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section		Page
1.0	SUMMARY	1
2.0	INTRODUCTION	3
3.0	DESCRIPTION AND VALIDATION OF THE ANECHOIC FREE JET FACILITY	4
	3.1 Description of Facility	4
	3.2 Acoustic Validation Tests	6
	3.3 Aerodynamic Checkout Tests	13
4.0	MODEL SELECTION AND DESCRIPTION	27
5.0	DEFINITION OF TEST MATRICES	37
6.0	DATA ACQUISITION AND DATA REDUCTION PROCEDURES	38
7.0	ANALYSIS OF STATIC AND SIMULATED FLIGHT DATA	41
	7.1 Reference Nozzle Data and Acoustic Data Normalization	41
	7.2 Evaluation of Static Data	42
	7.2.1 Peak Noise Trends 7.2.2 PNL and OASPL Directivity Trends 7.2.3 Spectra Trends	45 54 60
	7.3 Generalized Description of the Transformation Procedure	73
	7.4 Evaluation of Flight Noise Characteristics	81
	7.4.1 Peak Noise Trends 7.4.2 Suppressor Flight Directivity and Spectra	81 90
8.0	IMPLICATIONS OF AERODYNAMIC PERFORMANCE, WEIGHT AND SUPPRESSION	108
	8.1 Aerodynamic Performance Characteristics	108
	8.2 Impact of Mechanical Suppressors on Engine Weight	118
	8.3 Performance Versus Suppression Trades and Scaling Implications	118
9.0	CONCLUSIONS	125

v

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Concluded)

1

riverentp.

Section	Page
APPENDIX A - Summary of Thermodynamic and Acoustic Data	127
APPENDIX B - The Flight Transformation Program	144
Description of FLTRANS Input	145
GLOSSARY OF TERMS	171
LIST OF SYMBOLS	176
REFERENCES	178

LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS

1

Figure		Page
3-1.	General Electric Anechoic Free Jet/Jet Noise Facility Schematic.	5
3-2.	Free Jet Arrangement in Anechoic Facility.	7
3-3.	Inverse Square Law Test at 90° with Tertiary and Coannular Nozzle Hardware (Bass, Bauer and Evans Atmospheric Cor- rection Included), Lossless for 160 Hz < f < 630 Hz, Used Speaker for 1000 Hz < f < 80 kHz, Used Air Ball.	8
3-4.	Standard Deviation of Inverse Square Law Tests with Tertiary and Coannular Nozzle Hardware.	9
3-5.	Comparison of Coannular-Coplanar Nozzle Spectra with Tertiary (Background) Spectra 40-ft Arc Data, θ_{I} = 50°.	10
3-6.	Comparison of Coannular-Coplanar Nozzle Spectra with Tertiary (Background) Spectra 40-ft Arc Data, $\theta_{I} = 90^{\circ}$.	11
3-7.	Comparison of Coannular-Coplanar Nozzle Spectra with Tertiary (Background) Spectra 40-ft Arc Data, θ_{I} = 150°.	12
3-8.	Schematic of Free Jet Test Arrangement.	14
3-9.	Radial Variation of Mean Velocity (Laser Velocimeter Data).	15
3-10.	Axial Variation of Mean Velocity (Laser Velocimeter Data).	16
3-11.	Axial Variation of Free Jet Mean Velocity HW/LV Data.	18
3-12.	Reduction in Tertiary Mean Velocity Due to Increase in Tertiary Areas.	19
3-13.	Radial Variation of Axial Turbulence (Laser Velocimeter Data).	20
3-14.	Axial Variation of Axial Turbulence (Laser Velocimeter Data).	22
3-15.	Azimuthal Variation of Mean Velocity at M _T = 0.3 (Laser Velocimeter/Hot Wire Data).	23
3-16.	Azimuthal Variation of Turbulence Intensity at $M_T = 0.3$ (Laser Velocimeter/Hot Wire Data).	24

Figure		Page
3-17.	Study of Plume Spreading (Hot Wire Data).	25
4-1.	32-Chute, AR = 2.1, $R_r = 0.62$ Turbojet Suppressor.	28
4-2.	40-Shallow-Chute, AR = 1.75, R_r^o = 0.717 Duct Suppressor, A /A = 1.92, R_r^i = 0.779 Core Plug, In-Line.	29
4-3.	36-Convergent-Divergent Chutes, AR = 2.0, $R_r^0 = 0.716$ Duct Suppressor, $A_0/A_1 = 3.62$, $R_r^i = 0.889$ Core Plug, In-Line.	30
4-4.	36-C-D Chute Duct Suppressor with Acoustically Treated Secondary Ejector.	31
4-5.	54-Element Coplanar Mixer.	32
4-6.	Coannular Coplanar, $A_0/A_1 = 2.0$.	33
6-1.	Acoustic Data Acquisition and Reduction Flow Chart.	39
7-1.	Conical Nozzle Static and Flight Peak PNL Noise Characteristics.	43
7-2.	AR = 2.0 Coplanar-Coannular Nozzle Peak PNL Noise Characteristics.	44
7-3.	32-Chute Static Peak Noise Characteristics.	46
7-4.	AR = 1.75 40-Shallow-Chute Peak Noise Characteristics.	47
7-5.	Impact of Cycle Variation on the 40-Shallow-Chute Noise Characteristics.	48
7-6.	AR = 2.0 36 C-D Chute Nozzle Peak Noise Characteristics.	49
7-7.	36 C-D Chute with Treated Ejector Peak Noise Characteristics.	50
7-8.	54-Element Coplanar Mixer Peak Noise Characteristics.	51
7-9.	Comparison of Peak Mean Velocity Decay Characteristics.	53
7-10.	54-Element Coplanar Mixer Cycle Excursion.	55
7-11.	Summary of Static Peak Noise Suppression Characteristics.	56

Figure		Page
7-12.	32-Chute and 40-Shallow-Chute Nozzle 90° OASPL and PNL Levels.	57
7-13.	36-Chute and 36-Chute with Treated Ejector Nozzle 90° OASPL and PNL Levels.	58
7-14.	54-Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle 90° OASPL and PNL Levels.	5 9
7-15.	Summary of Conical Nozzle 50° Noise Characteristics.	61
7-16.	32-Chute and 40-Shallow-Chute Nozzle 50° OASPL and PNL Levels.	62
7-17.	36-Chute and 36-Chute with Ejector Nozzle 50° OASPL and PNL Levels.	63
7-18.	54-Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle 50° OASPL and PNL Levels.	64
7-19.	Summary of Static PNL Directivity Characteristics - V $_{\rm ma}$ $^{\rm z}$ 2280 ft/sec.	66
7-20.	Summary of Static PNL Directivity Characteristics - V $_{\rm ma}$ $^{\rm z}$ 1640 ft/sec.	67
7-21.	Summary PNL Directivity Suppression Levels.	68
7-22.	Comparison of Static Spectra Characteristics - V \approx 2280 ft/sec.	69
7-23.	Comparison of Static Spectra Characteristics - V \approx 2280 ft/sec.	70
7-24.	Comparison of Static Spectra Characteristics - V \approx 1640 ft/sec.	71
7-25.	Comparison of Static Spectra Characteristics - V $_{\rm ma}$ \approx 1640 ft/sec.	72
7-26.	Comparison of Aerotrain and 4.0 in. Conical Nozzle OASPL Characteristics.	75
7-27.	Comparison of Acrotrain and 4.0 in. Conical Nozzle PNL Characteristics.	76

Figure		Page
7-28.	Conical Nozzle Spectra Comparisons with Aerotrain.	77
7-29.	Typical Static, Source and Flight Spectra for a 32-Chute Nozzle.	79
7-30.	Typical Dynamic Effects for a 32-Chute Nozzle.	80
7-31.	32-Chute Nozzle Peak Flight Noise Suppression.	82
7-32.	40-Shallow-Chute Peak Flight Noise Characteristics.	83
7-33.	36-Chute Nozzle Peak Flight Noise Characteristics.	84
7-34.	36-Chute Nozzle Peak Flight Noise and Suppression Characteristics.	85
7-35.	36-Chute with Treated Ejector Flight Noise Characteristics.	87
7-36.	36-Chute with Treated Ejector Flight Noise and Suppression Characteristics.	88
7-37.	54-Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle Peak Flight Noise and Suppression Characteristics.	89
7-38.	32-Chute Nozzle - PNL and OASPL Directivity.	91
7-39.	32-Chute Nozzle - Static and Flight Spectra.	92
7-40.	40-Shallow-Chute - PNL and OASPL Directivity.	93
7-41.	40-Shallow-Chute Nozzle - Static and Flgiht Spectra.	94
7-42.	36-Chute Nozzle - PNL and OASPL Directivity.	95
7-43.	36-Chute Nozzle Static and Flight Spectra.	96
7-44.	36-Chute with Treated Ejector - PNL and OASPL Directivity.	97
7-45.	36-Chute Nozzle with Treated Ejector - Static and Flight Spectra.	98
7-46.	54-Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle - PNL and OASPL Directivity.	100

х

Figure		Page
7-47.	54-Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle Static and Flight Spectra.	101
7-48.	32-Chute and 40-Shallow-Chute 50° Noise Characteristics.	102
7-49.	36-Chute Nozzle with and Without a Treated Ejector 50° Noise Characteristics.	103
7-50.	54-Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle 50° Noise Characteristics.	104
7-51.	32-Chute Nozzle Spectra Variation with MASS Average Velocity.	105
7-52.	54-Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle Spectra Variation with MASS Average Velocity.	106
8-1.	AR = 2.1 32-Chute Nozzle Performance Characteristics.	109
8-2.	40-Shallow-Chute.	110
8-3.	36 C-D Chute Nozzle Performance Characteristics (Estimated).	111
8-4.	36 C-D Chute Nozzle with Ejector Performance Characteristics (Estimated).	113
8-5.	Unsuppressed Annular Plug and 54-Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzles.	114
8-6.	Test Configurations - Lobe Nozzles (Reference 18).	115
8-7.	Primary Nozzle Ferformance (Reference 18).	116
8-8.	54-Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle Performance Characteristics (Estimated).	117
8-9.	Summary of Project Flight Performance and Suppression Characteristics.	120

xi

LIST OF TABLES

Table		Page
5-1.	Overview of Test Matrices.	37
7-1.	Summary of Shock Noise Suppression Characteristics at 50°.	65
8-1.	Summary of Optimum Nozzle Weight Characteristics.	118
8-2.	Summary of Aircraft and Engine Parameters Used for Jet Noise Estimates.	121
8-3.	Summary of Noise, Performance and Weight Characteristics for a 10% Variable Cycle Engine.	122
8-4.	Summary of Noise, Performance and Weight Characteristics for a 20% Variable Cycle Engine.	123
A-1.	32-Chute Nozzle Test Matrix.	128
A-2.	40-Shallow-Chute Nozzle Test Matrix.	130
A-3.	36-C-D Chute Nozzle Test Matrix.	133
A-4.	36-C-D Chute with Treated Ejector Test Matrix.	137
A-5.	54-Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle Test Matrix.	140
B-1.	Sample Input Sheet.	147

xii

1.0 SUMMARY

The High Velocity Jet Noise Source Location and Reduction Program (Contract DOT-OS-30034) was conceived to bring analytical and experimental knowledge to bear on understanding the fundamentals of jet noise for simple and complex suppressors.

Task 5, the subject of this report, was formulated to establish the static and flight noise characteristics of five optimum suppressor nozzle designs from different families which are considered applicable to advance propulsion systems to aid these systems in complying with noise regulations. The nozzles evaluated include a single flow, area ratio (AR) = 2.1, 32-chute design, and four dual flow suppressor nozzles: 40-shallow-chute - $(AR)_0 = 1.75$, 36-chute - $(AR)_0 = 2.0$, 36-chute with a treated ejector and 54-element coplanar mixer nozzle. Each scale model nozzle was subjected to static and free jet testing in the General Electric Anechoic Free Jet Facility. Free jet velocities ranged from 0 to 360 ft/sec. The flight noise was established based on transforming and scaling measured free jet data. The transformation was carried out by extracting the static directivity after correcting for refraction, turbulent scattering and absorption effects, and then employing a suitable multipole source decomposition to evaluate the proper dynamic effect.

The main result of this program has been to establish the static and flight suppression characteristics for the five suppressor nozzle designs in terms of peak noise characteristics, directivity, and spectra as a function of flight Mach number. Overall, flight effects for suppressors were demonstrated to be less favorable than for baseline nozzle configurations.

Suppressing only the outer stream of dual flow nozzles was found to be slightly less effective than suppressing the entire stream on a single flow nozzle. The loss in suppression effectiveness is between 1 and 2 PNdB for the same mass averaged velocity.

The effect of flight on the peak noise characteristics of suppressors was found to vary as a function of mass average velocity. At high velocities, for example, suppressors actually realize more peak noise reduction than a conical nozzle. However, at mass average velocities below 2000 ft/sec, suppressors generally lost 0 to 5 PNdB suppression in flight. In all cases, the noise level in flight for these suppressors was still lower than for the static case. On a directivity basis, flight reduces the noise in the aft quadrant, causes a modest change at 90°, and causes only slight changes relative to static in the forward quadrant. Spectrum changes are dependent on frequency, angle, and flight velocity. Overall, no reduction of high frequency noise occurred, even in the aft quadrant, except for the 54-element coplanar mixer nozzle. The flight effect on this configuration resembles more closely that on a conical nozzle.

The addition of a mechanical suppressor increases weight, reduces performance, and has a less favorable peak noise flight effect. Nevertheless, for a given gross aircraft takeoff weight, payload, and specified noise goal, a suppressor allows the use of a smaller engine, which generally results in a range advantage over an unsuppressed system, because adding a suppressor less costly than reducing noise by upsizing the engine to reduce jet velocity. Overall, suppression characteristics measured statically are different than in flight and a function of the specific suppressor design.

2.0 INTRODUCTION

Extensive static testing has been conducted during the past two decades to establish the suppression characteristics of complex exhaust nozzle configurations (1,2,3). Measured jet noise suppression levels in excess of 12 PNdB have been demonstrated, and performance test results have demonstrated that these levels may be achieved with a gross thrust loss in flight of 6 to 7%. (3) Actual flight test experience using some typical designs has provided inconclusive results (3,4,5). Some suppressors are effective in flight, others become ineffective, and may cause a noise increase. It has, therefore, been established that static test data are inadequate to establish the flight noise signature of suppressor nozzles.

Several methods have been evaluated during the pase five years to establish the flight noise signature of complex suppressor nozzles without conducting costly and relatively inaccurate actual flight tests (6,7,8). The methods include moving frame techniques and fixed frame techniques. The free jet method was selected and validated under Task 4 of the current program. (6)

The objective of the present Task 5 study was to establish the static and flight noise characteristics of five optimum suppressor nozzle designs which are considered to be applicable to advanced propulsion systems and which will aid these systems in complying with proposed noise regulations. The tests were conducted in the General Electric Anechoic Free Jet Facility. The present report includes a description of the free jet and a discussion of the facility validation results (Section 3), a presentation of the models (Section 4), and a definition of the test matrices (Section 5). The data acquisition and reduction procedures are discussed in Section 6. Section 7 presents the static and flight acoustic characteristics of the five optimum suppressor nozzle designs.

Static and flight suppression levels are established by comparison to conical nozzle data from References 9 and 10. Section 8 presents aerodynamic performance and weight assessments for each of the five nozzles for an advanced variable cycle engine.

Select thermodynamic and acoustic test data are tabulated in Appendix A, and Appendix B is a user's guide describing the mechanics of using the flight transformation program.

3.0 DESCRIPTION AND VALIDATION OF THE ANECHOIC FREE JET FACILITY

The General Electric Anechoic Facility (11) was modified to permit simulated wind-on testing via the Free Jet Technique which was evaluated and verified in Task 4 of the program (6). Free jet design criteria followed those evolved during an earlier free jet setup on General Electric's Jet Engine Noise Outdoor Test Site (JENOTS) (a free jet to nozzle area ratio of nominally between 40 to 50 to 1, a modest facility-nozzle contraction ratio yielding free jet longitudinal turbulence levels of 3 to 4 percent, and a velocity uniformity across the free jet of less than 4 percent).

Validation of the free jet was accomplished in early 1977 and comprised a number of acoustic and aerodynamic studies both in the upstream ducting and in the anechoic chamber proper. This section describes the key tertiary (free jet) flow facility components and the pertinent acoustic and aerodynamic data taken to validate the facility.

3.1 DESCRIPTION OF FACILITY

The tertiary system consists of a large electric motor-driven fan and associated ducting to surround model test nozzles with free jet airflow to provide external flow in order to simulate forward flight. The basic dual flow jet noise anechoic facility is described in detail in Reference 11. A schematic of the jet noise anechoic facility showing the tertiary flow arrangement is presented in Figure 3-1.

The tertiary air system consists of a 250,000 scfm (50 in. H2O static pressure) fan and 3500 hp electric motor. Transition duct work and a silencer section route the air from the fan discharge to the tertiary plenum room. The silencer reduces the noise level 30-50 dB. Air supply to the fan is pulled into the fan room outside ambient through an existing inlet silencer. A plenum room (14 ft x 12 ft x 10 ft) for the tertiary air is located just below the test deck. Three walls and the floor are covered with acoustic treatment (4-inch thick fiberglass pillows covered with fiberglass cloth and perforated plate). The coannular plenum chamber for model nozzle air supplies is located within the tertiary plenum chamber room. Tertiary air enters a 7 ft 4-inch-diameter x 6 ft long cylindrical test section mounted on top of the test deck. This cylindrical duct contains a flow straightening screen and honeycomb section (10-inch length x 1/4-inch Hexagonal cells). The duct is then smoothly transitioned to the 4-ft-diameter tertiary discharge nozzle on its upper-most end resulting in a free jet to jet nozzle flow area ratio of about 63 (based on 6-inch equivalent diameter nozzle). Maximum tertiary flow of about 310 lb/sec permits simulation of Mach numbers in excess of 0.30. Mach number variation is obtained by simply varying the fan inlet vanes thereby changing the tertiary air flow rate. A Mach number of approximately 0.41 is obtained with the vanes wide open. Entrained chamber flow enters from the outside through a silencer and enters the anechoic chamber





between acoustic wedges in the floor. All airflow exits through a "T" exhaust stack in the ceiling of the chamber directly over the nozzles.

Tufts for visual checking and thermocouples were located on the exhausts and thermocouples and microphones were located on the ceiling to verify that no apparent chamber recirculation exists. Wind-meter readings at the 130[°] microphone location indicate entrained flow velocities less than 1 ft/sec.

The converging section of the tertiary nozzle is treated with a 1/2-inch layer of Scottfelt (without a faceplate) to further reduce the high frequency noise content of the free jet flow. This treatment can be removed whenever it isn't needed. All validation and test results presented in this report were obtained with the acoustically treated tertiary nozzle.

Data acquisition of acoustic signals when the free jet is in operation is similar to previous static tests (11). Only the location of the microphones is slightly modified to accommodate the free jet plenum (described below).

Acoustic and LV/hot wire (HW) measurements were taken over a range of tertiary flow conditions for checkout as summarized below.

3.2 ACOUSTIC VALIDATION TESTS

A combination schematic and photograph of the anechoic jet noise facility showing the tertiary flow arrangement and microphone locations is presented in Figure 3-2. The locations of the 40, 50, 140, 150, and 160° microphones and their radial distances from the jet nozzle exit/centerline are included on Figure 3-2. A coannular-coplanar jet nozzle with both streams operating at identical thermodynamic conditions was used for the facility validation tests. Two (2) test series were conducted: a) an inverse square law (ISL) test without flow, and b) a background noise level test with flow.

The inverse square law (ISL) lossless test results at the 90° microphone position are shown in Figure 3-3. A speaker was used as the sound source for frequencies from 160 Hz to 630 Hz and an airball was used from 1000 Hz to 80 kHz. The procedure followed is detailed in Reference 11. A microphone was traversed from a position five feet from the noise source to a position near the far wall acoustic wedges. Data recorded at the various positions along the traverse are shown in Figure 3-3. The data trend follows the 6 dB per doubling of distance line quite well after correcting for atmospheric absorption. The standard deviation from the ISL tests for four (4) angles is shown in Figure 3-4 (see Reference 11 for procedure). The high points in the 50° lossless data are primarily attributed to the influence of the acoustic wedges surrounding the tertiary nozzle. The lossless data are comparable to the basic (static) facility validation results as documented in Reference 11.

The effect of the tertiary flow on the facility background noise level is shown in Figures 3-5 through 3-7 for 50, 90, and 150° microphones, respectively. Only data above the facility design cut-off frequency (220 Hz) are



Figure 3-2. Free Jet Arrangement in Anechoic Facility.

(a) Schematic



Figure 3-3. Inverse Square Law Test at 90° with Tertiary and Coannular Nozzle Hardware (Bass, Bauer and Evans Atmospheric Correction Included), Lossless for 160 Hz < f < 630 Hz, Used Speaker for 1000 Hz < f < 80 kHz, Used Air Ball.





استاماتك تقطيف تلامظ













ì

respectively. Only data above the facility design cut-off frequency (220 Hz) are shown. Typical spectra for the coannular/coplanar nozzle with both inner and outer flows at 1000 ft/sec ($V_{ma} \approx 1000$ ft/sec) are shown with and without the tertiary. The jet noise levels are considerably above the noise levels of the free jet alone. At the lowest jet noise level ($V_{ma} \approx 1000$ ft/sec and $M_T \approx 0.3$ spectra compared with $V_{ma} \approx 0$ ft/sec with $M_T \approx 0.3$ spectra) the jet noise is approximately 10 dB above the tertiary alone noise. Background noise from the tertiary flow is not expected, therefore, to influence the jet noise levels or spectra for jet velocities above 1000 ft/sec. The tertiary flow does affect the low frequency noise somewhat, at jet velocities between 800 and 900 ft/sec.

3.3 AERODYNAMIC CHECKOUT TESTS

Measurements were made of the mean velocity and axial turbulence intensity distribution at the tertiary exit plane and at various downstream locations in the free jet. The development of the free jet (tertiary) plume was also studied. A schematic of the free jet aerodynamic test setup (with a 5-inch conical nozzle) is shown in Figure 3-8. For most tests the conical nozzle (or inner jet) was flowing air at the nominal free jet condition in order to prevent any "dead" flow regions. The North (N), South (S), East (E), and West (W) directions are shown around the tertiary exit for future reference to traverse direction. Laser Velocimeter (LV) and hot wire (HW) measurements were made at stations A, B, C, and D as shown in Figure 3-8. Measurements were made at several tertiary exit Mach numbers (M_T), however for purposes of illustrating facility aerodynamic characteristics most of the results are presented at near AST takeoff conditions (e.g. MT \approx 0.30).

The radial variation of the mean velocity as recorded with the Laser Velocimeter is shown in Figure 3-9 for two axial positions. Examination of Figure 3-9 reveals the following:

- The radial mean velocity profile at the free jet exit plane (X/D = 0) is relatively uniform (less than 4% velocity variation) for both traverse directions.
- The mean velocity at the test (conical) nozzle exit plane location decays slightly from its value at X/D = 0. The radial mean velocity profile is uniform at this location, except near the conical nozzle wall and in the free jet mixing (shear) layer.

The axial variation of mean velocity for two radial positions is shown in Figure 3-10. The centerline trace (i.e. $r/r_0 = 0$ position), which is indicative of the free jet potential core, extends to at least five (5) diameters. Hence, the test nozzle detects little or no velocity decay in the free jet flow in these five tertiary flow diameters (or 17 ft downstream of the conical nozzle). The complete extent of the potential core has not been mapped due to a limit of the laser velocimeter track system in the facility. However, beyond X/D \simeq 5" \rightarrow 6 the velocity should decay at the rate (X)⁻¹, as



Figure 3-8. Schematic of Free-Jet Test Arrangement.



Figure 3-9. Radial Variation of Mean Velocity (Laser Velocimeter Data).



Vormalized Mean Velocity, Ū/Ū xsM

shown in Reference 12. The axial variation at $r/r_0 = 1$ in Figure 3-10 shows a typical decay of mean velocity to approximately 60% of its maximum value, and thereafter a uniform value of X/D from 2 to 5. This region of uniformity suggests a similarity of tertiary mean velocity profile throughout the traversing range. Figure 3-10 also includes the centerline axial variation at $U_{max} = 213$ ft/sec.

The free jet (tertiary) velocity decay characteristics are further illustrated by the montage of Figure 3-11 which was constructed using laser velocimeter (LV) and hot wire (HW) radial traverses. The velocity profiles at X/D = 0, 0.27, and 0.75 are taken from LV point histogram data with the conical (inner) jet at approximately $M_j \approx 0.30$. The velocity profiles at X/D = 0.75, 1.53, and 2.30 are from HW traverse data with the conical (inner) jet at approximately $M_j \approx 0$. The profiles at X/D = 0.75 are identical for the LV and HW except for the near centerline region which is governed by the conical (inner) jet exit velocity.

The HW profiles were extrapolated to zero velocity (shown by the dashed line) to provide an indication of the free jet spreading angle. This angle was actually determined to be ~ 5.5° by studying two separate HW traces for each location. Further discussion on spreading angle determination is presented later.

The peak value of U/U_{max} at X/D = 0.75 in Figure 3-11 is approximately 10% lower than the value at X/D = 0 and remains essentially constant to at least 5 tertiary diameters (see Figure 3-10). This initial velocity decay is a result of free jet flow expansion caused by the decrease in outer diameter of the inner jet between stations A and C. The amount of reduction will depend on the nozzle configuration under evaluation. Figure 3-12 shows the variation in tertiary mean velocity as a function of tertiary area increase. It varies from practically zero for a JENOTS type test configuration (where inner jet outer diameter remained constant from the free jet exit plane to the jet nozzle exit), to about 10% for the previously discussed checkout nozzle (which corresponds to about 30% increase in effective tertiary flow area). Figure 3-12 also shows a point at almost 8% reduction in tertiary velocity based on suppressor LV measurements made in these Task 5 in-flight effects tests. Figure 3-12 can be utilized in a test to compensate for the tertiary mean velocity defect (at Station C) during a test by simply increasing the tertiary mean velocity at Station C. In the event test data are already acquired, Figure 3-12 can be used to reduce the tertiary mean velocity value at Station C during the flight transformation phase of the data reduction process.

Figure 3-13 depicts the radial variation of axial turbulence intensity measured with the LV at the free jet exit plane (Station A, or X/D = 0) and the conical (test) nozzle exit plane (Station C, or X/D = 0.75). The turbulence intensity is not significantly affected by tertiary exit velocity, as shown by dashed line in Figure 3-13 for $U_{max} \simeq 213$ ft/sec. General conclusions can be drawn from Figure 3-13:

• Turbulence levels at the free jet exit plane are about 2.5% in the center of the free jet flow region.





.



Figure 3-12. Reduction in Tertiary Mean Velocity Due to Increase in Tertiary Area.




• At the conical (test) nozzle exit plane, the turbulence level is on the order of 0.5%.

The axial variation of axial turbulence at $U_{max} = 349$ ft/sec is shown in Figure 3-14 for radial positions corresponding to $r/r_0 = 0$ and $r/r_0 = 1$. This general distribution for the free jet is similar to that previously observed in scale model subsonic test results (12).

The azimuthal variation of the mean velocity at the tertiary (free jet) exit (X/D = 0) for M_T = 0.3 is shown in Figure 3-15. Hot wire (HW) data taken every 30° are shown for three radial insertions (r/r_o = 0.625, 0.75, and 0.875). Laser Velocimeter (LV) data were taken for only North (N) and West (W) traverses. The HW and LV data show good agreement. The M_T = 0.30 HW data show that velocity uniformity at the tertiary exit plane is 2.6%, which compares favorably with the limited LV results (2.2%).

The azimuthal variation of turbulence intensity at $M_T = 0.30$ is shown in Figure 3-16 for the same three radial insertions described above. This again is a typical plot showing the similarity with radial position. Average azimuthal turbulence intensities are calculated to be between 1.8% (HW) and 2.3% (LV). In general, the results of Figure 3-15 and 3-16 illustrate that the free jet is reasonably symmetric in mean velocity and turbulence levels.

The following table summarizes the free jet HW a: J LV results based on the exit flow symmetry tests and compares them to those established from the JENOTS free jet during Task 4 Validation Tests (6) which were used as the design target for the anechoic free jet.

	Free Jet Velocity	Mean Velocity Uniformity	Turbulence Intensity
•	JENOTS - Task 4 Validation	<4%	3 - 4%
•	Anechoic - U _{max} = 349 ft/sec - U _{max} = 213 ft/sec	~ 2.4% ~ 2.9%	~ 2.0% ~ 2.7%

At Free Jet Exit Plane (Station A, X/D = 0). These results show the free jet flow quality equivalency of the JENOTS and Anechoic Facilities.

Results of a hot wire measurement study of the free jet plume spreading characteristic at $M_T = 0.3$ are shown in Figure 3-17. A total of eight hot wire traverses were made at three axial locations across the free jet nozzle exhaust. The data show that the tertiary plume does not start spreading appreciably until it reaches the <u>test nozzle exit plane</u>. It then spreads at an angle of approximately 5.5°. This spreading is assumed to be true for all



Figure 3-14. Axial Variation of Axial Turbulence (Laser Velocimeter Data).



Figure 3-15. Azimuthal Variation of Mean Velocity at $M_T = 0.3$ (Laser Velocimeter/Hot Wire Data).



Figure 3-16. Azimuthal Variation of Turbulence Intensity at $M_T = 0.3$ (Laser Velocimeter/Hot Wire Data).





azimuthal positions as was the case for the mean velocity and turbulence shown in Figure 3-15 and 3-16. This spreading rate of the plume is reasonably close to classical spreading $(^{7})$.

The preceeding paragraphs have shown that the free jet design criteria evolved in the course of Task 4 (Reference 6) and adopted in the Anechoic Facility setup (Reference 11) produced good tertiary flow aerodynamics which, in turn, was reflected in the high quality of acoustic results taken during the verification tests.

4.0 MODEL SELECTION AND DESCRIPTION

Five suppressor nozzles and one unsuppressed nozzle were tested in the General Electric Anechoic Free Jet Facility. The six configurations were:

Model No.	Description	Figure No.
(1)	32-chute, AR = 2.1 - Single Flow Nozzle - $R_r = 0.62$	4-1
(2)	40-Shallow-Chute, $(AR)_0 = 1.75$ Dual Flow Nozzle - $R_r^\circ = 0.717$	4-2
(3)	36-CD Chute, $(AR)_0 = 2.0$ Dual Flow Nozzle - $R_r^\circ = 0.716$	4-3
(4)	Configuration 3 with a treated ejector - Dual Flow Nozzle - $R_r^\circ = 0.716$	4-4
(5)	54-Element Coplanar Mixer Dual Flow Nozzle	4-5
(6)	Coplanar - Coannular Nozzle - R_r° = 0.598	4-6

Photographs and schematics defining each of the nozzle designs are summarized on Figures 4-1 through 4-6. Each of the five suppressor nozzle configurations was selected by evaluating and balancing suppression levels, performance loss, and mechanical complexity. Emphasis was placed on having variety of configurations in order that detailed flight noise characteristics could be projected for several suppressor nozzle families. This approach was considered appropriate because of the extremely limited data available to optimize the acoustic characteristics of suppressor designs in flight, especially for dual flow nozzle configurations as previously discussed in Section 3.0 of Reference 3. Conical nozzle data previously taken from the free jet and Aerotrain Test Series (References 6, 9, & 10) are used for comparing all the static and flight noise results from the above scale model nozzles.

A detailed description of the suppressors and the optimum nozzle selection process are included in Reference 3. Highlights from this study (Reference 3) are, however, included in the next few paragraphs for completeness of presentation.

Model 1, 32-chute AR=2.1 nozzle, was selected to be representative of suppressor nozzles which were applicable to single flow exhaust systems. This 32-chute nozzle was evaluated as result of the parametric test series described in Reference 1. The selection of this configuration was also justified by the



والأخلف فالمتحد والمحادية والمحتم والأخلافة فالمتحادثات فتحتم فالمحادثة ومعاليكم والمحادث والمكالب والمحادية والألب والمحاد



Figure 4-1. 32-Chute, AR = 2.1, $R_r = 0.62$ Turbojet Suppressor.

 $\mathbf{28}$



بسوح الاعدد فبا



Figure 4-2. 40-Shallow Chute, $(AR)_0 = 1.75$, $R_r^0 = 0.717$ Duct Suppressor, $A_0/A_i = 1.92$, $R_r^i = 0.779$ Core Plug, In-Line.



ı

Figure 4-3. 36-Convergent-Divergent Chutes, $(AR)_0 = 2.0$, $R_r^0 = 0.716$ Duct Suppressor, $A_0/A_1 = 3.62$, $R_r^i = 0.889$ Core Plug, In-Line



ت. مەربىيە بەر ئالا ئىر بىرىيەن



Figure 4-4. 36-Convergent-Divergent Chute Duct Suppressor (Figure 4-3) with Acoustically Treated Secondary Ejector.





Figure 4-5. 54 Element Coplanar Mixer.



Figure 4-6. Coannular Coplanar, $\Lambda_0/\Lambda_i = 2.0$.

results of the aircraft integration studies described in Reference 3. The mechanical design studies indicated that the area ratio of 2.1 does fall within the range of acceptability. The static and flight aerodynamic performance of this nozzle was documented based on wind-tunnel testing data. Three other turbojet suppressors were also considered and evaluated in the aircraft integration study described in Reference 3. This may at first seem to be a limited group of nozzles, but in actuality, it represents a substantial portion of the suppressor nozzle work performed during the past 25 years. The 32-chute nozzle and 57-tube plus ejector nozzle are configurations which were evolved after extensive study conducted by General Electric and The Boeing Company after cancellation of the SST. These nozzles were evolved based on limited analytical, and extensive experimental studies conducted by the respective companies and described in References 1 and 2. The 36-chute nozzle area ratios 2.0 and 2.5 were configurations evolved for parametric testing during this current program and are more representative of the type of mechanical suppressors which could be implemented on a high radius ratio plug nozzle. Selection of the optimum nozzle Model 1 was based on maximum range attainable in order to meet current FAR36 (i.e., EPNL=108) noise levels.

The remaining four optimum nozzles were selected from the dual flow family. The second model was chosen to be $(AR)_0=1.75$ 40-shallow chute nozzle with a modified core-plug geometry. This configuration was evolved as a result of the experimental data presented in References 3 and 10. The experimental results show that a modification to the core-plug geometry of the 40-shallow chute nozzle would result in a 1.5 PNdB improvement in suppression with essentially no change in exhaust system performance or weight. This configuration, based on the Task 3 experimental data, has the potential for maintaining suppression in flight. This projection is made based on the experimental observation that in flight, a significant low frequency reduction occurs for the suppressor, whereas, little or no change occurs in the high frequency portion of the spectra. The 40-shallow chute, when compared to the other shallow chute configurations, exibited the lowest high frequency noise levels and should, therefore, perform best in the flight environment.

Model 3 was selected to be an $(AR)_0=2.0$ 36-chute nozzle and incorporated several unique design features. A nozzle area ratio of 2.0 was selected because it represents the best compromise from a suppression and weight point of view over a wide range of velocities (Reference 3). The core plug geometry of this configuration was designed based on the flow management studies described in Reference 10. The small step height was selected to provide a higher outer-to-inner-stream flow area ratio variation. The element number was selected based on the engineering correlation studies which indicated very little improvement in suppression with increasing element number, and 36 was selected based on performance data availability and the adverse effect that increasing element number has on performance.

The chute design itself was unique in that it incorporated a convergentdivergent flowpath to reduce the shock noise signature of the suppressor. The need for this design was predicted on test data presented in Volume II.

The influence of shock noise on the directivity and spectra characteristics of a suppressor is illustrated by the following example. Consider the AR = 2.0turbojet nozzle (Reference 10) operating at two test conditions as a means of illustrating the importance of shock noise. The pressure ratio was held constant at approximately 3.3 and two temperature conditions were evaluated. These were 730° R and 1630° R, which result in velocities of 1600 and 2380 ft/sec, respectively. Previous results would indicate a significant decrease in PNL level as velocity is decreased. This trend was observed at acoustic angles of 90° and in the aft noise quadrant. In the forward quadrant, the PNL levels are equivalent even though there is a difference of 780 ft/sec in velocity. Examination of spectral results reveals that the high frequency portion of the spectra are equivalent in level whereas the low frequency levels are lower as expected. This insensitivity of high frequency noise is generally characteristic of shock noise. If the shock noise were reduced, a significant decrease in PNL levels should occur. Therefore, a convergentdivergent chute design was incorporated into this configuration.

Model 3 with an ejector was selected as optimum nozzle No. 4. An ejector was chosen to be representative of a high suppression nozzle from a different family of exhaust nozzles. The ejector design incorporated a length-todiameter ratio of 1 and utilized the design criterion that flow area be held constant throughout the annulus. These are the design criteria for good aerodynamic performance at takeoff conditions. The ejector treatment utilized was a broadband bulk absorber, Astroquartz. The addition of a treated ejector to Model 3 is projected to increase PNdB suppression 2 to 4 PNdB (Reference 3).

Model 5 is a coplanar mixer plug nozzle (alternate hot and cold flow elements), which was evolved because of its aero performance and suppression considerations. This model configuration was selected from the application of the theoretical concepts developed in Task 2. Extensive diagnostic studies on multichute nozzles were carried out in Task 2. From these studies, a nozzle concept was developed which attempts to capitalize on the identified mechanisms of jet noise suppression. The first concept employed was that of injecting low velocity flow between the "chutes", which would provide several benefits: (1) reduce the shear, and hence the higher frequency noise, in the chute premerged zone, (2) eliminate the dependency of chute mixing on ambient air entrainment, and (3) improve the relative velocity effect in the flight condition. The velocity flow between the chutes could be supplied by the bypass bypass stream on an engine system application.

The second concept employed from Task 2 involved injecting low velocity flow between the chutes as a bypass stream, rather than through an inner core nozzle or base-bleed step. The plume should decay more rapidly with axial distance, because the bypass stream does not "fill up" the center of the plume. Instead, it is mixed with the ambient air along with the primary stream. This should produce lower convection Mach numbers, and hence reduce the convection amplification effects at aft angles.

The employment of chutes for flow-splitting was deemed desirable from the standpoint of reducing shock-cell broadband noise. By using a 54-chute configuration, hydraulic diameter can be minimized, thus greatly shortening the shock structure and pushing the peak frequency of the shock noise component high enough to render it inaudible or highly vulnerable to air attenuation. The shock cell noise may also be controllable by properly matching primary and secondary stream pressure ratios. Finally, because the secondary (bypass) flow replaces the chute "base area", the aerodynamic performance of this concept over a conventional chute nozzle should be much improved.

Appendix A summarizes the pertinent flow areas for each of the optimum suppressors described herein.

5.0 DEFINITION OF TEST MATRICES

The test matrices utilized in this program varied as a function configuration. In general, cycle conditions along a typical variable cycle engine operating line were chosen to establish suppression characteristics as a function of mass average velocity, free jet velocity, weight flow ratio (W_i/W_o) , and velocity ratio (V_i/V_o) . A summary of the thermodynamic conditions for the data points obtained for each of the configurations is presented in Appendix A. Table 5-1 is an overview of the test matrices which defines the combination of data points which may be utilized to examine a specific variable.

Model Numbers (Reference Section 4)	Data Points Numbers (Reference Appendix A)	Comments
1	1-7,11-20	Typical engine operating line
1	8-10	Isothermal points for shock noise studies
2	1-6	No inner flow
3	1-6,49-52	No inner flow
2,3,4	7-12	Weight flow ratio (W_i/W_o) held constant
2,3,4	13-28	Evaluation of inverted dual flow cycles with the inner stream velocities held constant at 1000, 1200, 1300 and 1400 ft/sec.
2,3,4	29-36	Typical AST/VCE cycle
3,4	37-48, 53-55	Outer stream pressure ratio was held constant $(P_T/P_0)_0 = 3.0$
5	1,2,4-10,13, 15-17,21,29, 30	Evaluation of inverted dual flow cycles with bypass/inner stream velocities held constant at 1000,1200, 1300 and 1400 ft/sec.
5	3,11,14,22, 27,28	Weight flow ratio (W_i/W_o) held constant
5	12,18-20, 23-26	Typical AST/VCE cycle
5	31-50	Inner Stream variations at constant outer stream conditions(static test matrix only)

Table 5-1. Overview of Test Matrices.

6.0 DATA ACQUISITION AND DATA REDUCTION PROCEDURES

A flow chart of the acoustic data acquisition and reduction system is shown in Figure 6-1. This system has been optimized for obtaining the acoustic data up through the 80 kHz 1/3-octave center frequency. The microphone type used to obtain f = 80 kHz data is the B&K 4135, 0.064 cm, condenser microphone for farfield measurements. All testing is conducted with microphone grid caps removed to obtain the best frequency response. The cathode followers used in the chamber are transistorized B&K 2619's for optimum frequency response and lower inherent system noise characteristics relative to the 2615 cathode follower. All systems utilize the B&K 2801 power supply operated in the direct mode.

The output of power supply is connected to a line driver adding 10 dB of amplification of the signal as well as adding "pre-emphasis" to the high frequency portion of the spectrum. The net effect of this amplifier is a 10 dB gain at all frequencies, plus an additional 3 dB at 40 kHz and 6 dB at 80 kHz due to pre-emphasis, increasing the ability to measure low amplitude high frequency data. The pre-emphasis starts at 10 kHz and follows a straight line ramp to 80 kHz as shown in the circled schematic of Figure 6-1.

In order to remove low frequency ambient noise, high-bypass filters with attenuations of 26 dB at 12.5 Hz linearly decreasing to 0 dB at 200 Hz, were installed in the system.

The tape recorder amplifiers have a variable gain from -10 dB to +60 dB in 10 dB steps and a gain trim capability for normalizing in ming signals. The signal is then split to provide for both an unfiltered and filtered flow-path.

High-pass filters are incorporated in the acoustic data acquisition system to enhance high frequency data previously lost in the tape recorder electronic noise floor for microphones from 110° - 160°. The microphone signal below the 20 kHz 1/3-octave band is filtered out, and the gain is increased to boost the "signal-to-noise" ratio of the remaining high frequency signal. Both the unfiltered and filtered signals are recorded on tape.

The system used for recording acoustic data is a Sangamo/Sabre IV, 23track FM recorder. The system was set up for Wideband Group I (intermediate band double extended) at 120 in./sec tape speed. Operating at 120 in./sec tape spedd provided improved dynamic range necessary for obtaining the high frequency/low amplitude portion of the acoustic signal. The tape recorder was set up for $\pm 40\%$ carrier deviation with a recording level of 8 volts peak-topeak. During recording, the signal is displayed on a calibrated master oscilloscope, and signal gain is adjusted to maximum without exceeding the 8 volt peak-to-peak level.



Figure 6-1. Acoustic Data Acquisition and Reduction Flow Chart.

Individual monitor scopes are used for observing signal characteristics during operation. On-line data monitoring of the unfiltered signal is available using 1/3-octave and narrow band real time analyzers for one angle at any given time. The analyzer outputs can be displayed on scopes or hard copy via an X-Y plotter.

Standard data reduction is conducted in the General Electric AEG Instrumentation and Data Room (IDR). The data tapes are played back on a CEC3700B tape deck with electronics capable of reproducing signal characteristics within the specifications indicated for Wideband Group I. An automatic shuttling control is incorporated in the system. In normal operation, a tone is inserted on the recorder in the time slot designed for data analysis. Tape control automatically shuttles the tape, initiating an integration start signal to the analyzer at the tone as the tape moves in its forward motion. This motion continues until an "integration complete" is received from the analyzer, at which time the tape direction is reversed and at the tone the tape restarts in the forward direction advancing the channel to be analyzed until all the channels have been processed. A time code generator is also utilized to signal the tape position of the readings as directed by the computer program control. After each total reading is completed, the number of tape channels at each point is advanced to the next reading.

All 1/3-octave analysis is performed on a General Radio 1921 1/3-octave analyzer. Normal integration time is set for 32 seconds to ensure good integration for the low frequency content. The analyzer has 1/3-octave filters set from 12.5 Hz to 100 kHz, and has a rated accuracy of $\pm 1/4$ JB in each band. Each data channel is passed through an interface to the GEPAC 30 computer where the data is corrected for the frequency response of the microphone and the data acquisition system and processed to calculate the perceived noise level and OASPL from the spectra.

At this point a computer quick-look printout of both the filtered and unfiltered signals is available. The printout shows model scale data at the measured distance without atmospheric or standard day corrections. Thus, the quick-look shows only as-measured data.

The filtered and unfiltered spectra are now merged using a time-share program which fits the amplitudes at 20 kHz. The sound pressure levels below 20 kHz are calculated using the unfiltered signal, while those above 20 kHz are calculated using the filtered signal. The jet noise spectra at a given angle is then obtained by computationally merging these two spectra.

For calculation of the acoustic power, atmospheric corrections to standard day scaling to other nozzle sizes, or extrapolation to different farfield distances, the data is sent to the Honeywell 6000 computer for data processing. This step is accomplished by transmitting the SPL's via direct time share link to the 6000 computer through a 1200 Band Modem. In the 6000 computer, the data are processed through the Full Scale Data Reduction (FSDR) Program where the appropriate calculations are performed. The SAE AIR 876A corrections for atmospheric absorption⁽¹³⁾ were used in this program to correct the data to standard day conditions. The data printout is accomplished on a high speed terminal. In addition, the FSDR Program writes a magnetic tape which is used for Calcomp plotting of the data.

7.0 ANALYSIS OF STATIC AND SIMULATED FLIGHT DATA

7.1 REFERENCE NOZZLE DATA AND ACOUSTIC DATA NORMALIZATION

This section defines mean lines, derived from several sets of conical nozzle data to be used as reference lines calculating static and flight suppression levels. The section also explains the acoustic data normalization procedures.

The data normalization technique developed in Reference 14, modified to account for static ideal gross thrust, was adopted for presentation of acoustic results. Selection of mixed stream or mass averaged velocity as the basis for data comparisons seems physically appropriate because the noise is expressed in terms of a velocity calculated from the thermodynamic conditions of both streams. Mixed stream velocity also allows comparison of noise values at the same specific thrust, which is a meaningful propulsion performance parameter.

In general, acoustic data is presented as:

Noise Value - 10
$$\log_{10} Fs(T_0/T_{sm})^{\omega-1}$$
 Vs V_{ma}, f or θ

where:

Noise Value = PNL, OASPL, OAPWL, or 1/3-OBSPL

Fs = Static Ideal Gross Thrust (Sum of Inner and Outer Streams)

 T_0 = Ambient Temperature, ° R

- T_{sm} = Static temperature corresponding to mass averaged velocity, V_{ma} , and total temperature, T_{Tma} , R
- ω = Jet density exponent (per SAE ARP 876) based on mass-averaged velocity (V_{ma})

$$V_{ma} = \frac{W_{i}V_{i} + W_{O}V_{O}}{W_{i} + W_{O}}, \text{ mass averaged Jet Velocity, ft/sec}$$
$$T_{Tma} = \frac{W_{i}T_{Ti} + W_{O}T_{O}}{W_{i} + W_{O}}, \text{ mass averaged total temperature, } R$$

where W and T_T are the exit plane values of mass flow and total temperature for the inner and outer (subscript i & o) streams, respectively, and f & θ are 1/3-octave band center frequency and angle relative to the inlet axis. In the case of turbojet test data, the flow parameters revert to the single stream notation. When it contributes to ease of data handling and presentation, the normalization on the graphs is:

Noise Value - N, where,

$$r_{c}$$
 $(T / T)^{\omega-1}$

$$N = 10 \log_{10} \frac{rs}{10,000} (r_0/r_{sm})$$

All the acoustic results reported herein have been scaled up to 338 in.² (total flow area) and extrapolated to a 2400 ft sideline. The introduction of a 10,000 pound reference thrust shifts noise levels by 40 dB and allows plotting of all positive values of the low level sideline noise data.

Several sets of conical nozzle static data are presented on Figure 7-1(a) from References 6, 9, and 10. A mean line fitted through the data was used as a reference line to establish static PNL suppression.

The data used to define the flight noise reference line were from free jet and Aerotrain test series (6, 9, 10). Two reference lines are established on Figure 7-1(b), the first uses data with free-stream velocities varied from 275 ft/sec to 300 ft/sec, and the second uses data with free-stream velocity of 400 ft/sec. These lines are used in conjunction with measured noise data for several suppressors to determine peak PNL suppression levels.

The unsuppressed AR = 2.0 coplanar-coannular nozzle evaluated in this test program represents the simplest baseline type nozzle for dual flow suppressor systems. Therefore the static and flight peak PNL suppression characteristics for this nozzle are summarized in this section. The static peak PNL noise characteristics are compared to the conical nozzle reference line of Figure 7-2(a). Modest peak noise suppression occurs ranging from 2 to 4 PNdB. The peak noise characteristics in flight are also summarized on Figure 7-2(b). The static and flight suppression levels are equivalent as shown on Figure 7-2(c) at mass average velocities above 2000 ft/sec, however, below this velocity flight suppression was 2-2.5 PNdB less than the static level. No other data is included in this report on this concept. The work currently underway under NAS3-19777 and 20619 (References 9 and 14) is pursuing a variation of this concept; e.g., Inverted Velocity Profile coannular plug nozzle.

The conical nozzle data are used in this report as the reference for comparison with the measured data for the five suppressor nozzles. The mean lines defined in this section will be used to define the peak noise suppression levels. However, directivity and spectra comparisons will be made using the conical nozzle data which most closely duplicates the mixed flow cycle conditions of the suppressor data being presented.

7.2 EVALUATION OF STATIC DATA

This section discusses the static noise characteristics of the five suppressor nozzles. The results are presented in terms of peak PNL and OASPL levels, directivity characteristics, and one-third octave spectra. Suppression levels for each of the configurations are established on the basis of OASPL and PNL using the conical nozzle reference lines established in Section 7.1.



Figure 7-1. Conical Nozzle Static and Flight Peak PNL Noise Characteristics.



6.20 4

and the second of a state of the second s

Figure 7-2. AR = 2.0 Coplanar Coannular Nozzle Peak PNL Noise Characteristics.

7.2.1 Peak Noise Trends

The peak PNL and OASPL levels as a function of jet velocity are presented in Figures 7-3 through 7-8 for the five suppressor nozzle configurations. Generally, the data presentation herein suggest that broad band shock cell noise has little or no effect at the angle of peak noise. Shock noise contamination is, however, apparent in the front quadrant ($\theta_{1,2}90^{\circ}$) and is discussed in Sections 7.2.2 and 7.4.2. The 32-chute nozzle, Figure 7-3, demonstrated suppression levels from 4 to 13 PNdB, with the maximum suppression occuring in the 2100 to 2300 ft/sec mass average velocity range. OASPL suppression trends are different than the PNL characteristics, indicating that the maximum low frequency suppression occurs at a jet velocity of 1750 ft/sec.

The 40-shallow-chute nozzle static data are summarized on Figure 7-4. There is a wide variance of suppression level at a given mass average velocity. The variance is explained by examining the different combinations of outer and inner stream cycle conditions which may be used to produce the same mass average velocity. The noise and suppression characteristics of the 40-shallowchute nozzle are, therefore, summarized for several cycle types on Figure 7-5 The suppressor is most effective when the inner flow is reduced to zero, Figure 7-5(a). Suppression levels in excess of 14 PNdB were measured. Mass average velocity was also varied holding velocity ratio constant, however, in all cases the inner pressure ratio was less than supercritical, which eliminated shock noise in the inner stream. The data appear to form a continuous line as a function of jet velocity for this series of data points. Suppression levels vary from 3 to 12 PNdB and peak in the mass average velocity range of 1750 ft/sec.

Cycles where the inner stream to outer stream weight flow ratio is held constant result in the poorest suppression characteristics. This is illustrated in Figure 7-5(c). Suppression for these types of cycle range from 7 to 10 PNdB, with maximum suppression occurring at a jet velocity of 1850 ft/sec. Comparison of the peak noise characteristics for the various cycle conditions is presented in Figure 7-4 showing a maximum variance of 5 PNdB at a given cycle condition.

The peak noise levels and corresponding suppression levels for the 36 C-D chute nozzle are summarized on Figure 7-6. This configuration has an outer to inner flow area ratio of 3.62. The results of the studies discussed in Reference 10 show that as outer to inner flow are ratio increases the variation of suppression due to changing inner flow condition is minimial. This observation is supported by comparing the scatter at a given mass average velocity between the 40-shallow-chute nozzle and this configuration. The 36chute nozzle incorporates a (convergent-divergent) chute configuration which was designed to be shock free at a pressure ratio of 3.0. The PNL data points obtained at the design point are designated by a separate symbol. Comparison of these data with data obtained at off-design outer stream pressure ratio indicates that this design feature did not significantly improve the peak noise suppression levels. The suppression levels achieved using this design range from 2 to 13 PNdB, with a maximum occurring a mass average velocity of



Figure 7-3. 32-Chute Static Peak Noise Characteristics.



Figure 7-4. AR = 1.75 40 Shallow-Chute Peak Noise Characteristics.

2250 Typical VCE CMIN q M Inner 2006 1 - C atra 1750 (c) k₁, % ≈ 50% ₩ = 50% 1500 Р 1250 60 50 (e) Suppression 70 2 ŝ 2500 Velocity Ratio -- Contral 2250 q 2000 V ft see • 2400 ti 5,L.2 • A_T = 336 in.2 (b) Typical VCE Cycle 20 15 2 ŝ nna ⊽ 1750 - C atra 10 L 1500 60 20 35 ŝ 2750 **HLOLD** q 20.00 terrary other stronger (b) (a) No Inner Flow 2250 C 2000 1750 1 0.2 į. 3 3 Tet (T. T. T. Rollint - 184 Anit



2750

2500

2250

2004

1750

1500

1250

1000

2500

2250

2000

1750

1500

1250

1000

-**-**1 -22

4

÷ ่ 1 ¥¹⁵⁵ มีม⊁่⊀ ¥∾1 ot - 184 ж∾4

V, fl/sec 5

48

į,

ā













2000 ft/sec. The maximum suppression occurs when the inner flow velocity is reduced to zero. The same trend is observed for the 40-shallow-chute nozzle. The data points with no inner flow may be eliminated because of the lack of practical application in a dual flow engine, and the peak noise suppression is then reduced to 12 PNdB.

The 36-chute nozzle was also tested using a treated ejector nozzle; these results in terms of peak noise and suppression levels are summarized on Figure 7-7. The suppression characteristics of this configuration also do not show a strong sensitivity to cycle variation. Suppression levels of 4.5 thru 13 PNdB were measured with the maximum suppression level occurring at 2000 ft/sec. Comparison of the suppression levels with and without the ejector indicate that the addition of the treated ejector results in little or no suppression improvement above a mass average velocity of about 1750 ft/sec. Some improvement in suppression due to incorporation of the ejector was found at the lower mass average velocities.

Peak PNL and OASPL noise levels are presented as a function of jet velocity on Figure 7-8 for the final configuration evaluated, the 54-element coplanar mixer nozzle. The suppression characteristics of this configuration were different than the previous configurations. The suppression levels are also summarized on Figure 7-8. The peak noise suppression levels based on a mean line fitted through the data range from 2 through 8 PNdB, with the maximum suppression level occurring at mass average velocities of 1250 to 1750 ft/sec. This configuration was not as effective as the previous nozzles in causing peak noise reduction and the largest suppression occurred at a much lower mass average velocity than for the other designs.

Laser velocimeter measurements were made in terms of mean velocity decay characteristics to determine the reasons for the poor suppression characteristics of this design at mass average velocities above 2000 ft/sec. The results are summarized on Figure 7-9 which shows three lines labeled A. B. and C. Line A represents the mean velocity decay characteristics of a conical nozzle as a function of normalized axial distance. Line B defines the peak mean velocity decay characteristics of the 40-shallow-chute nozzle, and is typical of most multielement suppressor nozzles. Line C is the measured peak velocity decay rate for the 54-element coplanar mixer nozzle. The 54-element coplanar mixer enhance the mean velocity decay rate to the same degree as the 40-shallow-chute nozzle. This is the reason why this design has poor suppression characteristics. Also, after the initial velocity decay between 0 < X/D< 2, the plateau velocity level which occurs between 2 < X/D < 8 correlates with the mass average velocity. Additional static acoustic data points were obtained on this configuration to determine if the suppression level could be improved through varying the inner and outer flow cycle conditions.

If the bypass stream (equivalent to inner in other dual flow nozzles) velocity is reduced to zero, the acoustic characteristics of the 54-element coplanar mixer nozzle should be identical to a 54-spoke nozzle having an area ratio of 1.5. The suppression characteristics of the spoke nozzle have been demonstrated to be good. Three series of measurements were made holding the





hot (outer) stream conditions constant at nominal velocities of 1630 ft/sec, 1970 ft/sec, and 2400 ft/sec. The results of this study are summarized on Figure 7-10. Each cycle excursion, while holding the outer stream conditions constant, is designated by A, B, and C corresponding to the outer stream velocities of 2400 ft/sec, 1970 ft/sec, and 1630 ft/sec, respectively. Excursion "A" shows that, as the bypass (inner) stream velocity approaches zero, the suppression is improved from 4 to 8 PNdB relative to the mean line placed through the data. Similar comparisons for cycle excursions "B" and "C" show suppression improvements from 6 to 13 PNdB and from 7.5 to 11.5 PNdB. Cycle excursions "B" and "C" are significant in that zero core flow was achieved, whereas, for excursion "A", the lowest bypass (inner) stream velocity achieved was 432 ft/sec. The results of this study demonstrate that the static peak noise suppression characteristics of the 54-element coplanar mixer nozzle are improved significantly by controlling the velocity ratio between inner and outer streams.

The static peak noise suppression characteristics for all five suppressor configurations in terms of Δ PNL are summarized on Figure 7-11. Each configuration is unique in that the suppression characteristics as a function of velocity change for each nozzle. The maximum suppression level achieved was 14 PNdB utilizing the 40-shallow-chute nozzle with no inner flow. The 32-chute nozzle was second with 13 PNdB. Suppressing only the outer stream of dual flow nozzles was found to be slightly less effective than suppressing the entire stream on a single flow nozzle. The loss in suppression is between 1 and 2 PNdB.

7.2.2 PNL and OASPL Directivity Trends

In addition to the peak noise reduction of suppressor nozzles, the directivity characteristics are also important and are discussed in detail in Section 7.4 in conjunction with the flight data. Some general characteristics are also discussed in this section. The 50° and 90° acoustic angles can be used to illustrate the trends. The 90° peak PNL and OASPL levels for the five configurations are summarized on Figures 7-12 through 7-14. The delta suppression levels achieved using the 32-chute nozzle range from 0 to 7 PNdB, and increase as velocity is increased. 90° suppression levels of the 40-shallow-chute nozzle range from 2.5 to 8 PNdB and increase with increasing velocity. Similar to the trend at the peak noise angle, up to 5 PNdB variation in suppression occurs for given mass average velocity. Suppression levels for the 36-chute nozzle with and without a treated ejector range from 0 to 6 PNdB. In contrast to the 40-shallow-chute nozzle, the suppression level of the 36-chute configurations does not vary significantly at a given mass average velocity. The 90° suppression levels of the 54-element coplanar mixer nozzle range from 3 to 5 PNdB and do not exhibit the large variance with velocity that the peak noise suppression levels do. Overall, the suppression levels at 90° were significantly less than noise measured at the peak noise angle.



Figure 7-10. 54-Element Coplanar Mixer Cycle Excursions.



 $\{ i,j\}$

Figure 7-11. Summary of Static Peak Noise Suppression Characteristics.






- - -





Figure 7-14. 54-Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle 90° OASPL and PNL Levels.

The 50° acoustic angle is typical of the noise characteristics which occur in the forward quadrant. The conical nozzle, at supercritical pressure ratios, exhibit significant check noise at these angles. Figure 7-15 presents the conical nozzle noise characteristics as a function of mass average velocity and the noise levels are normalized by the conventional parameters used for jet noise. The normalization parameters do not collapse conical nozzle data into a unified line. This was also observed at the 90° inlet angle as shown in Figure 7-14. The data may be scrutinized for contamination by shock noise by plotting the OASPL levels as a function of the parameter β , where β is defined as $\sqrt{M^2-1}$, since conical nozzle shock cell broadband noise has been shown to be essentially nozzle pressure ratio dependent and independent of jet temperature. This result is presented on Figure 7-16.

Clearly the conical nozzle data collapses for this parameter, and also the suppressor nozzle data. This indicates that the OASPL levels based on this criteria, are dominated by shock noise. In addition, the PNL levels at this acoustic angle are also presented and found to correlate well about a line having a β^4 slope. A similar presentation for each of the four remaining suppressor configurations is presented on Figure 7-16 through 7-18. The dual flow data has been plotted as a function of β_{ma} , where β_{ma} is calculated based on the mass averaged flow parameters discussed in Section 7.1. These data also correlate about a line having a β^4 slope. Correlation of the suppressor data about a line having this slope suggests that shock noise is the dominant noise source at this particular acoustic angle. The comparison on absolute level basis between the conical and suppressor nozzles indicates that the suppressors are effective in reducing the shock noise. The suppression of shock noise is found to be constant with β but vary as a function of configuration.

A summary of the PNL and OASPL suppression characteristics at the 50° angle for the five configurations are presented on Table 7-1. The comparisons illustrate that suppression is a function of configuration and that multielement suppressors are effective in reducing shock noise as well as jet mixing noise.

Figures 7-19 and 7-20 provide a comparison of the normalized PNL levels for the suppressor nozzle, with that of a conical nozzle at two typical velocity conditions. To illustrate how suppression varies with angle at these two conditions, the Δ PNL suppression varies with angle at these two conditions, the Δ PNL suppression is summarized on Figure 7-21 as a function of angle. The maximum suppression is observed to occur at inlet angles between 130° and 150°.

7.2.3 Spectra Trends

Typical static spectrum characteristics are summarized for the five configurations on Figures 7-22 through 7-25. Spectra at three angles, 50° , 90° , and 130° are presented. The spectral plots are shown at two jet velocities since it was recognized in the presentation of peak noise trends that the suppression, which is due to the relative relationship between the high and low frequencies, was a strong function of velocity.

60 -

Figure 7-15. Summary of Conical Nozzle 50° Noise Characteristics.





Figure 7-16. 32-Chute and 40-Shallow-Chute Nozzle 50° OASPL and PNL Levels.



Figure 7-17. 36-Chute and 36-Chute with Ejector Nozzle 50° OASPL and PNL Levels.





Figure 7-18. 54-Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle 50° OASPL and PNL Levels.

Table 7-1.	Summary of Shock Noise Suppression
	Characteristics at 50°.

Configuration	<u>∆PNL*</u>	<u>AOASPL*</u>
32-Chute	11.0	12.5
40-Shallow Chute	10.5	10.5
36 C-D Chute	9.0	11.5
36 C-D Chute and Treated Ejector	8.5	10.0
54 Element Coplanar Mixer	7.5	7.0

 $^{\star}_{\Delta PNL}$ and $\Delta OASPL$ levels are relative to a mean line placed through the conical nozzle data.

.....

10.000.00



Figure 7-19. Summary of Static PNL Directivity Characteristics - $V_{\rm ma} \approx 2280$ ft/sec.



Figure 7-20. Summary of Static PNL Directivity Characteristics - $V_{ma}\,\approx\,1640$ ft/sec.



Figure 7-21. Summary PNL Directivity Suppression Levels.



Figure 7-22. Comparison of Static Spectra Characteristics - $V_{ma} \approx 2280$ ft/sec.



Figure 7-23. Comparison of Static Spectra Characteristics - V $_{ma} \approx 2280$ ft/sec.



Figure 7-24. Comparison of Static Spectra Characteristics - V $_{ma} \approx 1640$ ft/sec.





The 32-chute, 40-shallow-chute, and 36-chute with and without a treated ejector all have spectrum shapes typical of multielement suppressors. When compared to the conical nozzle all these aforementioned suppressors exhibit the same characteristics, i.e. a significant amount of low and middle frequency reduction, no high frequency benefit.

Examination of Figure 7-22 clearly illustrates the uniqueness of the 54element coplanar mixer nozzle's peak noise spectrum shape in that it is resembles more closely that of a conical nozzle.

7.3 GENERALIZED DESCRIPTION OF THE TRANSFORMATION PROCEDURE

This section briefly describes the recommended procedure for transformation of free jet noise data to represent flight noise. The background material for the development of this method is presented in detail in Reference 6. The transformation procedure, described in Reference 6, has been continued to be evaluated in the current program and some refinements have been made. These modifications have been based on the acquisition of additional free jet data for conical nozzles and the availability of data with the free jet operating at 400 ft/sec. The turbulence absorption corrections have been modified to be a maximum 3.0 dB rather than the previously used value of 6.0 dB. The cutoff of the turbulence absorption correction as a function of the frequency parameter has been eliminated. Also, if the error in fitting the 1/3-octave directivity bands is found to diverge as the singularity level is increased, the singularity level which had the minimum error is used to determine the dynamic effect. The computer program, a series of instructions for use, and a description of the logic is presented in Appendix B.

The objective of the free jet transformation process is to employ farfield SPL spectra at various angles to the jet axis (typically for $40 \le \theta_{\rm I} \le$ 160° in increments of 10°) obtained in a free jet experiment, and to transform it to yield SPL spectra as would be measured in flight.

The concept employed is as follows: with area ratios (area of free jet/area of nozzle) of approximately 50:1, and with the primary nozzle exhaust plane displaced aft of the free jet plane sufficient enought to permit acquisition of acoustic data in the inlet arc (up to $\theta_I = 50^\circ$), proper aerodynamic simulation of the effects of forward flight can be achieved. The free jet achieves acoustic simulation of the effects of uniform flow over the primary jet plume noise sources only to a limited extent. The free jet achieves the effect of the correct source mix radiating, however, into an environment that more nearly approaches a static environment than the environment of sources shrouded by either a finite or infinite extent of uniform nonturbulent flow. The acoustic sources in a free jet, of course, do not radiate into a completely static environment and hence some propagation effects of the free jet flow do have to be accounted for.

Based on the above picture, the broad outline of the procedure adopted is as follows. Defining the static directivity as the directivity pattern (in various frequency bands) that the sources (of the primary jet exhaust plume altered by the effects of relative velocity due to imposition of the free jet) may be expected to produce if they radiated into a quiescent environment, the method first deduces this static directivity from the measured free jet experimental data by correcting the latter for propagation effects of the free jet. Since the free jet flow field includes intensely turbulent shear layers through which the sound field of the sources must pass before it reaches the far-field microphones (located in the quiescent ambient), some degree of empiricism (especially for the high frequency sound) is involved in attempting to account for these propagation effects.

Once such a static directivity is extracted, it still remains to deduce what the noise signature of the source distribution would be if the source distribution was not stationary relative to the ambient but moving relative to the ambient at the flight velocity. A multipole decomposition procedure suitable for the broad band jet noise problem which attempts to synthesize the static directivity by ascribing it to a mix of uncorrelated singularities was developed in order to enable the prediction of the flight noise. Once such a decomposition is completed, simply apply the dynamic exponent applicable to each singularity to derive the flight noise signature.

The method starts with narrow band directivities from the free jet experiment in various third-octave bands, corrects these directivities for free jet propagation effects in a frequency dependent manner to retrieve the static directivity, synthesizes the static directivity by a suitable mix of uncorrelated singularities and finally applies the dynamic effect appropriate to each singularity to predict the flight noise. It is an inherent feature of the method that it works separately with each third-octave band directivity pattern. The final flight predictions can then be summed to yield either OASPL of PNL directivities or simply displayed as flight SPL spectra at various angles to the jet axis. (Doppler shift effects on the frequency are fully accounted for). This procedure is described in Appendix B.

The major features of the transformation procedure are illustrated below in two sets of comparisons. The first comparison is of transformed free jet data obtained on a 4.0-inch conical nozzle, Reference 10, with actual aerotrain static and flight data. The comparison illustrates the ability of the procedure to reproduce flight results. The 4.0-inch conical nozzle was designed as a scale-model replica of the aerotrain conical nozzle.

Static and projected flight OASPL and PNL directivity comparisons are summarized in Figures 7-26 and 7-27. The transformed free jet data are found to match the static and flight directivity characteristics of those measured on the Aerotrain within \pm 2 dB. Static and flight spectra comparisons are presented on Figure 7-28. Consistent differences are not observed in the flight spectra comparisons except to the extent that they were present for similar comparisons on a static basis. The flight comparisons could not be expected to agree any better than the static comparisons. Overall, excellent



Figure 7-26. Comparison of Aerotrain and 4.0 in. Conical Nozzle OASPL Characteristics.



Figure 7-27. Comparison of Aerotrain and 4.0 in. Conical Nozzle PNL Characteristics.



Figure 7-28. Conical Nozzle Spectra Comparisons with Aerotrain.

agreement is obtained between the transformed free jet data and the Aerotrain results. Additional comparison of Aerotrain and free jet results are presented in Reference 6.

Use of the free jet technique for understanding flight effects has the advantage of allowing source reduction and dynamic effects to be considered separately. The next series of comparisons illustrate the relative margitudes of the source and dynamic effects. A typical data point for the 32chute nozzle is considered.

Free jet data are corrected for absorption and refraction to define the true source modification when compared to static data. That is, the difference between the projected flight spectra and the spectra corrected for refraction and absorption in the dynamic correction and the doppler frequency shift.

Comparisons at 50°, 90°, and 130° of measured static spectra, free jet data corrected for turbulence absorption and refraction, and projected flight spectra are presented in Figure 7-29. In the aft quadrant at 130°, essentially no low frequency (100 Hz < f < 1250 Hz) reduction occurs due to source modification. In the high frequency regime (f > 1250 Hz) an increase relative to the static data is observed. Application of dynamic effects and doppler shift result in a 2 to 6 dB reduction relative to static data in the frequency range from 50 Hz to 1000 Hz. At frequencies above 1000 Hz, the projected flight levels are equal to or slightly greater than static. The 90° spectra comparisons have no refraction or dynamic corrections and only a turbulence absorption correction is applied at high frequencies. At frequencies less than 2000 Hz a reduction of 1 to 3 dB is measured. The reduction is frequency dependent. At frequencies above 2000 Hz the free jet noise is either equal to or greater than the static. At the above 50° acoustic angle, there is a source reduction at frequencies below 500 Hz. However, at frequencies above 500 Hz the source noise is equal to or greater than the static noise. Application of dynamic corrections negates the low frequency source reduction and results in a 2 or 5 dB increase in the high frequency region of the spectrum.

The type of source singularities which are predicted to comprise each frequency regime may be deduced by examining the magnitude of the dynamic effect. The dynamic effect as a function of frequency is summarized in Figure 7-30. The correction, in terms of decibels, for each singularity type is also noted. In the aft quadrant the singularities are octupoles and quadrupoles, whereas in the forward quadrant they are primarily dipoles, with some monopole content in the high frequencies.

The free jet data presented in the remainder of this report will be transformed using the procedure described above.



Figure 7-29. Typical Static, Source and Flight Spectra for a 32 Chute Nozzle.



_

.

Figure 7-30. Typical Dynamic Effects for a 32 Chute Nozzle.

7.4 EVALUATION OF FLIGHT NOISE CHARACTERISTICS

This section discusses the flight noise characteristics for each of the five suppressor nozzle configurations based on transformed free jet data. Comparisons are presented on the trasts of beak noise suppression level, directivity trends, and spectrum shape. The presentation of the results follows a format similar to that used in Section 7.2.

7.4.1 Peak Noise Trends

The PNL levels are summarized of Figure 7-3, for the 32-chute nozzle. Several lines representing nominal velocities of 275 and 360 ft/sec are presented. Conical data are also presented as a reference to establish the flight suppression levels. Flight suppression deltas are presented on Figure 7-31 for the various free jet velocities. Static suppression is also presented for comparison.

Flight suppression and static suppression levels are comparable at mass average velocities above 2300 ft/sec. At velocities below 2300 ft/sec the flight suppression levels are 0 to 7 dB ress that the static suppression levels. The static-to-flight suppression loss increases as mass average velocity decreases and free stream velocity increases.

A similar set of comparisons for the 40 shallow-chute nozzle is presented on Figure 7-32. The pear noise suppression maracteristics are evaluated for several types of evels lines. Flight suppression levels in excess of 13 PNd3 were measured with no inner trew. The suppression levels are reduced 2 PNd8 with the addition of liner trew. The suppression levels are pressure ratio is subcritical. Suppression is degraded from 1 to 3 PNd8 for cycle variations where the inner they pressure ratio is supercritical. Flight peak noise suppression is commencial to the static noise suppression at mass average velocities above 2000 to see the ratio is suppression level due to cycle variations occurs at a mass average velocity of 2000 ft/sec.

The flight suppression characteristics of the boost contrants notice are presented on Figures 7-33 and 7-54. The classing (flight suppression occurs for conditions with no inner thow, with a maximum (flight suppression level of 13 PNdB occurring between 210d of flight and there of a convergent class of lower level design for this configuration incorporated a convergent class of a what here is a comparison of exact which was designed to be shock tree at a pressure callor v.d. Figure 7-33(b) was obtained with the outer flow operating of the design point. Only small improvements in suppression appear to be realized by this design feature on the basis of the peak noise comparisons. Overall, for the dual flow cycles evaluated, the flight suppression levels actioned were 13 PNdB for cases with no inner flow. Dual flow cycle suppression peaks at 10 to 11 PNdB. Increasing flight velocity from 275 fty set to 300 there causes an additional loss in suppression at velocities below 2200 to set; at velocities above 2200

AD-A094 297	GENER HIGH JAN 7	VELOCI	CTRIC C TY JET Aumgard	O CINC Noise S T, J F	SOURCE I	OH AIR LOCATIO	CRAFT E N AND R Clapper	NGINE	BROUP DN. TAS -05-300	F/6 1 K 5 34	0/1 ETC(U)	
UNCLASSIFIED 2.ºº 3	R78AE	6628				FAA	0=76=79	-5				
A094297												
-					4							
											·	



Strategy in the Street Materials

Acres 640. 61

Figure 7-31. 32 Chute Nozzle Peak Flight Noise Suppression.





Figure 7-32. 40 Shallow Chute Peak Flight Noise Characteristics.

والمتحرين المحمد ومحمد والمحمد المراقع والمحمد والمحمانين والمحمول والمحمول والمحمد والمحمد والمحمد والمرابع وال



Figure 7-33. 36 Chute Nozzle Peak Flight Noise Characteristics.



.

Figure 7-34. 36 Chute Nozzle Peak Flight Noise and Suppression Characteristics.

ft/sec suppression is slightly enhanced. Flight peak noise and suppression characteristics of the 36-chute nozzle with a treated ejector are summarized on Figures 7-35 and 7-36. Improved suppression of 1 to 3 PNdB is observed at 360 ft/sec flight velocity for the ejector configuration indicating that the ejector effectively reduces the high frequency noise caused by the premerged region of the jet. The only cycle variation where the ejector did not result in improved flight suppression was for the case with no inner flow. The ejector also caused the variation in suppression at a given mass average velocity to be less.

Flight noise peak PNL characteristics for the 54-element coplanar mixer nozzle are summarized on Figure 7-37. Static and flight suppression levels are also presented. The suppression characteristics of this configuration are different than the previous four nozzles, and the results in flight exhibit different trends. The velocity range over which the peak suppression occurs is much lower, and the ranges from 1000 to 1800 ft/sec. The other four suppressors peak at much higher velocity (2000 to 2500 ft/sec). The other four designs experience a flight suppression decrease as the mass average velocity decreases; whereas this configurations flight suppression is within 0.5 PNdB of the static suppression for the mass average velocity range evaluated. This indicates that changes in noise from static to flight for this nozzle are similar to a conical nozzle.

A summary of the peak noise suppression and the corresponding velocity range for each configuration is presented in the following table.

Configuration	Peak Flight PNL Suppression	Velocity Range				
32-Chute	12-13 PNdB	2100 ft/sec+2500 ft/sec				
40-Shallow-Chute	10-11 PNdB	1900 ft/sec+2500 ft/sec				
36-C-D-Chute	11-12 PNdB	2050 ft/sec+2250 ft/sec				
36-C-D-Chute and Treated Ejector	11.5-12.5 PNdB	2025 ft/sec+2250 ft/sec				
54-Element Coplanar Mixer	7-7.5 PNdB	1000 ft/sec+1800 ft/sec				

- The above levels were established by using all the cycle lines except those with no inner flow. Overall, with the exception of the 54-element coplanar mixer nozzle, the peak suppression levels occur over similar velocity ranges. The 13 PNdB flight suppression level of the 32-chute nozzle represents the largest suppression. However, the suppression level of the 36-chute and 36chute with treated ejector were within 1 and 0.5 PNdB, respectively, of the 32-chute nozzle. Although some loss in suppression occurs in flight for select configurations, in general these suppressor designs are effective in causing peak flight noise reduction in excess of 11 PNdB in the high velocity regime.







Figure 7-36. 36 Chute with Treated Ejector Flight Noise and Suppression Characteristics.



Figure 7-37. 54 Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle Peak Flight Noise and Suppression Characteristics.

7.4.2 Suppressor Flight Directivity and Spectra

Static and flight directivity and spectra characteristics are discussed in this section. The data are presented at mass average velocities ranging from 2250 to 2350 ft/sec. Conical nozzle data are also presented from Reference 9 to establish the changes in directivity and spectrum characteristics caused by the suppressor nozzles. Static data are also presented for compa ison with flight data to illustrate the differences. All flight data presented has been transformed using the procedure discussed in Section 7.3.

The PNL and OASPL directivity characteristics of the 32-chute nozzle are summarized on Figure 7-38. This mass average velocity is typical of those being considered for advanced variable cycle engines. The directivity characteristics of this suppressor are much different than those of the conical nozzle which has a distinct aft quadrant peak at 130° in both the static and flight case. The peak noise angle for the 32-chute suppressor nozzle is less distinct and shifts in location slightly as flight velocity is varied. At the extreme angles in the aft quadrant (140° $\langle \theta_T \rangle \langle 160^\circ \rangle$, the changes from static to flight are generally equivalent for both the conical and 32-chute nozzle. At 90° very little change is observed from static to flight for the conical nozzle, but a 3 PNdB reduction occurs for the 32-chute suppressor. However, the reduction is not a function of flight velocity. In the forward quadrant, using 50° as a typical case, the conical nozzle PNL levels are increased by 5 PNdB, whereas for the 32-chute, only a 2 PNdB increased is observed. The spectra comparisons presented on Figure 7-39 at 50° illustrate that a conical nozzle spectra is typical of one which is dominated by shock noise. The 32-chute spectra does not have this classic shape. For frequencies below 630 Hz, no noise increase occurs from static to flight; an increase does occur in the higher frequencies. At the peak frequency shock noise is reduced by 25 dB. The 90° spectra comparisons for the 32-chute nozzle show significant low frequency reduction from static to flight, whereas there is no change or a slight increment at the high frequencies. The 32-chute suppressor is most effective in the mid-frequency range. All 110° and 130° (typical of the maximum noise angle), trends similar to those at 90° are observed. The most significant trend is that the conical nozzle shows high frequency noise reduction from static to flight, whereas the 32-chute suppressor does not.

Comparisons similar to those above are presented for the 40-shallowchute nozzle on Figure 7-40 and 7-41. The magnitude of suppression in the forward quadrant is not as large due to the fact that the outer flow stream (to which the suppressor is applied) is operating at a much higher pressure ratio than the 32-chute nozzle. This can be seen by comparing the levels in the premerged noise region between the 32-chute nozzle and the 40-shallowchute nozzle (the 1250 Hz 50° forward quadrant level is 62 dB for the 32chute and 74 dB for the 40-shallow-chute).

Directivity and spectra comparisons for the 36-chute nozzle with and without a treated ejector are summarized on Figures 7-42 through 7-45.



Figure 7-38. 32 Chute Nozzle - PNL and OASPL Directivity.


Figure 7-39. 32 Chute Nozzle - Static and Flight Spectra.



Figure 7-40. 40 Shallow Chute - PNL and OASPL Directivity.



Figure 7-41. 40 Shallow Chute Nozzle - Static and Flight Spectra.



Figure 7-42. 36 Chute Nozzle - PNL and OASPL Directivity.



Figure 7-43. 36 Chute Nozzle Static and Flight Spectra.

AN PARADA



Figure 7-44. 36 Chute with Treated Ejector - PNL and OASPL Directivity.



Figure 7-45. 36 Chute Nozzle with Treated Ejector - Static and Flight Spectra.

Directivity and spectrum trends for these configurations are similar to the 40-shallow-chute nozzle.

Directivity and spectrum comparisons for the 54-element coplanar mixer nozzle are summarized on Figures 7-46 and 7-47. Significant shock noise reduction occurs in the forward quadrant, and there is minimal change in the forward quadrant noise level. At 90°, in contrast to the other four suppressor designs, a decrease in high frequency noise occurs from static to flight. The flight effects at 110° and 130° are larger than observed for the conical nozzle. Also, the location of peak noise for this configuration is at 140°, whereas most other suppressor configurations peak at 110 to 120°.

These directivity and spectra comparisons illustrate that the flight effects for suppressor nozzles vary as a function of configuration, flight velocity, acoustic angle, and frequency. Flight generally enhances suppression in the forward quadrant at supercritical pressure ratios because conical nozzle shock noise amplification is not apparently present in the suppressors. At 90°, and in the aft quadrant, there is significant low frequency reduction from static to flight, however, there is little or no high frequency reduction.

In Section 7.2, the static 50° OASPL and PNL levels for each of the suppressors are plotted as function of β to determine if the 50° OASPL data in particular will collapse about a line having a β^4 slope. Similar plots for the flight noise characteristics are presented on Figures 7-48 through 7-50. The conical nozzle data from Reference 10 is also presented for comparison on these figures. The conical nozzle illustrates a noise increase in flight, which correlates well with 40 log of the doppler factor. Mean lines based on the static and flight suppressor data do not show a similar trend indicating that, although the static suppressor data do, in general, collapse about a line having a β^4 slope, the amplification in flight is predicted to be less than a conical nozzle.

Suppressors such as the 32-chute nozzle lose their effectiveness as mass average velocity decreases, whereas a design such as the 54-element coplanar mixer nozzle maintains its suppression level relative to a conical nozzle. Several spectra for the 32-chute nozzle at 130° acoustic angle are presented on Figure 7-51. These spectra are presented for mass average velocities ranging from 2610 to 1742 ft/sec. At jet velocities such as 2610 ft/sec. the static spectra are dominated by low frequency noise which enjoys a large flight effect. Conversely, at 1742 ft/sec the high frequency and low frequency noise levels are within 4 dB and although the low frequency levels are reduced in flight on a PNL basis, the high frequency dominates, which results in poorer suppression when compared to a conical nozzle. A similar set of comparisons (Figure 7-52) are presented for the 54-element coplanar mixer nozzle. The spectrum shape is different than that of the 32-chute nozzle. This nozzle enjoys a flight effect in the high frequencies in contrast to the 32-chute nozzle. The spectrum shapes for this configuration differ from the typical double-humped spectra characteristic of multielement suppressor nozzles.



Figure 7-46. 54 Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle - PNL and OASPL Directivity.





1. ----

-



Figure 7-48. 32 Chute and 40 Shallow Chute 50° Noise Characteristics.



Figure 7-49. 36 Chute Nozzle with and Without a Treated Ejector 50° Noise Characteristics.

and a second division

54 Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle V_{O} Conical Nozzle $V_0 = 275 \text{ ft/sec}$ Conical Nozzle $V_0 = 0$ ×□ ł



54 Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle V_o = 275 ft/sec





54 Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle 50° Noise Characteristics. Figure 7-50.



Figure 7-51. 32 Chute Nozzle Spectra Variation with Mass Average Velocity.





This section has presented the flight noise characteristics of the five suppressor nozzles. At high velocities, the suppression levels measured statically and in flight are comparable. As mass average velocity is decreased, the flight suppression levels are less than those measured statically, from 0 to 5 PNdB. The reason for the loss of suppression is that the premerged noise produced by a multielement suppressor nozzle realizes only minimal alteration in flight, and as mass average velocity decreases the level of the premerged noise and postmerged noise approach each other. Therefore, on a PNL bases, very little flight effect is realized. In all cases, the suppressor noise levels in flight were lower than their static counterparts and also lower than the conical nozzle in flight. In the forward quadrant, multielement suppressors are effective in reducing shock noise; also, the forward quadrant noise for a suppressor is not amplified to the same degree as a conical nozzle.

8.0 IMPLICATIONS OF AERODYNAMIC PERFORMANCE, WEIGHT AND SUPPRESSION

The results presented in prior sections have focused on establishing the flight noise suppression characteristics of the five suppressor nozzles. Based on the results of the studies presented in Reference 3, the addition of a suppressor allows the use of a smaller engine to meet a specified noise goal. However, two penalties are incurred due to the addition of a suppressor. The first is a thrust loss relative to the unsuppressed engine and the second is an increase in engine weight due to the addition of a mechanical suppressor. This section provides aerodynamic performance and weight estimates for the five suppressor designs considered in this study. The performance characteristics will be summarized in terms of thrust coefficient, $C_{f_{r}}$, as a function of inner and outer stream pressure ratio. The weight estimates presented are for the turbojet (single flow) and variable cycle (dual flow) engines discussed in Reference 3. In addition, delta suppression to delta performance ratios $(\Delta PNL/\Delta C_{f_{-}})$ are established for the five suppressor designs. Finally, suppression levels in terms of EPNdB at representative AST takeoff power settings, are presented to illustrate how suppression levels are affected with changes in engine size (scaling effects).

8.1 AERODYNAMIC PERFORMANCE CHARACTERISTICS

The AR = 2.1 32-chute nozzle design was evolved as the final configuration in the FAS/DOT SST Phase II study (1). An aerodynamic performance model was tested in the FluiDyne Engineering Corporation's 66 by 66-inch Transonic Wind Tunnel, both statically and at Mach 0.36. A photograph of the Model and the results of this test are shown in Figure 8-1. In the pressure ratio range currently being considered for advanced turbojet engines (2.7 to 3.5) this configuration has a thrust coefficient which ranges from 0.92 to 0.93.

The $(AR)_0 = 1.75$ 40-shallow-chute nozzle was tested for aerodynamic performance in the NASA-Lewis Research Center 8 by 6-foot Supersonic Wind Tunnel under Task $3^{(10)}$ A photograph of the model installed in the wind tunnel and the results of the test are shown in Figure 8-2 for both static and Mach 0.36 conditions. Performance characteristics are presented as a function of outer stream pressure ratio while holding the inner stream pressure ratio constant at levels currently being considered for VCE-cycles. Thrust coefficients for this configuration over the pressure range of interest vary from 0.895 to 0.905.

The $(AR)_0 = 2.0$ C-D 36-chute nozzle was not tested to obtain aerodynamic performance. However, its performance characteristics were estimated utilizing the available chute suppressor data base⁽¹⁰⁾ and correlation techniques being developed for the Task 6 Design Guide⁽¹⁷⁾ under this contract. With the exception of the chute depth and cross sectional shape, this nozzle is similar to the 36-chute $(AR)_0 = 2$ nozzle tested as part of Task 3⁽¹⁰⁾, Figure 8-3. The task 3 nozzle was, therefore,



• AR = 2.1 32 Chute Nozzle



Figure 8-1. AR = 2.1 32 Chute Nozzle Performance Characteristics.



• (AR) = 1.75 40 Shallow Chute Nozzle



Figure 8-2. 40 Shallow Chute.



• (AR) = 2.0 36 Chute Reference Nozzle from Reference (10)





used as a baseline for the performance estimate. This baseline nozzle performance was adjusted to account for differences in chute geometry. The Task 3 model was instrumented with suppressor element base pressure taps which were used to calculate a loss in thrust coefficient due to lower than ambient base pressures. The generalized chute suppressor base pressure correlation equation, derived from the Task 6 Design Guide⁽¹⁷⁾ was then used to estimate the base pressures for the new suppressor Typically, the new design reduced base drag losses by 50% due to the increased chute depth. In addition, the convergent-divergent chute design reduces the projected base area. The results of the performance estimation are shown in Figure 8-3. This configuration has improved performance over the 40-shallow-chute design. Thrust coefficient range from 0.935 to 0.945 over the pressure ratio range of interest.

The aerodynamic performance of the 36-chute nozzle with a treated ejector was estimated by applying increments in thrust coefficients derived from previous annular chute suppressor ejector wind tunnel tests. During the FAA/DOT SST Phase II study⁽¹⁾ a 36-chute, AR = 2.3 and a 32-chute, AR = 2.1 suppressor were tested with and without ejectors statically and at Mach 0.36. Results from these tests indicated that at a typical takeoff nozzle pressure ratio of 3.0, the ejector improved static performance of both suppressors by 2.8%. At Mach 0.36, the ejector improved the performance of both suppressors by 0.6%. These results, as a function of nozzle pressure ratio, were applied to the "bare" 36-chute suppressor to yield the estimates shown in Figure 8-4. The ejector configuration exhibits a much steeper performance gradient with pressure ratio than the previous configurations. However, at outer stream pressure ratios above 3.0, a C_{fo} of 0.95 may be attainable.

Performance estimates for the 54-element coplanar suppressor exhaust nozzle were derived empirically. In general, the coplanar nozzle, Figure 8-5, is geometrically similar to an unsuppressed single flow annular nozzle with the exception of the amount of wetted perimeter at the nozzle throat. An unsuppressed annular nozzle also shown in Figure 8-5 was, therefore, used as a baseline for the performance prediction. In order to account for the viscous losses (internal) associated with the mixing chutes, Boeing data⁽¹⁸⁾ was utilized. A schematic of a 70-lobe suppressor⁽¹⁸⁾ is shown in Figure 8-6. Boeing⁽¹⁸⁾generalized performance data from several models of this type as a function of nozzle perimeter are shown in Figure 8-7. These curves were entered at perimeters corresponding to both the coplanar nozzle and the baseline nozzle. The resulting difference in velocity coefficient was then applied to the baseline nozzle test data to arrive at an overall installed thrust coefficient. At a nozzle pressure ratio of 3.0, the installed thrust coefficient is estimated to be 0.95 as compared to an unsuppressed value of 0.980. Estimate performance as a function of nozzle pressure ratio is shown in Figure 8-8. Note that the estimate is for both Mach 0, 0.36. Due to the lack of large base areas typical of other suppressor designs, the performance of this nozzle should not be sensitive to external flow effects. This curve may be used to establish the thrust performance for various combinations of inner and outer stream pressure ratios by simply using the curve to determine the thrust coefficient at the appropriate pressure ratio for both the inner and outer streams and applying it to the ideal thrust for each of the streams.









• 54 Coplanar Mixer

• Unsuppressed Annular

Figure 8-5. Unsuppressed Annular Plug and 54 Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzles.

4.1.1.1

ļ







Figure 8-7. Primary Nozzle Performance (Reference 18).



Figure 8-8. 54 Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle Performance Characteristics (Estimated).

8.2 IMPACT OF MECHANICAL SUPPRESSORS ON ENGINE WEIGHT

The addition of a mechanical suppressor causes a weight increase relative to a reference nozzle⁽³⁾. In general, this weight increase may be significant relative to the total engine weight. This section will, therefore, provide examples of how each of the suppressor designs evaluated in the current study might effect total exhaust system weight as well as providing some estimates on the impact of these exhaust system weights on the total engine. The turbojet and variable cycle engines from the Task 3 Aircraft Integration Study(3)will be used for this example. The reference nozzle for the turbojet study is a plug nozzle, estimated to weigh 2950 lb on a 770 lbm/sec* engine while its variable cycle counterpart is a coannular plug nozzle weighing about 2800 lb on a 840 lb/sec* engine. A summary of the weight in terms of an increment relative to the reference nozzle and the percent increase in engine weight is summarized on Table 8-1. The 54-element coplanar mixer and the 40-shallowchute nozzle are the lightest due to minimal mechanical complexity. Recall that these weight estimates are for the engines considered in Reference(3)and represent only an example and not a generalized result.

Configuration	Weight Increase re: Reference Nozzle	% Increase Reference Nozzle Weight	% Increase Engine Weight	Reference Airflow Size 1bm/sec
32-chute, AR = 2.1	1150	39	7	770
(AR) ₀ = 1.74 40 Shallow Chute	550	19.6	4.1	840
(AR) ₀ = 2.0 36-chute	1300	46.4	9.6	840
(AR) ₀ = 2.0 36-chute With Ejector	3500	125	25 .9	840
54-Element Coplanar Mixer	440	15.7	3.2	840

Table 8-1. Summary of Optimum Nozzle Weight Characteristics.

8.3 PERFORMANCE VERSUS SUPPRESSION TRADES AND SCALING IMPLICATIONS

One common method of presenting the aerodynamic performance and acoustic results is in terms of suppression effectiveness ratio, $\Delta PNL/\Delta C_{fg}$. Reference 3 shows the importance of establishing this ratio in terms of flight suppression

[&]quot;Sea level corrected engine airflow

level and flight performance level. The reference level used herein is that of the Supersonic Tunnel Association (STA) nozzle and the reference to establish suppression in a conical nozzle. The characteristics of the five optimum nozzles are summarized on Figure 8-9. The optimum nozzles evaluated in this study show a marked improvement in suppressor effectiveness ratio $(\Delta PNL/\Delta C_{f_{\alpha}})$ over designs previously evaluated.

The results of this study have considered, weight, performance, and suppression for the designs evaluated. Two typical VCE engine cycles were selected to illustrate the jet noise levels in terms of EPNL which could be achieved using these designs at the sideline and community monitoring locations for a typical AST flight trajectory. The cycles chosen represent 700 lbm/sec variable cycle engines which were high flowed at takeoff at values of 10% and 20%. The pertinent cycle parameters for each of the engines are summarized on Table 8-2. The sideline and community EPNL levels which would occur for each of the suppressors implemented on these engines were predicted and are summarized on Tables 8-3 and 8-4. Maximum sideline noise was assumed to occur when the aircraft was at a 800 ft altitude and the altitude over the 0.35 nautical mile community point was 1040 ft. Noise estimates were made by scaling the measured free jet data for each of the nozzles to the appropriate size and distance. Corrections were applied for the number of engines (+6.0 EPNdB), ground effects (+1.5 EPNdB) and shielding (-4.0 EPNdB). The shielding correction was based on the data presented in Reference 20 and applied to the sideline monitoring point only.

The performance based on the data presented in the previous section is also presented. Note that the comparisons are made for a constant engine weight flow and do not reflect a comparison at constant thrust. However, corrections for upsizing the engine to constant thrust would affect the noise levels a maximum of 0.5 EPNL. Typical engine weight increases caused by the addition of the suppressor, based on the studies presented in Reference 3, and not including engine weight increases due to upsizing to constant net thrust, are also presented. Table 8-3 shows that traded EPNL levels of approximately 105 may be achived with a suppressor such as the 32-chute nozzle implemented on 10% high flowed variable cycle engine. The 40-shallow-chute, and AR = 2.0 36-chute with and without ejector nozzles were found to achieve traded levels of between 106-109 EPNL. The 54-element coplanar mixer nozzle had a level of approximately 110 EPNL. This nozzle has a higher traded noise level because of its poor suppression characteristics at high jet velocities. A similar comparison for a 20% high flowed VCE engine is presented on Table 8-4. In general, this results in a 1.5 to 2.5 EPNL improvement over the previous cycle considered. The mojor reason for improvement is due to a reduction of mixed flow velocity from 2375 ft/sec to 2184 Ft/sec. The major advantage of using this cycle is that all the configurations have traded EPNL of 1.1 to 4.0 EPNL less than the FAR36(1969)108 level. Conical reference levels are also presented based on the prediction procedure described in keference 17 to illustrate the levels of suppression achieved.

The preceding discussion has dealt with representative examples of the noise levels, performance levels and weight increments which may be incurred when the nozzles evaluated in this study were implemented on an advanced



Summary of Projected Flight Performance and Suppression Characteristics. Figure 8-9.

	10% V	'CE Engine	20% VC	E Engine
	Takeoff	Cut Back	Takeoff	Cut Back
Nominal Net Thrust/Nominal Gross Thrust	44,462/55971	23845/32,353	44,462/57023	23845/33169
Altitude, ft	006	1040	006	1040
Aircraft Speed (ft/sec)	397	397	397	397
Total weight Flow (lbm/sec)	758	588	840	652
Mixed Jet Velocity (ft/sec)	2375	1762	2184	1637
Mixed Pressure Ratio	3.23	2.16	2.82	2.05

Summary of Aircraft and Engine Parameters Used for Jet Noise Estimates. Table 8-2.

- ----

t Characteristics	Weight	loise, Performance and riable Cycle Engine.	Summary of N for a 10% Va
t Characteristics	Weight	oise, Performance and	Summary of N

	Performs	nce, Cfg	Suppressor Weight	EPNL	EPNL	Traded
Configuration	T/0	C/B	Increment	SI.	Comm.	
AR = 2.1 32-Chute	0.927	0.912	1130	106.0	104.0	105
(AR) = 1.75 40-Shallow-Chute	0.897	0.908	490	108.6	109.8	109.2
(AR) ₀ = 2.0 36-Chute	0.939	0.924	1150	108.9	104.4	106.9
(AR) = 2.0 36-Chute + Ejector	0.942	0.898	3100	107.2	107.1	107.2
54-element Coplanar	0.955	0.937	390	112.0	105.3	110.0
Fully Mixed Conical ⁽¹⁾ Nozzle	0.986	0.986	0	115.1	113.1	114.1

(1) Predicted based on reference 17.

Table 8-4. Summary of Noise, Performance and Weight Characteristics for a 20% Variable Cycle Engine.

			Suppressor Weight			
Configuration	Performan T/O	ce, Cfg C/B	Increments, lbs	EPNL SL	EPNL Comm.	Traded EPNL
AR = 2.1 32-Chute	0.922	0.91	1280	104	103.2	103.6
(AR) = 1.75 40-Shallow-Chute	0.898	0.918	550	106.8	109.1	107.9
(AR) = 2.0 36-Chute	0.934	0.922	1300	106.3	104.5	105.4
$(AR)_{o} = 2.0$ 36-Chute + Ejector	0.936	0.89	3500	105.5	104.3	104.9
54-Element Coplanar Mixer	0.952	0.932	077	108.5	105.2	106.8
Fully Mixed Conical ⁽¹⁾ Nozzle	0.986	0.986		113.4	111.4	112.4

(1) Predicted based on reference 17.

technology variable cycle engine. However, the levels which may be achieved utilizing these designs are strong function of the mission and thrust requirements for a given aircraft and do not represent a lower limit with regard to noise suppression capability. In fact, these designs were evolved in Reference 3 (based primarily on static noise data) and using the results of the current program, both the aerodynamic performance levels and the suppression levels could be improved by further design studies.

9.0 CONCLUSIONS

This report describes the experimental investigation of the effect of flight on five suppressor nozzle designs. The suppression characteristics were established for the five suppressor nozzle designs in terms of peak noise characteristics, directivity and spectra as a function of flight Mach number.

The effect of flight on the peak noise characteristics of suppressors was found to vary as a function of mass average velocity. At high velocities for example, suppressors actually realize more peak noise reduction than a conical nozzle. However, at mass average velocities below 2000 ft/sec, suppressors generally lost 0 to 5 PNdB suppression in flight. On a directivity basis, flight reduces the noise in the aft quadrant, causes modest change at 90°, and causes only slight changes relative to static in the forward quadrant. Spectrum changes are dependent on frequency, angle, and flight velocity. Overall, no reduction of high frequency noise occured, even in the aft quadrant, except for the 54-element coplanar mixer nozzle. The flight effect on this configuration resembles more closely that of a conical nozzle. All the "optimum" suppressors tested exhibited lower noise levels in flight than statically and were lower in noise than the conical nozzle in flight.

The acoustic results of incorporating convergent-divergent chutes in the 36-chute suppressor design were inconclusive from the point of view of affecting the shock noise contribution to the total measured noise, especially on a peak PNL basis. A suppressor on a single flow cycle was found to be more effective in shock noise reduction than only suppressing the outer stream of a dual flow nozzle. This is attributed to two effects: 1) the partial span forward quadrant data is correlated as a function of mixed flow Mach number, which may not be the proper correlating parameter, 2) if the inner stream is at supercritical pressure ratio, the shock noise would not be influenced by the suppressor and would resemble that of an unsuppressed plug nozzle.

The addition of a treated ejector generally improved peak flight noise suppression 1 to 3 PNdB. The suppression characteristics of a 54-element coplanar mixer nozzle for conventional cycle conditions in the high velocity regime was substantially less than most suppressor designs. It was found that the suppression could be improved by reducing the inner flow velocity to zero. This 54-element coplanar mixer nozzle was the only design which had equivalent static and flight suppression levels for the mass average velocity range evaluated.

Overall, flight effects for suppressors were demonstrated to be a function of the specific suppressor design. Suppressing only the outer stream of dual flow nozzles was found to be slightly less effective than suppressing the entire stream on a single flow nozzle. The loss in suppression effectiveness is between 1 and 2 PNdB. In general, noise change due to cycle variation at a given mass average velocity, was found to be more dominant for configurations having smaller outer to inner flow area ratios. For example, variance up to 5 PNdB for a given mass average velocity was found for a 40-shallow-chute nozzle.

The addition of a mechanical suppressor increases weight, reduces performance and may have less favorable peak noise flight effect. Nevertheless, for a given gross takeoff weight, payload, and specified noise goal, a suppressor allows the use of a smaller engine, which should result in a range advantage over an unsuppressed system, because adding a suppressor is less costly than reducing noise by enlarging the engine to reduce jet velocity. Overall, suppression characteristics measured statically are different than in flight and are a function of the specific compressor design.

APPENDIX A

SUMMARY OF THERMODYNAMIC AND ACOUSTIC DATA

This appendix contains a summary of the test data obtained during the subject program. Thermodynamic and acoustic properties are documented for each of the data points. Thermodynamic conditions are presented for the individual stream in terms of pressure ratio (P_T/P_0) , stagnation temperature (T_T) and jet velocity (V). Subscripts "0" and "i" are used to denote inner and outer stream conditions for dual flow nozzles. Also, for the dual flow nozzle configurations, a similar set of mass averaged (mixed) flow parameters are presented. The external flow velocity of the tertiary stream is also presented in terms of V_{FS} . The acoustic results are presented in terms of PNL and OASPL levels at the 50, 90, and maximum noise angles.
Table A-1. 32-Chute Nozzle Test Matrix.

Model No. 1 AR = 2.1 Config. 32 Chute AFS = 338 in.² A₁ = 26.15 in.²

_					_			-	_		_	-	_		_			_			_		_	_	_		_	_	_			_	
		POASPL	88.5 07 4	84.5	94.8	99.3	75.0	100.5	69.8 2.5	83.2	9.26	92.1	88.1	82.3		70.8		0.67	80.1	87.2	81.2	93.0	98.7	12.8	100.3	68.8	80.0	0.19	C 83	81 S	7.1	72.8	78.1
		TNdd	92.3	91.4	97.8	102.6	84.3	103.9	19.7	0.16	98.7	95.2	92.9	90.5	!	80.4		87.8	0.00 8.88	916	89.9	96.7	101.3	82.6	103.7	80.3	0.68	0.170	1. 94	1.01	86.7	82.3	87.5
	Peak	6	120	110	140	140	100	140	110	100	140	100	120	110	!	110]]	110	011	120	120	100	140	100	140	100	110	120		120	120	120	120 1
deline		OASPL	84.2 07 3	80.9	94.7	6.99	73.9	100.5	69.5	81.7	95.6	84.4	84.9	80.4	ļ	70.3		77.6	78.7	83.0	80.4	87.0	98.0	1.11	100.3	68.9	19.3	24.0	1 13	1.19	77.1	72.8	78.1
0 ft S1		ING	89.5	89.3	96.3	94.7	83.2	95.3	79.5	85.2	93.4	94.1	90.5	88.3	87.9	7.9.7	89.3	85.8	86.4	88.4	87.5	91.1	93.5	82.0	94.7	79.6	87.8	2.00		. 88	84.1	80.0	84.9
240	90	OASPL	80.3	79.2	88.0	86.1	72.7	86.6	0.69	75.4	84.4	82.9	80.9	78.3	78.6	69.3	79.2	75.7	76.8	78.7	77.0	81.9	84.4	70.8	85.8	68.2	76.3	80.0		2.00	73.6	69.3	74.6
		INJ	81.8	81.4	84.8	89.2	75.4	88.5	6.69	84.3	84.0	81.5	78.9	76.5		69.4]	74.5	75.0	5.18	81.3	85.5	89.4	75.4	91.3	74.0	84.9	2.02	1.10	70 0 0 C	76.1	73.0	76.6
	50	OASPL	73.5	72.2	77.2	79.9	66.3	79.8	60.8 	23.5	76.5	74.2	72.0	69.3		60.6	!	66.7	67.7	72 6	71.1	77.2	79.5	67.9	81.7	63.4	72.9	4.0/		1.12	67.1	63.0	68.0
		$[F_{g}(T_{o}/T_{sm}^{00})^{\omega-1}]$	37.8	37.6	38.2	38.8	37.9	36.9	38.7	40.5	7.75	36.8	35.7	34.7	35.1	37.7	35.8	35.5	8. CL	97.6	37.6	38.1	38.8	37.8	39.3	39.0	41.7	7.10	, .pc	1./C	35.6	35.8	35.6
		log ß	-0.087	-0.157	0.010	0.060	-0.574	-0.066	-0.512	-0.014	-0.002	-0.057	-0.165	-0.384	-0.274	1	-0.232	-0.681		-0 078	-0.015	0.004	0.055	-0.577	0.085	-0.386	-0.006	-0.04	000.0-		-0.640	1	-0.440
	^	FS ft/sec	00	0	0	0	0	0	0	- c		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	141	140	138	142	140	144	140	142	6 7 7		041	141	140	140
		V1 ft/sec	2000	1819	2393	2581	1410	2610	1150	1400	26.72	2298	2154	1913	2007	1219	1959	1669	1742	1606	1824	2376	2561	1423	2640	1206	1576	1447	1761	1021	1508	1414	1743
	Inner	т _{т1} • R	1333	1206	1640	1745	938	1765	613	681 737	1728	1714	1716	1627	1660	829	1520	1357	1366	5961	1207	1634	1732	926	1743	639	731	1751	1	070	1345	1230	1383
		(PT/Po)	2.706	700.0	3.220	3.681	1.971	3.768	1.997	3.144	3.168	2.774	2.409	2.048	2.179	1.759	2.262	1.917	1.650	151 6	2.480	3.223	3.681	1.972	4.023	2.086	3.201	1.1/4	1 7 5 1	10/-1	1.929	1.660	2 017
		Point		4 ~	• • •	\$	9	2	œ (۰ 10	1	17	11	14	15	16	17	18	61 02		. m	4	ŝ	9	2	~	9:	12	4 4	9 2	18	19	20

: ;

•

Table A-1. 32-Chute Nozzle Test Matrix (Concluded).

15 1n.² Model No. 1 AR = 2.1 Config. 32 Chure

	•
	-
	ñ
	-
	- 2
-	-
~	
2	~
8	
υ	. 0
	-
N	
3	æ
	m
٠	1
÷.	
-	
-	

<.	
ta.2	
338	
	ł
AFS	l

$D0$ 90° 90° $Poth$ $Poth$ $D6$ 31.8 72.2 $B1.2$ 77.4 $B8.1$ $B2.1$ 120 91.6 $B2.1$ 1000 31.8 72.2 $B1.2$ 77.4 $B8.1$ $B2.1$ 120 91.6 82.1 120 91.6 82.1 91.7 91.1 91.7 91.1 91.7 91.1 91.7 91.1 91.7 91.1 91.7 91.1 91.1 91.7 91.1	Inner	Inner			Γ					24	00 ft	ideline			Π
Interfactor Distribution FNL Dastribution PNL POASTL PDL PDL POASTL PDL POASTL PDL POASTL PDL POASTL PDL	- N			V			•	8		8			Peak		
J7.8 72.2 81.2 77.4 88.1 82.1 120 91.6 82.7 38.1 70.3 89.3 50.1 90.5 84.7 120 94.1 87.3 38.1 70.3 87.5 81.2 91.7 85.7 100 96.1 91.4 38.1 70.0 88.2 81.7 91.7 85.7 100 96.1 91.4 39.4 60.9 71.7 85.2 70.7 80 80.4 71.9 39.4 61.7 79.5 72.1 85.9 72.7 100 84.7 71.9 39.4 62.9 70.1 82.2 70.1 82.9 72.7 90.4 97.3 39.7 76.8 86.2 82.1 91.4 120 94.0 87.3 39.7 76.8 86.2 86.3 86.4 120 97.3 72.3 31.7 70.0 71.1 85.0 86.4 87.3 87.4	$\left(P_{T}/P_{O}\right)_{1}$ $T_{T}_{1} \cdot R$ f_{T}/sec f_{C}/sec Log B	Tr ₁ R fr/sec fr/sec Log B	Vi FS fr/sec ft/sec Log B	FS ft/sec Log B	log f		[Fs(T _o /T _{sm}) ^{w-1}]	OASPL	PNL	OASPL	PNL	OASPL	8	PPNL	POASPL
36.1 74.8 83.5 80.1 90.5 64.7 120 94.1 81.7 24.1 89.8 120 94.1 91.5 31.7 57.6 86.5 78.7 120 96.1 91.7	2.741 1344 2018 279 -0.080	1344 2018 279 -0.080	2018 279 -0.080	279 -0.080	-0.080		37.8	72.2	81.2	77.4	88.1	82.1	120	91.6	82.8
37.6 70.3 79.3 75.6 86.6 78.2 120 88.0 96.7 91.7 85.7 100 86.0 96.7 91.3 91.7 85.7 100 86.7 91.7 91.7 96.7 91.4 95.7 91.4 95.7 91.4 95.7 91.4 95.7 91.4 95.7 91.6 91.6 91.6 91.6 91.6 91.6 91.6 91.6 91.6 91.7 91.7 91.7 91.7 91.7 91.7 91.6 91.7 91.6 91.6 91.7 <td>3.019 1488 2211 280 -0.02</td> <td>1488 2211 280 -0.02</td> <td>2211 280 -0.02</td> <td>280 -0.02</td> <td>-0.02</td> <td>-</td> <td>38.1</td> <td>74.8</td> <td>83.5</td> <td>80.1</td> <td>90.5</td> <td>84.7</td> <td>120</td> <td>94.1</td> <td>87.9</td>	3.019 1488 2211 280 -0.02	1488 2211 280 -0.02	2211 280 -0.02	280 -0.02	-0.02	-	38.1	74.8	83.5	80.1	90.5	84.7	120	94.1	87.9
38.1 76.4 84.7 81.2 91.7 85.7 100 96.7 91.7 37.6 64.8 74.9 70.3 82.2 70.7 80.8 82.5 71.7 96.4 91.4 91.4 91.4 91.4 91.4 91.4 91.4 91.4 91.7 80.5 80.3 80.5 80.3 80.4 71.4 71.7 71.4 71.7 71.4 71.7 71.4 71.7 71.7 81.2 71.7 81.2 81.2 71.7 81.6 71.7 81.6 71.7 81.6 71.7 81.6 71.7 81.6 81.7 71.7 81.7 71.7 81.7 71.7 81.6 71.7 81.7 71.7 81.7 71.7 81.7 71.7 81.7 71.7 81.7 71.7 81.7 71.7 81.7 71.7 81.7 71.7 81.7 71.7 81.7 71.7	2.466 1209 1822 280 -0.157	1209 1822 280 -0.157	1822 280 -0.157	280 -0.157	-0.157		37.6	70.3	79.3	75.6	86.6	78.2	120	88.0	78.6
18.7 79.0 88.2 83.7 94.1 89.6 120 98.4 95.3 130.4 64.8 74.9 70.3 82.2 70.7 80 80.4 97.3 130.4 65.7 79.5 72.1 83.9 72.7 100 84.7 71 130.4 65.7 79.5 72.1 83.9 72.7 100 84.7 71 130.7 76.8 86.2 72.1 85.9 72.7 100 84.7 73 130.7 76.8 86.2 62.3 92.8 86.6 70.3 87.9 73 130.7 76.8 86.2 62.3 92.8 86.6 70.9 87.9 73 130.7 76.8 86.4 77.9 84.6 70.9 87.2 79.7 70 130.7 70.0 71.4 66.4 77.9 84.6 70.9 87.2 77 70 131.8 66.4 77.9	3.215 1635 2375 274 0.00	1635 2375 274 0.00	2375 274 0.00	274 0.00	8	m	38.1	76.4	84.7	81.2	91.7	85.7	9	96.7	91.4
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	3.659 1728 2555 278 0.054	1728 2555 278 0.054	2555 278 0.054	278 0.054	0.054		38.7	0.07	88.2	83.7	94.1	89.8	120	98.4	95.8
39.4 80.9 90.1 84.9 94.9 97.3 140 160.4 97.3 41.7 78.6 84.8 74.1 85.9 78.5 100 84.7 73.7 40.5 67.7 73.7 68.2 86.3 86.3 86.3 86.3 86.3 86.3 73.7 75.8 86.7 73.7 76.8 37.7 76.8 86.2 62.3 92.8 86.7 120 87.9 78.3 35.7 74.6 83.0 80.4 81.4 120 87.3 79.3 35.7 70.6 81.7 75.8 86.4 79.7 120 87.3 35.7 70.6 81.0 86.4 77.9 86.4 90.2 80.2 79.3 35.6 67.1 80.0 76.5 88.0 80.2 80.2 79.3 35.6 67.1 80.0 76.5 88.0 80.2 80.2 79.3 35.6 67.2 <td>1.968 950 1417 279 -0.585</td> <td>950 1417 279 -0.585</td> <td>1417 279 -0.585</td> <td>279 -0.585</td> <td>-0. 585</td> <td></td> <td>37.8</td> <td>64.8</td> <td>74.9</td> <td>70.3</td> <td>82.2</td> <td>70.7</td> <td>8</td> <td>82.5</td> <td>71.9</td>	1.968 950 1417 279 -0.585	950 1417 279 -0.585	1417 279 -0.585	279 -0.585	-0. 585		37.8	64.8	74.9	70.3	82.2	70.7	8	82.5	71.9
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	4.014 1734 2632 282 0.084	1734 2632 282 0.084	2632 282 0.084	282 0.084	0.084	-	39.4	80.9	90.1	84.9	94.9	97.3	140	160.4	97.3
40.5 67.7 79.5 72.1 83.9 72.7 100 84.7 73.7 37.7 76.6 84.8 74.1 85.9 78.5 100 89.4 73.7 35.7 76.6 84.8 74.1 85.9 78.5 100 89.4 73.7 35.7 74.6 86.2 91.4 86.6 79.7 120 94.9 87.3 34.7 70.0 73.7 75.8 86.8 79.7 120 94.9 87.3 35.0 71.1 80.4 76.5 120 94.1 87.3 79.3 35.6 67.2 76.5 88.0 86.4 77.9 86.1 77.9 35.6 67.2 76.5 88.3 86.4 77.9 86.1 77.9 35.6 67.2 76.5 88.3 86.4 77.9 87.2 77.9 35.6 67.2 76.5 88.4 77.9 86.3 77.9 86.1 77.9 35.6 67.2 76.5 88.4 77.9 88.3	2.086 642 1209 281 -0.386	642 1209 281 -0.386	1209 281 -0.386	281 -0.386	-0.386		39.0	62.9	73.7	68.2	80.3	68.3	8	80.5	68.3
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	2.638 705 1432 284 -0.112	705 1432 284 -0.112	1432 284 -0.112	284 -0.112	-0.112		40.5	67.7	79.5	72.1	83.9	72.7	100	84.7	73.9
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	3.221 737 1587 279 -0.003	737 1587 279 -0.003	1587 279 -0.00	279 -0.003	0.0	_ `	41.7	78.6	84.8	74.1	85.9	78.5	100	6.98	78.3
36.7 74.6 83.0 80.4 91.4 84.6 120 94.0 87.1 35.7 72.6 81.2 78.3 89.3 81.4 120 91.1 82.3 35.7 70.0 81.2 78.3 86.4 77.9 66.4 90 77.9 66. 37.7 60.8 71.4 66.4 77.9 66.4 90 77.9 66. 35.6 67.2 76.5 88.3 80.4 120 89.2 79.9 35.6 63.0 77.6 88.6 87.7 71.9 66.4 77.9 66. 35.6 63.0 77.6 88.6 87.5 77.7 120 87.2 77.7 35.6 63.0 77.6 88.6 86.7 77.7 120 87.2 77.7 35.6 63.0 77.6 88.6 86.7 77.7 120 87.2 77.7 35.6 63.0 77.4 88.6 86.7 77.7 120 87.2 77.7 37.6 70.9 <td< td=""><td>3.178 1745 2446 278 -0.001</td><td>1745 2446 278 -0.001</td><td>2446 278 -0.001</td><td>278 -0.001</td><td>-0.001</td><td></td><td>37.7</td><td>76.8</td><td>86.2</td><td>62.3</td><td>92.8</td><td>86.7</td><td>120</td><td>95.9</td><td>92.2</td></td<>	3.178 1745 2446 278 -0.001	1745 2446 278 -0.001	2446 278 -0.001	278 -0.001	-0.001		37.7	76.8	86.2	62.3	92.8	86.7	120	95.9	92.2
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	2.774 1746 2320 276 -0.06	1746 2320 276 -0.06	2320 276 -0.06	276 -0.06	-0.06	~	36.7	74.6	83.0	80.4	91.4	84.6	120	94.0	87.8
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	2.410 1712 2152 277 -0.165	1712 2152 277 -0.165	2152 277 -0.165	277 -0.165	-0.165		35.7	72.6	81.2	78.3	89.3	81.4	120	91.1	82.9
35.0 71.1 80.0 76.9 88.0 80.2 120 89.9 80. 37.7 60.8 71.4 66.4 77.9 66.4 90 77.9 66.4 35.8 67.10 80.4 76.8 86.7 79.9 76.5 120 87.2 86.1 35.8 67.0 71.0 80.4 77.9 66.4 90 77.9 66. 35.8 67.1 75.5 68.7 79.9 71.9 120 87.2 71.7 35.7 79.9 77.3 85.5 77.7 120 87.2 77.7 37.6 77.8 74.3 85.5 77.7 120 87.2 77.7 37.6 70.9 80.5 91.4 85.0 80.7 77.7 77.7 38.1 70.5 85.2 80.5 91.4 85.0 87.2 77.7 38.1 70.9 80.5 91.4 85.0 90.5 86.7 77.7 38.1 70.9 80.5 91.4 85.0 80.7	2.064 1626 1922 277 -0.367	1626 1922 277 -0.367	1922 277 -0.367	277 -0.367	-0.367		34.7	20.0	73.7	75.8	86.8	79.7	120	89.2	79.7
37.7 60.8 71.4 66.4 77.9 66.4 90 77.9 66. 35.6 71.0 80.4 76.8 88.3 80.4 120 90.4 80.1 35.6 63.0 76.5 88.3 80.4 120 90.4 80.1 35.7 63.0 75.8 75.3 88.3 80.4 120 97.2 71.7 35.7 68.6 77.8 74.3 85.5 77.7 120 87.2 77.7 35.7 68.6 77.8 74.3 85.5 77.7 120 87.2 77.7 37.6 70.9 80.4 76.5 88.2 74.1 88.6 87.2 77.7 37.6 70.9 80.4 76.4 88.6 80.7 120 90.5 77.7 37.6 70.9 86.7 78.8 81.0 120 90.5 78.7 77.7 38.1 76.5 88.1 77.4 88.6 80.7 120 90.1 96.1 37.8 65.4 77.4	2.157 1680 2007 277 -0.288	1680 2007 277 -0.288	2007 277 -0.288	277 -0.288	-0.288	- 1	35.0	1.17	80.0	76.9	88.0	80.2	120	89.9	80.2
35.8 71.0 80.4 76.8 88.3 80.4 120 90.4 80.3 33.6 67.2 76.5 71.2 84.6 76.5 120 90.4 80.3 35.6 67.2 76.5 71.7 120 86.1 76.5 35.7 68.6 77.8 74.5 85.5 77.7 120 87.2 77.7 37.9 77.8 82.6 86.7 78.8 120 87.2 77.7 37.6 70.9 80.4 75.5 86.7 78.8 120 90.5 80.7 77.7 38.1 76.5 88.5 80.6 80.7 120 90.5 80.7 77.7 38.1 76.5 88.6 80.7 120 90.5 78.7 78.6 38.1 76.7 88.5 70.9 92.9 90.4 96.1 90.4 39.4 88.6	1.757 819 1211 281 0	819 1211 281 0	1211 281 0	281 0	0		37.7	60.8	71.4	66.4	77.9	66.4	6	77.9	6.99
35.6 67.2 76.5 73.2 84.6 76.5 120 86.1 76.5 35.8 61.0 72.5 68.7 79.9 77.7 120 87.2 71.7 35.8 63.0 72.5 68.7 79.9 77.7 120 87.2 71.7 37.9 72.8 82.4 77.4 88.6 80.7 120 87.2 71.7 38.1 76.5 85.2 80.6 91.4 85.0 100 96.1 86.7 78.8 38.1 76.5 85.2 80.6 91.4 85.0 100 96.1 94.1 37.8 65.1 70.3 82.9 100 92.1 94.1 94.6 97.1 94.1 94.6 97.1 94.6 97.1 94.6 97.1 94.6 97.1 94.6 97.1 94.6 97.1 94.6 94.6 97.1 94.6 97.1 94.6 97.1 94.6 97.1 94.6 97	2.252 1516 1951 277 -0.238	1516 1951 277 -0.238	1951 277 -0.238	277 -0.238	-0.238		35.8	11.0	80.4	76.8	88.3	80.4	120	90.4	80.4
35.8 63.0 72.5 68.7 79.9 71.9 120 87.2 71.7 35.7 79.4 85.5 77.7 120 87.2 77.7 35.7 79.4 85.5 77.7 120 87.2 77.7 37.9 72.8 82.4 77.4 86.6 77.7 120 87.2 77.7 37.1 76.5 85.2 80.6 91.4 85.0 90.5 80.3 38.1 76.5 85.2 80.6 91.4 85.0 90.5 80.5 38.1 76.5 85.2 80.6 91.4 85.0 90.1 94.1 39.4 81.9 93.3 94.6 97.0 90.1 94.1 39.0 64.0 70.3 85.5 80.5 80.6 80.1 96.1 94.1 39.4 65.7 81.4 91.0 91.0 92.1 96.1 96.1 96.1 39.1 65.6 81.4	1.924 1343 1664 280 -0.658	1343 1664 280 -0.658	1664 280 -0.658	280 -0.658	-0.658		35.6	67.2	76.5	73.2	84.6	76.5	120	86.1	76.5
35.7 68.6 77.8 74.3 85.5 77.7 120 87.2 77.7 37.9 72.8 82.4 77.4 88.6 80.7 120 89.2 77.3 37.6 70.9 80.4 75.6 88.6 80.7 120 88.5 80.7 37.6 70.9 80.4 75.6 88.6 80.7 120 88.5 78.3 38.1 76.5 88.2 70.9 80.4 88.1 120 99.1 94.1 38.8 79.4 88.9 83.3 94.1 88.1 120 99.1 94.1 37.8 65.8 70.9 82.9 70.9 90 82.9 71.9 39.4 81.0 91.3 82.5 140 99.1 94.1 39.0 64.0 75.1 68.5 80.5 68.6 80.8 71.9 39.7 74.9 87.0 77.0 89.1 120 99.1 94.1	1.650 1238 1412 279 0	1238 1412 279 0	1412 279 0	279 0	0		35.8	63.0	72.5	68.7	79.9	6.17	120	87.2	71.9
37.6 72.8 82.4 77.4 88.6 80.7 120 90.5 80.5 37.6 70.9 80.4 75.6 86.7 78.8 120 90.5 78.3 38.1 70.5 89.4 75.6 86.7 78.8 120 99.1 78.3 38.1 76.5 88.5 80.6 94.1 88.1 120 99.1 94.1 38.1 76.5 88.9 83.3 94.4 88.1 120 99.1 94.1 39.4 81.0 90.8 84.3 94.6 95.5 140 99.1 94.1 39.4 81.0 70.9 82.9 70.9 90.8 84.3 94.6 95.5 140 99.1 96.1 39.0 64.0 75.1 68.5 80.5 68.6 80.8 88.1 71.9 39.7 70.9 90.2 74.9 91.0 78.6 100 89.1 96.3 31.7	2.040 1374 1751 281 -0.408	13/4 1751 281 -0.408	1751 281 -0.408	281 -0.408	-0.408	_	35.7	68.6	8.11	74.3	85.5	1.11	120	87.2	1.11
37.6 70.9 80.4 75.6 86.7 78.8 120 88.5 78.4 38.1 76.5 85.2 80.6 91.4 88.1 120 96.1	2.746 1335 2013 367 -0.079	1335 2013 367 -0.079	2013 367 -0.079	367 -0.079	-0.079		37.9	72.8	82.4	17.4	88.6	80.7	120	90.5	80.7
38.1 76.5 85.2 60.6 91.4 85.0 100 96.1 86.1 38.8 79.4 88.9 88.9 88.3 94.4 88.0 99.1 94.1 38.8 65.8 78.9 88.3 94.6 95.5 140 99.1 94.1 39.4 81.0 90.8 84.3 94.6 95.5 140 99.1 96. 39.4 81.0 90.8 84.3 94.6 95.5 140 99.1 96. 39.0 64.0 75.1 68.5 80.5 68.6 80 80.8 68. 41.9 73.6 85.6 81.4 91.2 83.1 120 95.3 90. 37.7 62.7 73.4 67.2 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.6 67.6 67.2 67.2 90 78.6 67.6 67.6 67.6 67.6	2.473 1205 1821 367 -0.155	1205 1821 367 -0.155	1821 367 -0.155	367 -0.155	-0.155		37.6	70.9	80.4	75.6	86.7	78.8	120	88.5	78.8
38.8 79.4 88.9 63.3 94.1 88.1 120 94.1 94.1 37.8 65.8 76.2 70.9 82.9 70.9 90.1 94.1 94.1 37.8 65.8 76.2 70.9 82.9 70.9 90 82.9 71. 39.0 64.0 75.1 68.5 80.5 64.0 99.1 96.6 41.9 73.6 85.9 74.9 87.0 78.6 100 89.8 78. 37.7 76.9 85.6 80.14 91.2 83.1 120 95.3 90.5 37.7 62.7 73.4 67.2 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2	3.208 1640 2378 366 -0.003	1640 2378 366 -0.003	2378 366 -0.003	366 -0.003	-0.003		38.1	76.5	85.2	80.6	91.4	85.0	100	96.1	86.9
37.8 65.8 76.2 70.9 82.9 70.9 90 82.9 71. 39.4 81.0 90.8 84.3 94.6 95.5 140 99.1 96. 39.4 81.0 90.8 84.3 94.6 95.5 140 99.1 96. 39.0 64.0 75.1 685.5 80.5 68.6 80.8 68.1 41.9 73.6 85.9 74.9 91.9 85.1 120 95.3 90.3 37.7 76.9 85.1 80.4 91.9 85.1 120 95.3 90.3 50.3 90.4 61.2 70.4 61.2 70.4 61.2 70.3 90.4 61.2	3.677 1728 2558 366 -0.55	1728 2558 366 -0.55	2558 366 -0.55	366 -0.55	-0.33		38.8	79.4	88.9	83.3	94.1	88.1	120	99.1	0.46
39.4 81.0 90.8 84.3 94.6 95.5 140 99.1 96. 39.0 64.0 75.1 68.5 80.5 68.6 80 80.8 68. 41.9 73.6 85.9 74.9 81.4 91.0 89.8 78.6 80.8 68. 37.7 76.9 85.5 74.9 81.4 91.9 83.1 120 95.3 90.3 35.7 76.9 85.6 81.4 91.9 83.1 120 95.3 90.3 35.7 62.7 73.4 67.2 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.6 67.2	1.967 947 1414 367 -0.590	947 1414 367 -0.590	1414 367 -0.590	367 -0.590	-0. 590		37.8	65.8	76.2	20.9	82.9	70.9	90	82.9	1.17
39.0 64.0 75.1 68.5 80.5 68.6 80 80.8 68.4 41.9 73.6 85.9 74.9 87.0 78.6 100 89.8 78.3 37.7 76.9 85.6 80.1 91.9 83.1 120 95.3 90.3 37.7 74.9 83.7 80.1 91.2 83.1 120 92.3 90.3 37.7 62.7 73.4 67.2 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 66.6 67.2 67.2 66.7 67.2 67.2 67.2 67.2 67.2 67.2 67.6 67.2 67.6 67.2 67.6 67.2	4.014 1733 2632 366 0.084	1733 2632 366 0.084	2632 366 0.084	366 0.084	0.084		39.4	81.0	90.8	84.3	94.6	95.5	140	1.66	96.3
8 41.9 73.6 85.9 74.9 87.0 78.6 100 89.8 78. 1 37.7 76.9 85.6 81.4 91.9 85.1 120 95.3 90. 9 35.6 74.9 83.7 80.1 91.2 83.1 120 92.9 85. 9 35.6 73.4 67.2 78.1 120 92.9 85. 37.7 62.7 73.4 67.2 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2	2.087 648 1216 371 -0.38	648 1216 371 -0.38	1216 371 -0.38	371 -0.38	-0, 38	N	39.0	64.0	75.1	68.5	80.5	68.6	8	80.8	68.6
1 37.7 76.9 85.6 81.4 91.9 85.1 120 95.3 90. 9 35.6 74.9 83.7 80.1 91.2 83.1 120 92.9 85. 37.7 62.7 73.4 67.2 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 67.2 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 67.2 90 78.6 67.2 67.2 78.2 90 78.6 67.2 67.2	3.301 738 1602 369 0.00	738 1602 369 0.00	1602 369 0.00	369 0.00	0.0	80	41.9	73.6	85.9	74.9	87.0	78.6	100	89.8	78.6
9 35.6 74.9 83.7 80.1 91.2 83.1 120 92.9 85. 37.7 62.7 73.4 67.2 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.	3.176 1748 2448 366 -0.00	1748 2448 366 -0.00	2448 366 -0.00	366 -0.00	9.0	-	37.7	76.9	85.6	81.4	91.9	85.1	120	95.3	90.1
37.7 62.7 73.4 67.2 78.6 67.2 90 78.6 67.	2.761 1763 2327 365 -0.06	1763 2327 365 -0.06	2327 365 -0.06	365 -0.06	-0.06	6	35.6	74.9	83.7	80.1	91.2	83.1	120	92.9	85.2
	1.758 829 1219 368 0	829 1219 368 0	1219 368 0	368 0	0	-	37.7	62.7	73.4	67.2	78.6	67.2	90	78.6	67.4

129

L Beach

Table A-2. 40-Shallow-Chute Nozzle Test Matrix.

	Э
	- 22
	-
-	
-	
-	~ *
-	•
-	- 7
	-
•	
۰.	
	. ••
	- 1
· •	
~	
-	-
2	
-	

ે ક Ap. 1

ία. '

2	
-	
· •	
•	
-	
×.	
÷.	
c .	
-	
æ	
~	
. •	
· ·	
~ `	
-	
÷.	
с.	
-	
Ξ.	
•	

•	
•	
ć	
-	i
Ē	Į
2	ĺ
1	
k	
	Į
-	
5	Ì
	1

<u>×</u>	
	1
~	1
· •	
•	
2	
٠.	
	- t
·	
~	
-	
	1
æ	
-	
~ *	
*	
	1
A i	
	1
с.	1
-	1
÷.	
~	

		PUASPI	60003 6012 5 10 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	i
		TNdd	100 3 11 1 3 10 1 1 5 1 5 1 5 1 5 1 5 1 5 1 5 1 5 1	r
	Peak	r		
ideline		OASPL		
00 ft s		JN4	00494 986 468 647 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	2
1	06	JASPI.	2009 4 200 5 5 6 2 2 5 5 2 5 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	
	°.	INd	2003 - 080 - 2003 2003 - 2013 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 -	4
	20	ASP1	194440 000110 03910 139555 11977 13985 2000 68888 20288 68260 99253 225 225 225 247 2777	
		0 [1		
	10 Logic	[Fs(1,,'T _{SE})	500000 0000000000000000000000000000000	
		1.05		-0.141
		ft/sec		¢
		-	 1.1.6.10 1.1.6.10<	4.1.1
		$V_{i} = V_{i}$		1.139
ę	-	ft/se.		1 1 4 1
Average		ж +		11-12
f sek		1		2.1001
		ft)sei		1940
Duter		н.		1 574
		(P. 19.1)	11111111111111111111111111111111111111	1.934
	;	11		1444
liner		17, *K	문화동물 이상훈련물 성감수권을 중 물 질하여 성격문장로 상가했다.	5
		APT 1.	다양되었는 동네 동안을 통하거나 가지 다시 가지 않는다. 다양되었는 동네 동안을 통하거나 가지 다시 가지 않는다. 다이나 아이나 아이나 아이나 아이나 아이나 아이나 아이나 아이나 아이나 아	
		Point	ార్ కల్ ⁶ ెర్ ను⊠విది ≾షవసన గ్రగ్రగ్ సిగినంద సంపం.	£.

- State

Table A-2. 40-Shallow-Chute Nozzle Test Matrix (Continued).

			ы	40		~ 0		• 0	• •	· · ·	аc					3 1.	æ	£ .	- U	.,	£	. ,	ړ	د	æ	- .	
			POAS	2.6	2		5	6	26	83.	÷.	7				d d	80.	ŝ	5	÷	ŕ.	2 6		ć	æ	2	r e
			INdd	81.1	79.6	98.3 101.6	77.2	63.3	82.1 100.6	88.6	0.88		6.06	5.	100	6.92 5.48	84.1	a. 		с. Та		3 5	78.	4 ¥	84.4		9.1% 1%
ł		Peak	æ	120	120	071	120	n 091	120	120	120	120	120	120	22	120	120	22	29	120	1.20	12	120	110	0	ŝ	225
	del îne		JASPL	71.4	70.9	92.1 96.8	69.1	80.3 90.3	73.5	1.1%	80.5	70.5	82.3	87. °	96.9	0.01	80 . 5	81.4	4	72.3			4.94	72.0	80, 1	5 4 6 4	
	0 14 51		PNI.	- 7	ے م		а. , ,	86.4 2	0.01 0.01					, . 	; ;	 		ž	, ,	с. Э		; ;	÷	£.14	.		7
	240	.U6	14SP1	0.86	68.0	83.2 85.3	6. j	80.1	69.8 83.3	÷.	78.5	4.7.4 4.7.4 4.7.4		80.3		 		5 · 2 ·	ž					9.07			8 - 5 - 7
			D INd	71.5	5.12	87.3 90.1	8.8	86.7	73.4	6.9	1.91	5.12	81.1	R2.5		71.6 8.77	4.97	80.3	1.48	72.12	75.A		5.0.5	14.2	78.2	89.9	
		05	14SAL	67.5 87.0	63.0	74.9 82.5	60.9	2.6.7	0.14	-	8.05			-		~ ~ ~	9.0		 		6. B.	.	5.14	۲ ۰ . ۲	70.4	2.08	11.23
			0 1-																				-				
		10 Loris	(ToTsm)~	37.8	38.1	0,91 0,91	ۍ د مېر		19.5	8.45		×. :	14. O	4 . H	12	1. H	1.41	<u>بر</u> ج	4 4 Z	6° 11		1. C 5 3	1	6.46	ж.	•	
			8 : ¹ : F	583	,	- 500		072	904 001		95.5	1.5H	410	545	840	H.C.	00.7	91.			3			;;	1		1.18
			01 0	ဂုံ င	; c	ç c	•	= ç	q e	é	9	çe	٩	ç :	¢	- q	ć	ŝ	i i	2	<u>,</u>	ç c	: <u>-</u>	-0-	ę	ę e	e e e
		ر د د	ι./ 	51	12	33	8	32	22		140		. f.				f.	<u></u>		•				Ê,	097	98	427
			ч, °ч		1.607	1.789	2.384	3. 326	1.654	1.530	1.155					1.815	1.471	28.		1.11	1.614		.89.	3.0.8	3. 175	10.4	2.649
			v _o /v ₁		1.5%	5.150 1.902	1.012	2.014	1.515	1.581	1.302					1.5.1	1.948			1.011	1.274	1.877	1.001	1.282	1.523	5.6.1	1.250
	Ţ	>	ft/sec	1419	1242	2057	1215	2134	1319	1746	1704	1425	2020	2125	5652	65 - 1 98 - 1	1669	0/H:	1.41	1251	1682	7 199	1329	1576	1832	8677	1432
	Averag		T R	952 1719	806	1304	877	11 2/	828	1263	1163	4061	1338	1742	1737	8()5 582	7901	1130	0701	1085	1225	1591	686	1140	1 302	1576	1008
	Mass		PT/Po T	1.968	1.836	2.991 3.260	1.695	2.773	1.961	2.184	2.252	1.973	2.761	167.5	3.819	1.830	2.366	2.263	5.046	1.809	2.105	1.261	1.753	2.010	2.315	1 608	1.913
		~	ft/sec	6141	1551	2545 2618	1219	57 81	1500	2043	1161	1425	10702	2325	1952	0771 8781	7167	2306	2582	7671	1764	2107	1323	1667	1988	2532	1515
8 in. ²	Outer		T _{To} °r	952	951	1714	831	1208	194	1588	1506	326	1338	2721	12.12	950	1333	1743	0721	962	0911	9691	888	1116	1323	165/ 827	1005
• 23.75			T/P_0)0	1.968	.977	3.662	1.756	9.320	2.156	1.347	181.2	1.978	2.761	567.5	9.819	1.975	977	2.741	3.744	186.1		0.06	1.872	5.249	2.695	18.1	2.087
1n. ² , A			t/sec (F		916	1184	1204	6611	1619	: 292	1462				-	016	1033	955	8611	1408	1385	1356	1322	1300	1 304	1315	1212
 1.75 Chute 12.39 	nner		T ₁ "R f		544	569 1442	987	0101	557 842	765	164					243 262	559	[] []	15	671	14.57	£ 23	12.56	1212	12.33	1012	9101
40 Shallc		╞─	T/Po) i 1		.617	2.231		855.	803	.016	. 5 30					1.607	.832	.644	.275	. 503	867.	167	. 536	(. 537		564 264	
Model No. Config. AFS = 338		L_	Point (F		7 1	12 16 16	1		2 22	2	35 2		, ~	4 tr	- . c	- E	• •	9	12	1	1		1	18	6	2 2	132
																					-					_	

131

-

Table A-2. 40-Shallow-Chute Nozzle Test Matrix (Concluded).

- - -

Mode Cont AFS	е1 №. 2, 1 11к. 40 Sha • 319 10.2	(AR) = 1 allog Chu A ₁ = 12	1.75 ite .39 in. ² ,	. Ao = 23.	.758 in. ²																	
		liner			ter		Has	s Averag	5								241	00 Ft S	idel the			
			1.2			^			2	-	_			10.1.461.1	~	•0•	06			Peak		
uting	Total and a] ^T I ° R	ft/ser	(PT/P0)	TTo R	tt/sec	PT/P.	T _T ° R	ft/ser	$V_{i\lambda}/V_{-1}$		It/Sec	1 28 2	F _s (T,,/T _{sm})*-1]	oASPI.	INd	OASPL	PNI.	OASPL	æ	INdd	POASPL
·	14.	0.00	1205	1.12	16.50	2400	2.734	1485	2120	1.442	1.222	81.	-0.080	1.1	15.5	86.0	79.9	90.5	84.2	021	6.69	87.2
	: : :	-	1019	1.534	212	1010	1.6.	1.74	1014	166.0		Ξ.	c	17.1	4.04	70.4	63.8	6.47	70.5	8		20.5
•		1	1029	1.8.1	835	1283	1.814	748	1186	1.111	1.616		=	36.1	4.04	70.2	5.74	74.6	67.6	271	18.0	۹ e
		÷	1018	2:085	6101	1520	1.960	Ri S	1332	1.443	546.1		114.01	34.4	63.4	12.4	58.2	34.5	· · · · ·	071	51.4	2112
۲. 	*	-	10.55	2.714	1373	107	2.113	1089	1679	1.44.			-0.213	3A.1	70	9.8	1.5.	96.0	H].I.	150	8.44	41.0
•		÷	221	070 -	1602	1910	2.020	1245	1488	. 14.			-0.442	36.2	58.7	14.4	1.1	, , x	1.1	22	7.5.4	78.6
÷.		Î	1514	: • • •	1440	3, C.		1379	***	1. 141	1.3.4	47.7	-0.170	37	72.4	ND. N	17.11	4., 8		52	3.72	85.8
.:		í.		1	7.4	1		1981	001	1.554	_		-0.045	1. H.	9.47	45.4			0.44	2	0.4 4	91.1
-		, c			2	Ĩ.		2				4	162.0-	×	54.5	•		- 46	ī.	à	хн. а	80.3
2		;			24	á	202	8151			1	7	-0.113	4 H	e	x	2	4.U.4		2	;	88
-		1		7	7	:681	6.1	11.44	1200	1.145	1.133		-0.242	4.16	1.74	2 2	;;	0. 4 1	6	1.20	2. 7	31.5
+		•	2				101.2	181	18.1	1.166	105		-0.46.	17.5	-2	;	1	۶ ۲	x ,	2		ļ

Table A-3. 36-C-D Chute Nozzle Test Matrix.

•

4			ויטנור		Mass	AVPFAGE									7	00 ft S	ideline		Τ
				2			-			۲s		10 Log10		°0,	ž			eek	T
	\$ 7 	(PT:Pa)	Т, 'Я	ft/se.	1 "4/1.	ж	ftise	$V_{\alpha} N_{1}$	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	ft/sec	1.16 5	Fs(1,./1 sm) - 1	OASPL	INI	OASPL	JNI	OASPL	¢	PNL P
	-	0.9.0	3	1419	1.970		÷.,,			c	-1.581	N.7.	6.5.9	74.3	0.67	84.1	6.27	110	1.9
	_	101	1204	1827	2.445	1.04	14/2			c	-0.1.9	37.2	71.3	80.0	78.4	88.7	81.6	110	9.16
		7.6	2	2019	2.774	1917	2014			c	110.0-	34.0	74.7	84.7	80.9	90.8	87.4	130	3.4
		218.2	0021	23/10	. 81	1:00	1 010			5	-0.041	17.4	76.0	84.4	82.9	92.3	90.1	130	5.7
-			16:31	. 69.7	1. 337	1623	. 65			-	0.018	44. 4	80.2	88.8	85.4	95.6	93.5	130	6.8
		K75 .	1762	0147	3. 898	4	1.1.45			Ξ	0.075	14.1	82.1	88.6	87.7	96.5	9.66	140 1	6.60
	2	£45.1	570	1-1	1.9.1	8.7					1.021	34.1	64.9	12.8	71.2		73.6	110	6.6
, 	4211	HON.	:611	14.76	911	1058	4,4		1.44	-		H.	70.4	78.1	1.77	86.7	80.1	110	9.6
¥.		6		-	2.50	14	1413	-	1		0.115	14.	73.2	82.9	79.3	88.8	84.5	120	2.2
: 	* 		1222		661.1		1.07	×				5.47	74.3	82.3	81.3	90.4	87.2	120	4.6
	2			10.0	1 040		9	; a			-		10	000	0 70				
			;;				,					4		0.00	6	7		150	
-		-		Ť,	4	4	,	-	-	-		2	1.6/	88	85.9	9.59		130	2
		•				.001			4		: -		7.54			81.5	14.7	120	с.
				-					- - -	÷ .	a; -		8.99		9	3, 58	7.6	011	9.6 8
:				2	14.7					-			1	82.8	80.6	4.98	87.8	130	9.10
•			:	112	1. 594	26.1		1.902	5 T. C		2		83.3	90.8	87.8	8.59	9.96	140 1	3.8
	,	;	~	127	HL	150	1318	1.00.1		c		1.1	64.3	72	70.1	80.4	13.4	120	97.9
						10.87		1.238	5. 4 J.H	-			64.1	2.1.2	1.1.1	н., н	78.3	120	17.0
•	: 		:	4 22		1294	4 81	. 50M	1.151	7			5. 11	81.5	38.5	x . 70	83,8	120	
: -			- - -	•	7	14.74	6.97	1.41.	- 15		- - -	. <u>.</u>	82.0	90.0	÷.	÷. 46	44.7	1 071	1.0.1
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		;		1.64	873	1234	1.001		-1			*	2.02	× 8.4	, - ,	4	011	
: 		ĩ	:		P10 .	200	1498	1.021					44					-	
		i.		÷.		1155	1745		4.102	-	1.01		20.6	18.0	17.0		90.9	011	ж Э
ŝ	•				5. 4.7	15.1		1.63.1	1.644	-	κ		74.5	XK.		• • • • • •	1.12	1 30	
•	:	:			105	1.13	- 	1.012			;		90	6.H. S		-	а. 41	Jun 1	3
	:	Ť			1 790		991	1 2 1	110	3						;			
_	:					01.12				3				-,		, :			
		-											-	•		() ()		-	,
						•		100					2	x	x ?	7	1.21	2	
	-				r			1	444	;	-0.285		†.0,	4		ŗ	÷	110	
•	: -						- - -	- • 0	: 111	 	-0.1%5	16.5	-	- T	NU.	1 2 2	<u>بار</u>	150	4.1
		•	- - -	•				.8.	1.194	:	0.033	0.48	4.¥.	я. Х.	:	;		1-0	
;	•				. [; -		E 11 1.	0.51	1.880	с	0.026	19.1	5 T - 9		8.54				
 -			:		. 11	6.71	. x	1.1.1	2.265	-	-0.214	36.8	×	1. 11	7 X	-	4		
÷				_															
	-					141	1900		70	c	-0.109	11.1	1 22	×	-	7	1	-	

Table A-3. 36-C-D Chute Nozzle Test Matrix (Continued).

· •

(-				-							
	laner			UNLEF		×35.	Average	7									- 90	~1.de.			
		5			2					<u> </u>			11. 1. e		205		40,	_	Frak		
		11/544	$\circ (\circ_{A_{-}I_{-}A_{-}})$	1г. н	11, se.	 2	34	*			ft.ser	1	F. cl. 1. m	, (ASF	Nd in	Id S Mill	INd	15 9 1	:	FPNL	POASE
	2	24.	1.450	4	10.40		. 11	1		4	2	- 11 - 1 - 1	46.4	7 4	. A. 16.	i. a	Ĭ		110	ŗ	ŗ
	2 4 7		1.025	1.000	546		.,				,	10.015	L	76.			3	-	ž.	4	5
-	lit r	0,741	3.024	;	2122		7.7.	Ĩ	0 44 0	;	2	11, 14, 11-		7	í í	~ 1× 7		7	1.1		90.
	192	1.1	1.025	130,	20164	2.43	1221	27		-	:	1 2 2 4 7 6 -	у, н) С	.4	4	r. 80.	5	, it is a second	110	91.7	58.5
1.26		1340	10.3	1014	184.	1.744	16.01	::	14	6- ⁻ •	-	4.1.1	14.3	75.	4 4	2	2	1	120	5.16	84.4
1 106	11,2		1 11/11	Ģ	12.11		.,,	4	;				20.0	<i>.</i>	ř	4 2 ×	42			202	- 3 X
	2	_	1.80	707	1 2021			1 4			-							: : :		0.10	
ĩ,	, ,		1.025	1121	÷	ĩ	7					1141-11-	37.11	42			5	5		4 40	;;;
, r	144	1050	10.1		10407	62.1			5	•	-		1.48		-	80.1	90.0	#	001	10	88
	2.4	4-01	1.0.5		- 121				2			- 1 - C	x. 3-	22	6	9 78.	- 68 · •	-	120	90.0	1
-	;	15.417		1 - 01]		-		-		1	;					-		
													<	-	2 : 			-			
4	÷	2		100				, ,													
	-		2010	ţ				1					, ,	. 79				6 6			a
				s. X	1511		÷	1.1				·		58.	6 77.	7 74.1	8		200	86.1	19.3
				4	. 4								,	14	, ,			- -		, 	
				ļ	, <u>,</u>		; r			-		-	-		198	2	55	::			
ţ				- -	1940			1	1.41	1.1.1			-		1 87.	2 81.1			1.0	4	4 76
		1.4.1		-	2.14-0		12	2.7	-		-	10.031		77.	0 86.	3 81.	16	5	1:0	95.3	6.19
T.				151		3.014	. 7 1	14.45		1.1				15.	н ж.	9 79.	1 89.4	8.6	071 6	91.7	84.1
	1.44		- 2014 · 7	÷.,		1.1.1.1.1				1.150				74.	0 89.	5 8		00	120		4 Ug
1	474		1. 1. 1. 1			1.1	1540		10.	- - -	÷	- 191 -	4.1	5	48	8	6	5	0.1	8 46	
	÷	1	1444	173		1. 447.		1 41 1	50.	0.110		141.141		2	2.7	6 71.0			2	1.1	
			1. 201	1.1	2.20		2151	3356	X*5.	. Ah.	÷.		10,05	кu.	, R9.	×5	6	1 91.	130	100.9	96.1
;	-	£.	1.111	126	2 2	2.442	1447	181.1		×	1.5	111.	F H	7	7 80.	5 / 7н.	1.64	ur i	110	90.2	N.C.
		_		ţ	5	1.47.	5	60*1			2		42.44	2	1 22	24	80.6	2.02	201	i k	20.9
				1,000	1471	1.1.1	1200	1823			Ê.	14, 1, 14, 1		1		4	ž		-		0
			1.75		2013	01 :	1340	1107			1947	140°u	n. 1	71.	6 RI.	4 77.	A.R.	E .	c	¥.08	
			4	E. 1	×H7.	1. 1. 1.	1711	X			÷x.	-0.11-0	н. н	- 7.	7 H.	1 79.	1 89.	*	1150	93.8	44
			10.3	191		1.2.3	1141	141			547	4 UT 6	· · K	л.	0 89.	1 82.		. (6	(i 	4.1.1	90.1
			~	1521	165.	122.7	1751	1652			x	0.00.0	7.40	12.	1 40.	5 Be	1 06	3		1.01	2.5
									•												•

Table A-3. 36-C-D Chute Nozzle Test Matrix (Continued).

ļ		JASA		9.2	2.7				1.5	8.2	6.7	5.4	~	•	- 0				5	œ	6.9					3.1	1.1	مىلىم د ي ي م كن		۔ بو ت		
		NL PO	5.	<u>.</u>	8				6	- s -	6 		8	6			e - 	- «	- x	۰ ج	ء -	- · ·	ю г 	. <u>.</u>	œ - د	x 7.	- 	50	 :	<u>م</u>	57	
	2	đđ	8 0	0 88	6 0	6 0		0 10	81	0 87	0 102	0 85	68 0	66 - 0			2 		0 95	·	n 1 78	88		0 - 8 - 0		05	6 6	- 0 - 0 - 0	₹ 	14 C	5 6 	-
ine	Pea	L 6	1 12	7 12	0 12	<u> </u>			5 12	0 12	6 [13	5 12	1 13	<u> </u>			, c		3 13	ж ж	6 	11		: 	0 15	1 12				2 : a :		
Sidel		OASP	. 17	78.	82	86.		<u>-</u>	71.	78.	6	75.	H2.	- 65			: : :		88		÷.	72.		2	£2.	82.	62		2	ŝ	2 ¥	-
2400 ft	°06	ING	80.	86.0	88	8.68			80.2	R5. J	9.99	83.1	87.1	5	£ 2	: ;			5	2.5.	74.4	90		85.1	48.4	88.	5.36	5.0	2	8	, <u>,</u>	-
		OASPL	68.5	74.5	77.4	79.1	6.10	85.4	68.6	1.47	88.4	71.9	76.2	85.9	4.62			2	81.3	04.5	66.7	68.8		1.47	77.8	77.6	82.0	83.¢	, 	6.22	1.1.1	
	50°	ING	72.7	78.0	82.0	82.0		- <u>9</u> 0.4	72.6	76.8	93.2	75.2	80.3	92.5			8.0/	89.1	88.4	69.69	70.8	9.57	1.02	77.0	81.0	80.6	89.3	0.98		79.4	2.5	
		OASPL	62.7	68.8	71.9	73.3	0.67	80.7	62.9	68.6	83.4	66.2	71.0	83.3	37.4 27.4	1.10	10.1	5.15	77.4	9.94	h.().4	63.5	10.4	6.6.3	72.9	72.6	9.77	74.4		70.9	9. 5/ 0. 1/	
		[F _s (T _o /T _{sm}) ^{w-1}]	34.1	38.2	38.1	6.4	35.4	1.5	36.8	17.2	38.5	37.5	37.2	37.3	38.1		4./f		37.6	5.2	17.4	JH	5.7	2.5	14°. 5	34.45	38.0		v	10.7		
		l.og :	c	-0.234	-1-,].44	-0,157	-070.0-	0.014	0.283	9.113	0.039	0	-0.382	-0.165	9.014 0.014	-	-0.400	0.010	-0.051	5	÷	-0.516	-0.161	- 07 V - 0-	-0.185	-0.182	-0.032	9.0°5		-0.214	100	
		FS t/sec	279	79	180	280		187	6.2	280	279	281	- 127	5	112	Ţ,			512	61.7	875	279	×		280	8	CHC	E S		276		
		, n, o	867		181.	÷		101	5.2	1997	515.	192.	016.	. 527	668		011	2.1.1	851	£04.	188.	.266	. 804	589	661 -	189	6/1.	148.	2	. 3000	4 F 4	
		N, w	2.60.3	771 3	862 3	270	F	. 079 . 	4 107 10 970	5.54	6 UH8.	5 Sto.	5 182.	517 6	188		. 84.		00.7	2 980.	302 2	107	x	101	. 19R	. 343	£ 265 .			380		
	T	v /sec v	104 1	1 189	804 1	1 101		287 2	1 1	0.5	488 1	1 118	582 1	849					205	1 010	200 1	1 742		778 1	1 776	94.3	238	1 23		856 1		
eraged	-	<u>۲</u>	09					÷	= -	- 41 	~ ~	*	1 00	8	 2			ς α	- ~ · · ·		1 1	09			0.	-	37 2		-		9 A 5 S	•
ass Ave			8	10	11	-		4 1 / C		1	7 165	3) i	1 		č		- 2	153	6 6	52 6	8			2	2 340	8 153	6 151	-			
2		P C P	08.1	54	15:21	- - -	76.	17.1		2.60	15.51	1.28	::08	1	~ ~		5		2.87	1.59	1.76	1.99		10	2.37	2.33	39	-			2.14	
		t c ^y sei	1:02	181	-107	1677		1947		E	260-	111	197	143	1142		x		20	m of	1276	1475	4251	1444	217	1717	2402	2545		2072	1941	
Auter		ل _{۲.} ۴	23%	1.61			1			01,	102	386	1081	542	547	: :	5			1 1 2 2	÷ ž R	956	2	1 200	1726	1011	12	121		(H)	i i i	
		.,t.,4/3	446	111	- M.	9.1			; :	58.		841		683	184		20		234	195	785	088	0.7	57		- U.	ੇ ਵ	191	-	1		
		3ec (P-		: م. ب	-:	? ?				-	5	۔ ب	-: 		 		-i - 	i - 	19	5 - I.	رد ۲.	86		: -:		-: 			: 	-1- 2	; - 7 ?	
۴T		ж Т	-		- 	ž:	: 			9 1 1 3	. 113:	1 1 12	2 	1	3 (-	1 -			\$ 	36 .	5.		1 1 1 2	- - -	×1			1: 		
ta]	-	11	5	;	<i>\</i>	. <u>.</u>	2 	5		1		111	171	Ξ				3	6		ŝ	7	<u> </u>		÷	ŕ		Ϋ́,			с ж - —	
		с, 1 с. 1 с. Б ¹ (Б.			1.404	5.	0.1.1				÷.		1.1.1	21.	55	-	2.3		44	282 T	2011 - E	1.754		6.4								
		Paint	.	r	÷	<u>.</u>		23		51	-		2	2.	ż, i	1	;;;	; /	а. -	1	ž	ri -	5, 7	÷.	ŝ	~ ú	÷	2.		F	: :	

\sim
ed
nd
сı
on
9
Matrix
Test
0
No
Chute
9
Ý
36
_
-
A-3
e
ab

		TNd-i	44444 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	
	Peak	4	1120 1120 1120 1120 1120 1120 1120 1120	-
deline	1	ASPL	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	r
0 11 51	_	D .ING		
540	0 0	ASPI.		4.4
		PNL 0		
	50	ASPL	ANDIE NAMES THE STATE HERE I STATE ERITE	- - -
		- -		
	Mit Loopers	(10/1 sm)	A 2024 CONTRACT CONTRACTOR SCALE A 2020 A 2024 CONTRACT CONTRACTOR SCALE A 2020 A 2024 CONTRACT CONTRACT CONTRACT	N - 17
		s - IFs-	· 특성가방철·동안전화동·영화·영화·영화·영화·방국·영화·영화·영화·영화·영화·영화·영화·영화·영화·영화·영화·영화·영화·	10 - T
		sec Lo		
	2 <u>5</u> 2	, ft/,	- 小花花花山 おんがわん いんしんり ひろうさん アマネタラ レネネス・ 	-
		7° 2°	· 물건물로 가 가려가 가지 않는 것 것 가지 않는 것 것 것 것 것 같아요. 	-
	T		[전조·알려 추소한옷은 것] 위에도 한자국가지 사용가 있는 동작자들과 확충했다. [전자] - 가격하려고 한고그의 전고그의 사람이가지 있었다고 그그고. 	-
keel	^	f1/se		-
AVELA		×.		
ST N				
		: t/se.	NACES XHANK KAANG BARGA ABAGA NYYYYY KAAN	
1-1211		*		
		(γ_{A},γ_{A})	1989 - 1988 - 1998 - 1999 - 1999 - 1998 - 1999 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999	
	-	:1, 500	ARTE 24224 MARCH CONTINENT APER AND A	
t-u-t		ж. 1 1 1	18969 79777 (1997 1993) togat togat som	
		1. P. F.		
	-1~	11	รณ์มีขอ จุษฐรรี 1,444 รอกังแก่ประชุบังชีมน ขรับวั	

Table A-4. 36-C-D Chute with Treated Ejector Test Matrix.

.....

Model Lenfii Aps •	No. 4. (AS . 16 Chut 335 in.	2) = 2.6 tr ^o with T Al = 6.5	() reated E 82 in 2]ettof A ₂ = 23.7	, 10 R.	i																
		laner			oluter		Mass	. Average	- <u>-</u> -								2	400 ft :	Sideline			
												V.F.c.		or act of		50°	6	0°		Peak		
Point	1 (° a. 14 -	 	1t/sec	(PT/P.)	ιτ, [°] R	11/sec	PT/Po	1т ° R	ft/ser	Vo/Vi	ч, ч	ft/Bec	1. age 1	[F _s (T _o /1 sm) ^{u-1}]	OASPL	INI.	OASPL	PNL	UASPL	θ	PPNL	JASPL
	1.4.1	2	477	1.442	745	1~15	1.874	860	1303	1.50	9.18	0	:	18.0	6.3	72.2	72.4	6.67	73.5	100	80.5	74.0
т —		-	2 C		22	1818	2.287	1053	1633	1.77	3.25	0	-0.736	.8	71.7	78.0	78.3	86.2	80.4	110	87.9	82.5
-		23	250	174		1003	2.507	1145	1784			5 0	-0-146		1.47	- 18	80.7	6.98	84.9	120	1.16	86- S
:	1.4.1	÷		0	1	2364	2.914	1379	5602	2.12	ç	. 0	-0.047	38.4	79.3	89.2	9.48	94.3	91.7	140	96.0	1.1
1	2 .; 	<u>,</u>	1124	A. 7.2 M	17.40	1252	3.256	1501	2282	2.21	3.87	¢	0.007	38.8	82.5	1.06	87.2	97.6	96.0	130	02.2	96.0
	1		1		6:6	1347	1.858	345	1343	1.0.	4. 17	с	}	37.4	66.7	72.7	72.9	80.3	74.0	CII	80.7	76.0
.: .:			2.2		9511	17.51	191	7611	1702	1.28	6.82	ວ ເ	-0.782	17.0		77.5	0.17	85.6	79.9	110	86.9	82.2
: <u>-</u>	- ;; ; ;	-	ł	1.331	Ē	1995	2.430	1401	2467		8.96	00	0.088	38.3	83.5	0.16	88.3	98.4	9.86	150	01.7	98.9
	1.510	2	1.90	1.86.1	878	1312	1.786	526	502	1.02	4.'s	0	1	5.12	65.6	C.17	6.17	78.4	5.5.	120	1.67	73.7
	1 1. 11:	1117	1,242	2:23	1071	1629	2.087	1094	1580	1.27	. 94		-0.376	37.3	70.0	75.8	76.1	83.5	17.7	110	84.4	80.1
2			÷.	1.64.7	1269	14.5	2.455	1263	8581	1.51	h. 56	0	-0.160	37.3	73.9	81.2	80.6	88.7	84.6	120	0.16	86.0
E; :				1.761	1726	2575	3.23	1667	2427	10.7	1.71	<u>;</u>	-0.017		83.3	0.16	87.7	0.86	97.8	071	6.10	97.8
; :					-	2		909	0171	· · · ·		>					(. 60			3		0.0
17	190 - I		1184	H/0.7	<u>.</u>	7671	1.967	987	1444	1.26	5.08 2.13	c c	-0.583	37.6	67.9	78.2	2.97	81.4	76.1 81 9	120	81.9	16.8
	- 1.544	101	8	3.308	164.2	105	076	1554	2236	2.01	6.17	. c	6.0.0-	37.7	79.4	89.3	83.8	94.1	92.8	140	97.1	92.8
	1.79	515	766	1.560	2	101	1.608	670	1011	1.02	2.63	0	ł	37.2	61.9	68.2	666.3	73.7	67.4	100	24.4	67.4
<u>د</u>	1.777	-	~ ¥6	1.800	47 27	1234	582.1	765	1185	1.28	06.5	0		18.0	65.0	71.2	20.3	77.4	1.17	100	6.11	1.17
:,. 	1.724	23	8/6	- (Ib)	757	1496	1.974	R90	1374	1.5	3.24	c	-0.571	38.2	68.1	1.1	74.1	81	76.1	120	82.1	76.1
(Z.	646 T	6 2	; <u>;</u>	10	19.91	5551	765 1	6411	1746	7.03	5.70 2.66		-0.175	1.51	70.8	2.10	27.6	85.2	80.0	071	87.1	85.V
~	2.351	976	1545	2.396	12-12	2142	2.382	1450	1961	1. 39	2.35	c	-0.182	36.6	0.47	80.0	81.0	88.9	83.8	110	91.2	87.5
:: 	.6,	ż.	1544	3.14	0121	24.25	2.986	1510	2217	1.57	3.23	0	-0.032	38.1	78.7	87.8	8.48	93.7	0.76	140	97.5	94.5
	5.1.6	ŝ.		1.42	1663	2445	3.422	1441	2274	1.53	2.88	0	0.026	39.3	81.4	87.5	86.8	96.3	98.5	150	01.2	98.5
		<u> </u>		2,660	1545	1012	5.295	1321	1836	1. 88	5.25 67 2	0 0	-0.222	10.8	72.8	8.8	87.5		2.28	011	1 69	85
	5	746	4	1	1	188.	141.0	1235	1755	1.29	2.28		-0.250	37.0	71.8	9.77	78.5	86.1	80.4	110	88.0	
÷	2.532	17.0	1:75	1.929	1357	1676	2.040	1167	1610	1.14	2.06	0	-0.425	36.9	69.2	75.4	75.6	81.2	77.4	110	84.1	81.0
-	: 641		5	1.024	169.	167	2.756	1518	2155	1.76	18.81	- -	-0.073	37.5	5.11	86.0	83.6	92.1	91.2	130	97.1	4.19
	[466.]	- T	155	1.025	1:11	7076	2.799	1200	1920	1.51	4.46	0	-0.072	38.6	77.3	87.6	82.0	91.2	84.9	110	92.8	89.2
	225 I	,			5 i i	6121	2.803	668	1660	1.28	5.28	<u> </u>	-0.074	10.0	76.4	87.0	80.2		80° F	80		86.5
; :	105		10.1		5041	1.02	2.706	1242	1926	1.97	6.03	: c	160.0-	38.1	76.5	85.4	8.18	90.2	88.7	140	92.7	88.7
·.	11.192	222	1001	9:004		1201	2.704	877	1615	1.70	7.10	0	-0.096	9.9	76.0	87.D	0.0%	90.3	80.2	80	11.3	89.8
۰ ۱	n6;	. 44 .	1346	3.0.1	1790	1969	2.857	1494	:167	1.53	1.07	c	-0.055	37.8	77.6	86.6	0.15 2	72.6	2.19	130	47.4	6.26
•			51	1.0.1	4. 	2044	2.907	1180	61933	3. 27	3.46	. (150.0-	38.9	76.9	86.5	82	1.16	0.06	140	0.69	- 06
			- i -	5.018	46.2	000	1.09.1	689	1674		1 62.1	-	-0.054 I	40.3	76.4	89.3	80.	06	2.08	08	5.16	88.7

.

•

-

Table A-4. 36-C-D Chute with Treated Ejecotr Test Matrix (Continued).

والتوريب فتحمد ومقروبا وتقاولون وترتب فالتروان والمراجع والمراقع المتعاقب والمحمول والمتعاقب والمتحر والمتحر والمتعاد

													_			_		_								-					_			-	
		POASPL.	73.6	80.1	85.1	91.5	89.7	85.8	71.0	97.9 8.8	67.5	80.6	90.8	1.76	i	70.2	77.8	52.2 84. 5		92.2	6.17	84.3	95.1	68.1	77.72	92.3	66. R	72.0	1.1	44.4	67.8	71.7	82.3		84.8
		PPNL	80.1	84.3	91.9	85.7	93.2	87.8	78.5	103.0	75.2	85.9	6 96	100.2	1	78.2	85.0	88.1		0.99	79.4	4.0 8.0	199.7	76.1	81.6	0.99	1.57	19.4		1.1	76.5	79.9	2.68	88	6.99
	eak	θ	100	120	80	140	140	80	100	140	110	120	130	91		100	120	120		130	100	120	130	100	2001	2 22	ŝ	100	170	8	90	100	120	3 5	ŝ
idel ine		OASPL	73.5	78.4	80.1	91.5	89.4	79.7	70.0	93.9	67.5	79.4	90.8	96.1		70.0	77.8	81.4	3	00.0	71.0	82.9 82.9	93.1	68.1		92.1	6615	4.16	1.1.	64.3	67.4	71.7	81.6	9.18	4.88
ou fit S		PNL	79.2	84.0	90.7	96	91.8	88.8	77.8	97.7	74.4	84.1	7	95.1		78.0	84.2	87.8 88.2			78.8	84. J	, t	76.4		0.16	75.0	78.9	0.1	33.0	76.5	0.67	87.7	7.48	о Э
240	.06	DASPL	72.2	76.5	80.0	84.0	82.5	9.67	1.07	87.4	66.6	76.2	82.9	85.2		69.7	75.4	79.2		85.8	6.64	1.62	86.8	68.1	72.8	85.5	4.49	70.8	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	64.0	67.9	70.8	18.1	7.7	82.5
		ING	73.0	77.5	87.3	86.5	87.4	85.1	72.0	92.0	69.4	77.7	1.06	89.4		72.8	79.0	82.0 88.9	0.00	92.1	73.6	4.18	93.4	9.07	76.2	92.3	8.69	14.3	7.97	69.1	0.17	1.1	82.1	0.18	8.8.8
	2	UASPL.	66.9	70.8	76.5	77.6	17.5	75.2	65.8 22	83.1	62.7	1.17	79.7	81.0	!	4.64	10.9	73.4	-	7.54	66.2	74.6	85.3	63.5	68.8 77 £	82.5	62.2	6.93	20.5	60.3	63.4	66.3	73.3	4.64	0.811
		[] []																														·····			
	5 A 10	T _{SB})	4	ę	xx	<u>م</u> د	÷	30		1	5	~ .	~ ~	. 0	8		0			• ~	-7 -		-7	-7	~, r	. 0	~	., ,	. .	. –	c	2	c .	a 4	. c
	0	tF _s (Τ _α /	38.	. 6	9 9	38.	39.	70. 7	38.	ġ ŝ	37.	37.	ž ž	. £	36.	38.	2	92. 93 92. 93	ät		ž.	: : :	38.	.9E	22	. 8	37.	5.2			ж.	38.	Ж.	ć 1	. g
		+ 301	674.0-	-044	0.032	-0.064	-0.048	-0.058	0	0.033	0	-0.246	0.044	0.020	-0.214	0	-0.248	-0.150	0,0	0,002	0	611.0	0.032	0	0.375	0.008	0	-0.614	67.0		0	0.569	0.155	0. 200	0.038
	ž	t/sec	0	0	c c	. c	c	c	Ģ	19	140	140	33	143	142	277	- 16	112			279	8 2 3 8 7 3 8	579	279	. 6/. 0/.	277	278	579	6/7	578	278	- 672	276	×/2	279
	~~	· / // f	-	-	1	70.	. 17	12.	:.273	768.1	1 904	. 453	670.	024	295	616.6	1.381	121	ģ	610.		.168	H26-1	767	067.1	. 553	. 669	.929	. 316	0.4	, u14	519	. 589	-638 36.6	280.
		1 1. V. o.		;	;		1.55	1.28 3	. 514	8 726.1	2 497 4	1.482	600.2	1.52.1	1.406	1.529	858	976.1		270	1.022	1.528 7	1.858 ×	000	1.251	6 10.3	1.000 4	. 262 4		0.038	885.	1.528	166.1	1 (07.1	. 575
	-	t /	1366	2	492		1681	1851	1293	9275	1201	1707	1 18 1	2007	1855	1295	1631	1789	000	1281	1413	2013	2473	1 307	1589	2428	1200	1460	61/1	1004	0611	1370	1792	1961	7574
er aked		ж ,	1.2	22	-	34.5	076	867	346	949	\$59	791	528	861	335	676	190	156	170	115	500	927	586	242	501	563	678		7/1	12	166	788	167	0.0	- 610
A ser	╞	o 17	19		5.3	- 	- 		22		76	59	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	65	1	11	65	1 2		2 6	87 IC	1	52 16	23	88	: = : =	6	22		16	<u>۶۶</u>	75	62 5	1 42	6.
	 	J/ 4	0 -:	-;				2.8			1.6	22				1,8	~	7 7 	a 	2.2	8,1	:::	3.4			~~~		6.1	7	: :	.:	6		<u>}</u>	: ^:
	:	in the second se	1366	<u>.</u>	997	1385	1069	1841	5071	1600	1200	1798	5/67	:536	2033	1404	1823	2009	. 47 -	1367	1417	12	2544	1307	1637	2582	1200	1513	1318	1014	1240	1490	1102	1961	27.11
Outer		Т ₁₀ "К	8.13	352	1. s 1. s	6721	9621	568	940	1/16	824	1183	1008	1722	1588	876	1215	17.53	1 547	171	26	771	2171	888	1054	1758	718	8101	141	125	178	985	1136	1704	11.1
		, (s,4)	610	124	120	008	948	603	959	611	134	877	190	603	328	963	460	709	185	102	197		912	242	7.34 408	686	746	20	ç ;	13	819	069	672	161	14.9
		FG) (PT	-:	~;	<u> </u>		-	~		 -		-i -			.7.		~i -		_			1.1	, ,	<u> </u>	-i -	: ~ : 		~							
	Ľ	R 1:1/8				1 346	1114	1111	¥.6		1204		1134	1614	1446	676	186	1017	0201		1 336	1991	1396	120	1021	1264	1 200	1199		615	974	926	1001	1542	1203
lnner		TT °.		!		561	929	3	÷.;	1437	1014	-103-	196	821	757	537	5	555	12	10	1447	66.1	1451	8721	1218	1203	\$101	101	144	8	5.59	: ÷	5.99		618
		thr. Polt		1		2.990	2.995	086.2	[59] i	1.509	1.553	1.554	66.1 667.1		2.495	1.638	1.950	016.1	1 90.5	8:6.1	1.503	1.563	1.510	1.536		1.505	1.551	1.553	1 1 1 1	1.764	067.1	112-1	1.774	8(2)	5.16
	d	Point	3	C.	7 0	(72	.2	÷	·- • •	12	7	r; :	3 5	12	ĩ	~	- EVE	• c	-	: ::	<u> </u>	<u>.</u>	2	5	1.2	2.2	;;	:/:	3 2	12	£	::	9 9	τ, s	

Table A-4. 36-C-D Chute with Treated Ejector Test Matrix (Concluded).

Model Confil AFS *	No. 4. (Al g. 36-Chut 338 in 2	8) - 2.0 te ³ with T A ₁ - 1.5	0 Treated E 82 in. ² .	Ejector • A ₀ = 23.7	'58 in.'													i i				
	 	lnaer			Outer		Hass	Average									54	00 ft S	ideline			
			-						=			V _{5C}		10 1 20		••	6			Peak		
Point	(PT/Po)	TT1 °R	vi ft/sec	(PT/Pa)	T _T °R	ft/ser	PT/Po	T ° R	ft/sec	Vo/V1	₩ /₩	ft/sec	Log H	[F _s (T _o /T _{sm}) ^{w-1}]	OASPL	INd	OASPL	PNI.	OASPL	æ	PPNL	JASNO
ä	3.117	818	1671	3.659	1754	2573	3.443	1518	2341	1.539	2,884	279	-0.029	19.1	82.8	92.2	85.1	96.3	91.8	130	98.6	92.2
33	2.504	764	1455	2.322	1577	2023	2.313	1330	1851	1. 390	2.300 {	278	-0.214	36.8	72.6	80.5	76.8	85.6	77.6	110	86.4	79.7
3	2.669	825	1557	2.628	1734	2256	2.573	1468	2051	1.449	2.414	277	-0.119	37.1	75.2	0.68	79.8	89.1	83.4	120	0.06	85.3
÷.	2.491	1 754	2771	2.228	1051	6261	2.244	1272	1780	1.338	2.261	278	-0.250	36.8	76.1	0.61	75.8	8.48	78.7	120	65.5	79.8
*	2.527	170	1467	176-1	1347	1676	2.047	1160	1608	1.142	2,078	278	-0.418	36.9	68.2	76.3	72.7	81.7	72.7	6	81.7	75.9
<i>(</i> г	1.997	851	1.34.5	3.032	1701	2371	2.763	1526	2160	1.763	3.857	278	-0.073	37.4	76.6	86.1	81.9	92.1	87.5	130	93.4	87.5
39	1.988	831	1334	3.030	1297	2062	2.793	0121	1926	1.546	4.369	278 -	-0.073	38.5	75.5	86.5	9.61	90.4	83.5	120	1.16	8.48
4 F	2.003	853	1 358	3.040	908	1723	2.824	899	1665	1.269	5. JUI	279	-0.069	40.1	14.7	87.1	6.77	90.3	78.8	80	5.16	80.9
[,	1.486	854	1049	3.033	1706	2375	2.688	1573	2168	2-264	5.400	278	-0.089	37.0	76.5	81.1	81.4	91.2	87.2	001	93.1	87.2
4	1.477	778	1034	3.028	1299	2063	2.704	1236	1921	1.995	6.231	278	-0.092	38.1	75.4	86.7	80.0	90.4	84.4	130	90.5	84.4
÷;	107.1	R53	1051	3.064	116	173;	2.750	404	1651	1.647	7.524	279	-0.085	39.8	88.8	88.1	78.1	90.6	79.4	80	92.2	79.6
r, 5	2.542	859	1554	3.078	1686	2374	2.905	1483	2173	1.528	3.074	279	-0.047	38.0	79.3	87.2	81.8	61.8	87.5	130	93.5	88.5
	2.531	.', 60	1539	3.020	7061	201-5	2.893	1201	9761	1.343	3.459	278	-0.053	38.8	66.4	27.4	70.1	88.8	70.4	80	92.1	95.5
9Ç	2.490	8.25	951	110.0	606	111	916	899	1687	1.121	4.264	- 622	-0.052	£0.3	74.7	86.6	6.17	0.06	98.4	2	6.0	81.7
ñ	686	820	9 <u>~</u>	5.0.5	8641	9 . 7	10.4.2	1460	164	. 4 4	9	8/7	-0.038	18.2	11.4	8/.0	6.28	1.26	6.18	2	0.16	87.8
	2.988	853	1459	3.923	1282	2047	7.994	117.2	6761	1.234	2.957	279 .	-0.036	39.2	76.5	87.5	80.2	1.16	80.3	80	8.19	87.6
, ,	9EC.1	R53	1.73	1.011	610	1723	1.032	898	1712	1.030	9.48	279	-0.032	40.6	74.6	86.0	78.0	88.6	78.5	80	9.06	84.3
е -	1.512	1441	11395	1.042	1691	2412	3.605	1667	5445	1.872	9.355	372	0.048	18.7	85.5	93.4	86.3	97.1	91.7	130	98.6	93.9
-	1.570	766	1262	3.347	1630	2405	2.971	1540	2236	2.000	101.4		-0.034	37.8	77.9	87.7	82.2	92.4	87.3	001	93.7	87.3
2	1.180	н0њ	1651	3.725	1704	555	3.50	1476	2320	1.544	2.864	17.	0.035	39.4	81.0	90.8	84.3	3.2	90.3	- 021	96.8	92.1
	164.5	837	1:25	2.469	1754	2285	2.608	1487	2078	1.45.	2.434	172	-0.110	17.2	75.5	83.6	79.3	88.6	80.7	120	89.7	84.1
÷.	2.307	761	1-51	2.212	1932	1943	2.233	1294	1791	1.337	2.215	372	-0.256	36.7	71.6	2.67	75.8	9.40	76.0	80	85.1	78.6

Table A-5. 54-Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle Test Matrix.

$ \left[\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		lnnei			Outer		Mass	i Average	ų								-	400 ft	Sidel in	e e		
$ [\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \$		-	:			-						 6 10		10.1		°0°	5	5		Peak		
	Point 1P7 'i	"" T _{T 1}	R 11/30	(F7/F0)	T _{1,} °k	ft/sec	P1/Po	TT 'R	tt/sev	$V_{\rm o}/\Lambda_1$	k, /	11.56	104 2	11. (10./18.10) -11	OASPL	LNT	OASP1.	PNL	OASPL	¢	TN44	PUASFI
		20.00	494	1.568	972	1026	1.632	n SA	9101	1.027	174 . 5	÷	1	12.3	5.41	8.24	64.3	71.8	65.7	110	72.5	67.8
	i X	 	:	1		{	1	1	1	;	ţ	ţ	1	• • •	5.95	6,4.0	64.1	71.6	86.8	110	72.5	68.0
		- 21 		1.801	20	560	1.783		1166				;	с, . Ж	8.3	- 	68.1	ж, С,	73.0	2	5.1.3	14.2
		ξ. 2 ΙΣ	1009	1.00.1	;;;	1510	846-1	872 872	1130		1.644		, r	e - 5	4.44 1.44			78.8	78.5	32	8.9	80.1
			-	000	900	2		100	:	-							ŝ	a t		-		
			1011	1 585 1	555	51.1		400	5001									0 F	1.10	12	1.4	10
		10 1 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	61		1073	197	036	107.5	1550		x	:	2		54	1		51.7	84.5		87.1	81.5
(1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)	- - -		1386		1911	1751	.156	116	1661			s	. 11			76. B		84	87.8	9	106	87.8
	4 1.5	1771 - SI	1294	1.557	6771	13.5	1.548	1222	1115	1.024	Ĩ.	7	;	£		6	80.1	84.7	86.7	130	9.06	87.4
	:a 1.5	56 100L	4611	144.5	1193	1802	2.164	1150	1557	1 404	1. 1 2		404			9.02			87.7	140	9.06	88
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1 1 1	5.6 H	1108		1071	1805	4.7	2	414	9,4			1.1.0			-		7		97	2.06	87.8
$ \left[\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		(08 6)	[1:43	676-1	1388	1707	1.017	0-11	159.	1.141		-		1.1	1 12	•	21.22	r	84.5	140		86.5
$ \left[\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	11 1.7.	.85 - 41	1006	1.698	1343	2003	2.341	110-	0641	166.1	x	-		17° N		1	80.3	0.54	90.6	120		91.0
$ \left[\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		1E 6 1	111	2.710	1351	2014	2. 534	1253	180-	018.1	1.2.12	-	202.04	57.44	5.12	7.2	9°.04	F. 1	91.5	071	7.76	91.5
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$		177 N	6181	2.457	1284	1945	2.31-	127-	1811	-44-1	1.2.44	e	-0.232	4, ni				57.5	. 16	071	96	1.16
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	1 - 1 - 2		1105	:.538	14.58	1429	1.531	1,100	111	1111		с	;	4.1	1.1.4	6.44	6.1. ²		<u>.</u>	130	82.6	80
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$			1 39 3	2.465	1405	3	÷;;;	[]]]	1964	1.512	4 F		-0-12		ŝ	×	1.14	8.	р. 	91		98
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	178 1.5	11.5	1661	1.92	- -	2097	2.448		1961	1.508	4	5	-0.154	· . = :			5 	9.48	-	2	6.96	55
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$		182 138	193		0141	1681	502.2		1706		415.	.:	1				7	, , ,	0 . 4.0	5	1.16	69
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$		20 C	1269	2.323	1944	2016	2.159	1293	45.1	1.604		2	-0.404	11.11	1.1.		н. 	. Fri. 3	90.5	140	93.5	90.6
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	ō 	36 2	1354	0.0	1618	1909	200-2	1320	169.	÷0;- ;		-	-0	34° 1:	5.1.		2.81	1.10	59.7	91	4. [5	49.44
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			1200	61	2	0652		67	131	. 66	- - -	- -			1.02		с. С.	÷,	- 3k.	9	1:3.2	45.4
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	- - -					86.7		10 ·	1	0		: :							4 1 5 3	<u>,</u>		4. 4 9 - 1 9 - 1
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	-	-	-			;	;	 		-	•		-	•					ł	ļ		
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	• • - •	1	1022	3. 306	1631	÷.	H	, 	÷	÷	1. 230	<u>-</u>	180.0-	57.4	2	ź		-	5	2	1.01	48.4
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		2 1 2 1 2 1			110	216	292	4		. 388		- c :	12.1	5.4		7		, , , ,	4 ·	-		
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		 -			2021		•	1905						•						-		
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	•	-		40.	5121							: :	2.00					;;		29		
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$								Ì														
1 1 <td>: : :</td> <td>-</td> <td>3</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>2748</td> <td>4</td> <td>7 2 2</td> <td>. u0.</td> <td></td> <td>0.1.1</td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td><u> </u></td> <td></td> <td>4</td> <td>4</td> <td>7 7</td> <td></td> <td>5</td> <td></td>	: : :	-	3			2748	4	7 2 2	. u0.		0.1.1	-			<u> </u>		4	4	7 7		5	
				2.7		5	190.9		1.1.1			= :		,	7 : 2 :	ç i		-		5	9.1	
5. 1.57 1.675 1.661 1.399 1.765 1.767 1.767 1.971 1.710 1.710 1. 1	-					, xi 4	000.4	1601	90.00	,	9		0.017					;			4	
V. 1.1.1 [114] 4.085 [124] 2.651 [1.38] 1680 [2500 [1.19] 3.245 U 0.046 [8.7] 29.2 89.3 95.7 95.7 [10.120] [10.4.7] [10.4.1 [10.1.4] [10.4.1 [10.120] [10				1920	la la	194	668.9	1205	112	×	×.		0.0.5		1	;	Ţ	;		2	÷ 0	
				2 (14 4		1		0771	0056			:	4 10 10	. 3	1				۔ ت		- - -	:
	: • : = : = : :			180		10.4	1.820	1667	2540	1.210	2. 1. 6	50	0.067	1.2			: + ; ;		1	Ē		

Table A-5. 54-Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle Test Matrix (Continued).

		E.		•	~	5	3	ş	4	~ •	~~	2		-	6	2	•	-	~	ac v	۰ ،			. 0	. 00	~		~	2	~	~	
	~	POAS		78.	2	6	\$	102.	8	203	39	~	22	1	59	8	.69	Ż	: ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::			88		5	5	2		85.	97.	8.	- 6-	:
	,	INdd	1	80.1	74.2	89.1	0.201	106.7	105.1	107.4	72.5	74.8	77.3	78.5	72.4	81.3	84.6	74.2	89	85.4	5		9.09	77.0	93.8	87.3		86.4	100.0	99.7	93.2	
	Peak	Ð	1	140	120	150	001	140	140	011	120	120	130	130	120	140	130	120	140	9 2	271		150	120	150	140		140	150	150	150	
idelin		OASPL	1	77.3	68.9	87.2	98.4	102.1	100.4	102.5	65.3	61.5	72.4	73.7	66.4	78.5	79.5	68.6	81.7	82.3	6 78		88.6	71.7	91.8	34.2		83.7	97.2	96.7	91.2	
00 ft S		PNI.		76.0	72.4	82.1	7.16	96.3	92.3	6 94	71.5	72.6	75.2	76.1	71.7	78.0	7.91	72.6	79.8	80.1			6.58	74.5	85.7	81.7		80.6	89.9	69.8	85.1	
24	06	OASPL		68.9	65.0	75.1	83.1	88.9	85.1	86.6	62.3	61.6	66.7	68.0	63.0	70.2	72.1	64.5	72.4	72.3	0 24		26.0	66.9	77.8	14.3		73.4	81.5	81.3	17.7	
		lnq	-	70.1	66.8	75.8	86.6	93.3	88.3	90.1	6,00	67.0	69.7	70.9	66.8	72.6	74.5	67.1	74.7	75.7		1.02	7.62	71.5	80.7	76.7		75.1	86.8	85.5	80.6	
	S	OASPL		64.7	61.5	70.2	80.2	87.0	81.5	5.63	61.0	1.14	63.8	6.43	61.1	66.7	68.5	62.2	68.7	20.3	7 12		12.7	6.99	74.1	20.9		70.1	79.9	78.5	15.1	
	L) [-								_											.							
	10 Log	s(T ₀ /T _{Sm}	17.3	38.3	36.8		c-75	39.3	37.9	38.0 36.0	38.0	1.11	38.4	37.5	36.8	17.3	37.1	35.8	1.1	1.7	0.82	0.00	36.8	34.6	36.7	37.1	36.5	35.9	37.4	37.3	36.8	
		ok ≓ [F.	. 554	594		295	0/0-	.016	022	/10		112	574	. 661		.421	662.	. 342	. 298	327		1.12	11		155	1.2	295	468	070	079	185	
		sec L	43 -0	0- 07	40 0	-0-	-0-17	0 07	0- 0-		181	82 -0.	83 -0	82 -0	0 781	82 -0	82 -0.	82 -0	83	0 0	~		78 -0.	77 0	78 -0.	77 -0.	77 -0.	78 -0.	76 -0.	76 -0.	78 -0.	
	۲ <mark>، م</mark> د	"1 [fe/	67	100	85	2	5	14	1.5	<u>.</u>	5 22	- 00	06	57	06	87	101	44	8	5		5 2) (c	16	21		15	68	90	68 2		
		, ", ", ", ", ", ", ", ", ", ", ", ", ",	53 3.6	93 1.8	27 2.1		33 3.6	15 1.7	58 3.9	38 5.3		59 1.6	0, 1, 8	51 2.9	17 2.1	51 2.9	\$5 3.0	23 2.1	17 3.1	57 			2 4	27 2.1	38 4.2		88 1.7	21 1.5	19] 3.6	9.1	4 1 80	
	T -	vo/	2.4	1.4	1.0	<u>.</u>	õ. ~		~	8.7		2	1.5	1.2	1.0	1.2	2	1.0	1.5		_			c		-	1.5	1.4	0	2. %	4	
ge.'		ft/se	1237	1761	1230	1666	2136	2214	2281	2448	1170	12.13	1341	1441	1219	1552	1672	1325	1669	1638		17071	181	1422	1975	0121	1768	10/1	2139	2124	0101	
s Avera		тт ° к	845	852	1C.06	1154	1485	1 389	1572	1696	745	861	851	999	866	1080	1166	1231	191	1142		1311	1221	1458	1420	5611	1303	1661	1484	1487	1376	
Mas	Γ	P.1 Po	1.742	1.965	1.596	2.180	2.782	1. 345	970.5	1. 323	1. 789	1.747	1.973	1.943	1.589	2.049	2.173	1.553	2.175	2.138	0.150		1.2	1.532	2.461	2.210	2.170	2.002	:.782	2.740	3.178	
		it/sec	1414	1515	1240	1815	2394	2531	2580	2643	1267	1414	1519	1518	1226	1635	1761	1334	1820	1819	1000	101	1950	14 34	2111	7681	2043	1923	2397	2.197	181	
Duter	F	TTo R	545	1006	1001	1203	1678	1709	1738	1740	857	546	1001	946	566	1080	1167	1237	5	1213	1361	0561	1284	1458	1414	1502	1598	1615	1621	1627	1750	
-		, (o't)	.978	.089	. 608	. 463	. 340	1.625	1.747	1,0,1	810	972	103	. 114	.600	. 239	. 191	. 560	927.	. 453 070		110	677	. 544	.873	0.1.50	. 336	650.	. 323	. 324	. 424	
		t/sec (1	578 1	015	208	102		9.11	760	100		575	010	213 I 2	205	307	403 C	304	200	170	310		295	194	100	¢ 42	287 2	353 2	187	041	527 2	
nner	-	^r T ₁ [°] R t	572	565	1003	1002	1001	841	915	1457	1 155	195		1006	1003 1	1080 1	1163 1	1218 1	1 666	906 808			1123	1459 1	1446	785 1	787 1	855 1	1003	1 816	346	
-		1 1(04/1	1.191	6/.1	1.570	202	1.556	3.102	1.497	215.1	1.731	1.192	1.772	1.574	1.566	1.637	1.698	1.539	Ç¥.	1.4.1	84.	157 1	1.526	1.507	1.517	2.476	1.961	886.:	: 544	1.427	0677	
		int (P	~	,	4	0		έ.		<u> </u>	+ 14		.,•	 .~	۰	-	- 	а		= 2	=		5	<u>.</u>	::	 £	•	 9,	7	21	1.7	

:

.

Table A-5. 54-Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle Test Matrix (Continued).

	POASPL	98.3 98.2 98.0 99.3 99.3	97.3 97.2 96.8 83.7	
	PPNL	102.4	101.5 101.5 101.5 99.7 85.3	200 - 1 - V (1.) 200 - 20 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 -
	Peak	140 140 140	0,11,00,11	
ideline	TASMO	98.3 98.2 98.0 99.3	97.2 97.2 82.7 82.7	14300 004 00 18000 2 200 2 20200 2 200 2 20200 2 200 2
11 00	INI	92.5 92.0 92.5 92.5	92.5 92.3 92.3 90.1	
77	14SM	2 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	41. 2. 5. 4. 4. 2. 5. 5. 4. 5. 5. 5.	
	- INA	8.99.9 9.99.7 8.99.7 8.7 8.7 8.7 8.7 8.7 8.7 8.7 8.7 8.7 8	1.1.4 1.1.4.E.F.	29280 2200 70072 2200 10000 8600
·	oasPi		284701 22721 11552	
	le togio (f _s d _e 7 _{sm}) = 1	1. 9 1 1. 0 2 2 3 3 5		
	ا -			
	i ker			1111 6020
			E 7 - 3 - 3 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4	
		5 7 7 7 7 7 7		
		1 1 2 3 3		
		22552		
		5 - 3 7 6 7 7		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
+ 	;	17222		
hi ter	*		 14452 14452	
			22204 22223	
		222.;		
	ж Д	43 53 4	97.19	
† 				
1	· · · ·		- 	

Table A-5. 54-Element Coplanar Mixer Nozzle Test Matrix (Concluded).

1	_	—							-	_				-					-	_	-			٦
			POASPL	97.5	92.2	6.99	101.1	96.1			95.8	72.0	74.4	81.7	80.5	83.6	85.7		89.1	90.9	100.6	95.9	99.2	
			PPNL	101.0	9.46	103.7	105.2	99.3	39. 2	66		73.4	76.0	83.6	83.2	86.0	87.5	6.48	9.06	93.0	104.8	98.8	103.9	1
		Peak	8	150	222	140	140	150	150	23	2 2	120	120	140	130	130	140	3 5	150	150	140	150	140	1
1	ideline		OASPL	97.5	92.2	0.99	100.7	96.1	96.1	1.96	95.8	65.4	68.9	80.8	78.5	80.7	84.3	0.28	89.1	90.9	100.2	95.9	99.2	1
) ft S		NF.	9.6	2.5	31.2	92.4	88.9	0.65	39.2		1.7	14.1	0.0	18.3	1.1	8.18	0.0	34.6	9.9	5.3	0.0	3.0	1
	240	. 06	SPL 1	1.7	6.2		. 9.4	8.0	6.0			2.5	4.0		.6	3.5	4.2	~ ~	6.9	 	9.0 9.0		5 8 . J	1
			NL OA:	.1 8	n a	.1.	.7 8			90 0 90 0	ν. Γ.	ور ج	. e	0 ~		.5 7		~ a		.7 1	8 6.	8 - 8	ဆဲ ဆဲ ——————————————————————————————————	
		20	۲ ۱	5 86	6 	88	69 6	0 86	8	1 88	6 6 6 6 6 6	7 67	23	72	11	9 19	8 80	8 3	818	6 83	2 95	3 87	86	
			OASP	79.	2.5	5	82.	80.	8		<u>.</u>	61.	3:	10	2		1 74.	508	2.		89.	81.	ž.8	
		10 1 28.1	$[F_{s}(\tau_{o}/\tau_{sm})^{\omega-1}]$	38.1	36.0	37.7	38.0	38.7	38.6	38.4	37.9	37.3	38.3	1.00	37.1	37.2	36.5	36.0 17 /	36.9	37.4	19.3	38.1	6.71 18.0	
			Log R	0.056	0.201	-0.014	0.016	-0.061	-0.061	-0.067	0.085	-0.559	-0.594	0.302	0.407	0.272	0.295	0.458	0.182	0.125	910.0	0.051	0.017	
		24	t/sec	279 -	278	281	279	282 -	282	282	282	370	- 692		365	367 -	367		368	167 -	696	- 848	- 	
			0 ¹ 1	.825	500.	, 18	807.	.877	. 970	.164	151	679.	.870	102.	. 352	662.	.744	385	01. 7	45.1	517.	(88)	. 978 . 366	
			" IV'.	.612 1	151.	700	5 068-	1 026.	. 977 [1	.081	1987	. 453 3	1 667.	7 190 -	1 961.	1 842.	. 543]	1.7		.448	1 815.	. 516 1		
		Γ.	 	1 001	966	8328	2446 1	1 1661	100	6003	010 025	2 2 7 2 2	341	1 444	597	707 1	1.67	469	1 206	977 1	214 1	132		4
	bagerav	┝	• к ft	*28 2	528	5.8	569	222	- 787	90		865	952	í E		191	1 701	81.9			45		869	
	A self	┝	. 11	357 1-	329 1	100	11/10	944	345 1.		12	74.7	545			1 11	0		188	1	Ţ.		- 2 - 7 - 7	
		 +-	4				-	-			-	:		-						÷;	1	Ì		
		ŀ	а. 1 У	24.1		1593	1640	:65:	2	3					1	. 66		; :		÷.	A	1		i i a
96 in.Ż	Outer		۲. ۳	6.1	21		1738	6291		2		;	ģ.	ţŦ	í		•	۰ - ۱ د به		3	•	2	;	i i
xer • A ₀ = 23.4			1 PT / P.	1.15		2	34	1.313	1. 545	1		*. * · · ·	2	-	R44	-	111.7	1			•	•	- ,	
anar Mi 30 In.		,	, , ,	1.15		;	1347	•			3	×.		: : : :		1				•		7	• 4	i
at Copl.	nner	Γ		, i					i.	2		ę	÷Ś		Ъ.							-	•	1
0, 5 54-6 Jene 36 11-7 A ₁				- -			101	9.7 :	÷.	 	- 		•		4 -	47	-	f	· · ·		;	•	··	1
Model N Confik.	 		с. 	£.		- } ?;	3		- -	- -	12	-	•	• <u>1</u>	. 3	•.	2		•	•		÷,	۰	1

APPENDIX B

THE FLIGHT TRANSFORMATION PROGRAM

This computer program, developed by General Electric under Task 4 of the High Velocity Jet Noise Reduction program, transforms one-third octave band sound pressure levels measured in a free jet facility to those in flight. This appendix outlines the input instructions for using the program, a sample case and listing of the program. A narrative accompanies the listing to explain the major elements of the program.

DESCRIPTION OF FLTRANS INPUT

The input to the program required for computation is as follows:

SPIN, SPIDIN, SPOT and SPIDOT are used for identification of the input and output SPL arrays. A maximum of five integers must be used for defining SPIN and SPOT whereas any 12 alpha numeric description may be used for SPIDIN and SPIDOT.

IREFRC - Refraction correction option. IREFRC must be set to one of the
following:

IREFRC = 3HYES - the flight transformed array will include the refraction correction.

IREFRC = 2HNO - the flight transformed array will not include the refraction correction.

IREFRC is initialized to 3HYES, as it is the recommended procedure.

ITURBC - Turbulence absorption correction option. ITURBC must be set to one of the following:

ITURBC = 3HYES - the flight transformed array will include the turbulence absorption correction.

ITURBC = 2HNO - the flight transformed array will not include the turbulence absorption correction.

ITURBC is initialized to 3HYES, as it is the recommended procedure.

IALPHA - The atmospheric attentuation option allows the application of air attenuation to the transformed array at the doppler shifted frequency. Two air attenuation models are available. IALPHA must be set to one of the following:

IALPHA = 3HSAE - This allows use of the extrapolated ARP 866A atmospheric attenuation corrections (Reference 13).

IALPHA = 3HSB - This allows use of the Shields and Bass atmospheric attenuation (Reference 19).

DIAMJT - Diameter of the free jet in inches. The diameter of the free jet used in the current study was 48 inches.

FLTVEL - The velocity of the free jet in ft/sec.

If FLTVEL in input as zero the corresponding SPL array will not be flight transformed. It will, however, be printed as a flight transformed array. This option was developed to enhance the integration of static and free jet data.

- TESTD Input data arc distance in feet. TESTD is used in conjunction with IALPHA to determine air attenuation corrections. The program must have the input data on an arc. Sideline data can only be used if corrected to an arc.
- SCFACT Is the linear scale factor, which is defined as full scale nozzle diameter divided by the scale model diameter, used to obtain the measured scale model frequencies if the free jet data has been scaled before transformation. The data must always be scaled down to model size before the refraction and turbulence absorption corrections are applied.
- IDOPS Doppler shift option. IDOPS must be set to one of the following:

IDOPS = 3HYES - The flight transformed array will be Doppler shifted.

IDOPS = 2HNO - The flight transformed array will not be Doppler shifted.

IDOPS is initialized to 3HYES.

- ANGLE An array of angles, measured from the inlet, at which the input SPL's were measured. These angles must be multiples of ten. A maximum of 19 angles may be input. The angles must be in degrees.
- NANG Number of angles in the ANGLE array.
- NFREQ Number of frequencies in the input SPL array. Maximum value is 33 (50 Hz \rightarrow 80 kHz).
- TSPL Is the input SPL array to be transformed. This array is dimensioned to be (19, 33), (Angle, Frequency). See Table B-1 for a sample input sheet.

TABE B-1. SAMPLE INPUT SHEET

SINPUT
SPIN=,,,,,,
SPIDIN=12H
SPOT=,,,,,,
SPIDOT=12H
IREFRC=3HYES,
ITURBC=3HYES,
IALPHA=3HSAE,
IDOPS=3HYES,
DIAMJT=,
TESTD=,
FLTVEL=,
SCFACT=,
NFREQ=,
NANG/ANGLE=,,,,,,,_
·····································
TSPL(01,01)=,,,,,,,,,_
TSPL(01,02)=,,,,,,,,,_
······································
•
•
TSPL(01,33)=,,,,,,,,,_
S

147

Sample Case

INPUT

2020 SINPUT 2010 SPIN=1,311,160,11,0,SPIDIN=12HT5SF32CAR2NB 2020 SPOT=1,311,160,11,0,SPIDOT=12HT5SF32CAR2PK 2072 IREFRC=3HYES, 2074 ITURBC=3HYES, 2076 IALPHA=3HSAE, 2080 DIAMJT=48.0. 2082 TESTD=160, 2090 FLTVEL=279 2120 SCFACT=3.58, 2111 NFREQ=27, 2120 NANG/ANGLE=40,50,60,70,80,90,100,110,120,130,140,150,160, 222 Δ TSPL(Δ 1, Δ 1) = 84.48, 84.96, 85'.30, 87.35, 88.49, 88'.77, 9 Δ '.68, 2210 TSPL(∂ 1, ∂ 2) = 82.04, 84.45, 86'.86, 88'.16, 87.75, 89'.37, 92.25, 222 Δ TSPL(Δ 1, Δ 3) = 83.14, 84.30, 85.46, 88.01, 88.84, 91'.22, 92'.6 Δ , 2230 TSPL(01,04)= 83.67, 85.46, 87.25, 88.04, 88.38, 89.74, 92.13, 2240 TSPL(11,05)= 84.25, 86.04, 87'.83, 89.12, 89.21, 90.33, 92'.71, 2256 TSPL (01,06) = 84.10, 86.01, 87.93, 89.22, 90.56, 91.68, 93.56, 2260 TSPL(01, 07) = 85.87, 86.66, 87.45, 89.99, 91.08, 91.95, 95.08, 2270 TSPL(01, 08) = 87.95, 88.49, 89.03, 90.82, 91.91, 93.02, 94.91, 2280 TSPL(01, 09) = 87.78, 89.08, 90.37, 92.66, 94.25, 95.61, 96.75, 2290 TSPL(01, 10) = 87.89, 89.31, 90.73, 92.02, 93.60, 94.47, 96.75, 2290 TSPL(01, 11) = 87.89, 89.31, 90.73, 92.02, 93.60, 94.47, 96.75, 2290 TSPL(01, 11) = 87.89, 89.31, 90.73, 92.02, 93.60, 94.47, 96.75, 2290 TSPL(01, 11) = 87.89, 89.31, 90.73, 92.02, 93.60, 94.47, 96.75, 2290 TSPL(01, 11) = 87.89, 89.31, 90.73, 92.02, 93.60, 94.47, 96.75, 2290 TSPL(01, 11) = 87.89, 89.31, 90.73, 92.02, 93.60, 94.47, 96.75, 2290 TSPL(01, 11) = 87.89, 89.31, 90.73, 92.02, 93.60, 94.47, 96.75, 2290 TSPL(01, 11) = 87.89, 89.31, 90.73, 92.02, 93.60, 94.47, 96.75, 95.80, 94.47, 96.75, 95.80, 94.47, 96.75, 95.80, 94.47, 96.75, 95.80, 94.47, 96.75, 95.80, 94.47, 96.75, 95.80, 94.47, 96.75, 95.80, 94.47, 96.75, 95.80, 94.47, 96.75, 95.80, 94.47, 96.75, 95.80, 94.47, 96.75, 95.80, 94.47, 96.75, 95.80, 94.47, 96.75, 95.80, 94.80, 96.75, 95.80, 94.80, 96.75, 95.80, 94.80, 96.75, 95.80, 94.80, 96.75, 95.80, 94.80, 96.75, 95.80, 94.80, 96.75, 95.80, 94.80, 96.75, 95.80, 94.80, 96.75, 96.75, 95.80, 94.80, 96.75, 95.80, 96.80, 94.80, 96.75, 95.80, 94.80, 96.75, 95.80, 94.80, 96.75, 95.80, 94.80, 96.75, 95.80, 94.80, 96.75, 95.80, 96.75, 95.80, 96.80, 96.75, 96.75, 96.80, 96.80, 96.75, 96.80, 96.80, 96.75, 96.80, 96.80, 96.75, 96.75, 96.80, 96.80, 96.75, 96.75, 96.80, 96.80, 96.75, 96.80, 96.82360 TSPL(01,11) = 88.44, 89.61, 90.78, 93.32, 93.44, 94.37, 96.55, $\begin{array}{l} 231 \& 1 \text{ SPL}(\texttt{A}1,\texttt{I2})=\texttt{89.81},\texttt{91.23},\texttt{92'.66},\texttt{93'.94},\texttt{94.77},\texttt{95.49},\texttt{96.42},\\ 232\& 1 \text{ SPL}(\texttt{A}1,\texttt{I3})=\texttt{92.30},\texttt{91.60},\texttt{92'.91},\texttt{94.43},\texttt{95.77},\texttt{96'.73},\texttt{97'.67},\\ 233\& 1 \text{ SPL}(\texttt{A}1,\texttt{I4})=\texttt{90.62},\texttt{91.43},\texttt{92.24},\texttt{94.51},\texttt{96.49},\texttt{97'.66},\texttt{97.74},\\ \end{array}$ 2340 TSPL(01,15) = 91.50, 92.18, 92'.87, 95'.39, 96.82, 98'.18, 99'.12, 2350 TSPL(01,16) = 91.63, 92'.70, 93.76, 95.28, 97.20, 98'.32, 59'.50, 2300 TSPL(01,17) = 93.39, 93.79, 94'.20, 95.95, 96.87, 98.98, 100'.92, 2370 TSPL(01,18)= 95.96, 95.68, 95.39, 96.28, 98.45,120.56,102.25, 2360 ISPL(01,19)=100.14, 09.52, 98.90, 97.28, 97.68, 98.44,100.73, 2390 ISPL(J1,20)=101.06,101.48,101.89,101.49, 99.63, 98.03, 09.93, 24k0 (SPL(01,21)= 98.36, 99.91,101.44,102.35,100.12, 97.96, 99.82, .4/, 114. (11,21)= 81.24, 83.55, 85.87, 90.75, 88.64, 89.47, 89.10, USZA TUPE (75,71)= 92.36, 96.48, 97.36,102.28,108.22,110.13, 2017 1982 (2+,22) = 94.41, 96.62,181.43,107.57,111.51,111.92, 2017 1982 (29,02) = 94.61, 96.97,104.04,108.42,112.86,112.52, 1000174,24) = 42.74, 25.75,185.32,110.95,114.64,112.05, 1. L.A. 2944 (1972 (1973 (1974 - 94.87, 1974 58, 196.15, 112.28, 114.47, 112.63, Line (19) (14, 97) = 94, 97, 169, 18, 146, 25, 113, 13, 114, 31, 109, 97, . · . 1 ...('+,1')=101.29,101.77,102.12,124.16, 93.87, 86'.87, ...()=100-100-100-100-100.67,103.53,120.71, 95.30, 88'.00, $\frac{1}{2} = \frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}$ P (14,14)=104.08,104.15,106.83,105.88,101.97, 94.70, · ' . . 2.1 i.' $(\cdot,\cdot)^*$

2740 TSPL(08,25) = 94.75, 96.00, 95!28, 92'18, 92.55, 82'60, 2752 TSPL(28,26) = 91.52, 94.65, 92'96, 85'93, 86.10, 79.01, 2762 TSPL(28,27) = 88.42, 93.13, 89'84, 84.85, 79.89, 77'59, 2782 s

*

1

and the second s

and the second sec

•

.....

A LUCES CARACE

INPUT SPECTKUM

TSSE32CAR2NB

c	
-	
ر × 1	
311	

-

i
IN I
FROW
<u>u:</u>
Ah:GI
2
T SH0
š

	• • •	1:0.13		:•c∐</th <th>112.05</th> <th>110.63</th> <th>100.071</th> <th>105.93</th> <th>2 1 1 1 1 2 2</th> <th>12.00</th> <th>95.77</th> <th>くらいいつ</th> <th>90.53</th> <th>60°U8</th> <th>ar, 71</th> <th>59.07</th> <th></th> <th>91.15</th> <th>02.70</th> <th>L7.20</th> <th>0:150</th> <th>07 °C0</th> <th>55°C0</th> <th>۲۶°0, ۲۱</th> <th>10.20</th> <th>50.6A</th> <th>10.07</th> <th>C.3</th> <th>c'</th>	112.05	110.63	100.071	105.93	2 1 1 1 1 2 2	12.00	95.77	くらいいつ	90 . 53	60°U8	ar, 71	59.07		91.15	02.70	L7.20	0:150	07 °C0	55°C0	۲۶ ° 0, ۲۱	10.20	50.6A	10.07	C.3	c '
	• • •	108.00	· 1 ! • • ·	×3°.11	114.61	114.17	10.211	112.08	11:01	10.0	105.24	101.31	92.67	95,00	04.04	03.07	05 . 30	0.4.10	101.00	101.07	ປິ ປີ. 101	09.73	V1 .00	7C . LO	50.20	40° 51	P.C. 1.2	19. 03	د •
	120.	102.201	1-17.57	<u>र</u> ⊽*3∪1	110.05	112 . 72	113.13	00°111	110 . 48	106.57	106.04	105.34	17.501	102.15	1 つい。 つ 3	100.15	100.71	103-54	101.03	105 . 69	103.01	100.01	30° UU I	CV. AO	05.60	or 10	95, 03	55° 26	ċ
J.J. IN I	130.	97.36	101.43	104.04	105.32	106.15	106.25	106.53	105.36	175.10	104.21	104.02	103.39	102.40	101.49	102.12	103.53	105.38	107.19	106,83	104.27	103.09	103.11	107.26	97.79	о г , 28	92.96	80.84	ċ
E FROM	22.	96.03	96.42	96.97	08.75	99.58	100.13	100.45	101.28	102.02	102.39	102.19	100.31	101.05	102.39	101.77	102.67	104.95	106.20	105.15	103,30	101.30	102.22	99.57	08. NU	96. CO	94.65	03.12	ċ
IC ANG	- - -	42.36	10.00	10.4V	93.70	79.67	74.47	00.00	97.32	98.56	98.02	08.8J	98.19	50.00	10.02	101.29	102.43	103.60	104.23	104 OP	00° CU1	100.35	101.66	98.77	97.65	94.75	91.52	88.4n	С
TSUO M	100.	4 ل. خ گ	42 . 25	00° C 5	62 .1 3	92.71	93 . 56	95.08	15.45	21.75	96.75	9 6. F5	96.42	47.67	97.74	51.35	00 . 50	100.92	102.25	1 00.73	60.03	69.90	1 nr. 79	99.95	97.96	95.10	6r.20	01 °04	ċ
	с. С. С.	17 . H3	1 C. OR	5.12	60° 74	se.02	51 . مي	د <mark>ا.</mark> ک	¢3.05	ς5. ×1	10.00	c4 .37	95.49	56.73	97 . 00	58.13	98 • 32	56° 85	100.55	98.44	08 . 03	ç7.95	101.83	<u>x</u>	98.50	04 . 35	CC* US	89.47	Ċ
	• ~~~	57. No	17.75	VH * 77	સંદ્રુક્ટ	10.08	30.5c	91.08		04. 2F	43.60	07.69	77.24	77 .de	90.09	96.82	11.20	96.87	98 . 15	97.08	99.63	100.12	102.54	101.65	98.71	35.40	90.54	38.60	°.
	-02	47.35	×1×	1	1.0.4 F	с <u>т</u> . С	50.00	00°.4	20.42	42 . 64	<i>~</i> ∪~ <i>~</i> ∂	03.50	40.00	94.43	16.40	95.39	95.2R	32.35	94.28	97.28	101.49	102.35	170.75	72.00	06.76	94.15	90.47	00°02	• •
	• · · · · ·	مطا ∙ ⊀ ل	• 11 • Y 11	·# • •1.	4. • •	£ Ч.7 Я	57.12	47 . 44	0.4.03		y.1.73	57. 70	22.00	19.59	52.24	18.52	~Z. 50	94.20	45 . 30	98.90	101.90	101.44	98.75	98.31	95 . 94	01.40	87.34	85.87	c.
	• J:-	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1		•	• 7 • 11 · 1	V U * 04	10.6%	14 ° 4 "	(v . et .	10°07		1 × 0:	€< • 1¢	دد. اخ د	62.10	\$2.18	02.70	93.79	37°30	54.05	101.28	10.00	72.76	97.35	C1.14	90.61	P5.33	83 . 55	c.
		Ŷ	•	•••	. 			1	37	1 L	x • / x	t:∵•6a	12.25	C 1 0 0	00.02	CC.12	01.53	63°30	05. JA	100.14	101.05	Эв.З8	96.47	04,33	93.50	64°28	83.43	81.22	• C
		55	"	٢	с	: : -	1 - 1	CUC		ir G	くいや	00 G	5.35	ς S	- 000 I	0971		0000	しじょう	5150	4 000	5 000	6300	2000	00001	10500	00091		25 001

advanta.

Achieves in the days

H.IGHT TRANSFORMATION SPECTRUM

FL TTHANS PROCHAM

с

ACOUSTIC ANGLE FROM IN ET

																													(N 1	•
160.	112.41	114.39	113.84	111.59	115.64	114.45	112.20	109.23	100.25	102.67	99 . 38	96.89	94 . 83	95.n3	96.17	90°30	101.87	102.61	104.56	102.55	103 . 81	101.33	08.57	90°04	90.55	86.07	R7.84	78.02) AWETER (1 A. UN
• ت د ا	108.62	110.22	113.21	114.37	114.96	115.30	114.40	112.63	104. P5	104.88	101.87	98. PA	97.52	97. 22	98 . 66	101.45	104.42	105.72	106.34	104.52	105.69	103.08	100.77	96.08	02, 84	84. DB	85. ዶ5	76.03	ger jer	,
140.	102.40	102.15	108.23	110.41	111.58	111.81	110.5R	109.75	104.13	106.22	104.34	103.02	100.93	101.38	102.03	104.92	107.25	107.43	105.42	10.3 . 38	103 . 58	103.12	99 . Ry	93.57	90. K3	87.44	10.08	RO. 30	ц ц	•
130.	96.27	07.49	102.65	104.15	104.42	105.93	105.46	105.66	101.75	104.17	103.90	102.45	101.89	102.85	174.62	176.49	103.29	108.13	106.27	105.07	106.13	103.04	101.51	98.61	01.40	92.45	64.49	ዩና • 5 ነ	(FT/SFC	
120.	92.70	92.15	96.53	98.01	98.69	99.89	100.96	102.47	100.51	102.23	100.30	101.15	102.85	102.58	103.84	106.47	107.79	106.80	105.64	103.53	105.39	103.31	101.93	99.71	00.57	96.84	98 . ×1	R9.70	1.0CITY	79 UN
-10-	89 . 60	91 . 84	90.71	01.69	93.15	93.11	95.22	96.32	98.17	95.85	98 N2	97.41	00 30	99.67	101.36	102.R4	104.35	105.34	105.13	103.48	101.92	103.59	1 nn . R4	00.51	96.12	92. PB	F.C. HR	88.23	: ЈЕТ ИЕ	
100.	85.31	90.96	9C.R6	91.08	91.98	92.77	94.51	94.62	96.65	95.66	96.36	96.30	97.76	95.20	99.86	100.59	102.38	104.15	102.86	102.21	102.27	In3, 35	102.54	100.43	97. 33	94.71	30° XX	90°06	РРСБ	•
90 .	88.71	R0.37	52.19	R0.84	90.40	91 ° 84	92.15	43.27	95.93	94.87	94.87	96 . 12	97.53	98. NO	99.43	60.02	100.53	103.05	101.44	101.03	100 . 96	104.83	104.13	101.55	97.35	53 . 27	LV. CO	92.47	ACTOR	
RO.	89.47	88.70	89.96	39.60	90.45	91.83	92.38	93.25	95.64	95.06	94.94	96.41	97.55	98. N3	98.96	00.62	99.61	101.59	100.84	172.79	103.53	106.08	105.19	102.25	97.80	94 . 08	92.53	92.53	SCALF F	CALC. 3.200
70.	99.32	00.08	30.26	00.37	91.46	91.58	92.38	93.24	95.11	94.53	95,90	96.53	97.18	07.38	38.41	38.51	99.42	100.05	100.61	194.81	106.14	104.33	103.64	101.97	98,22	74.54	94.99	94.89	L SIZF	517 230
δ η.	H5.27	R8.27	89.77	88 . 75	90.63	12.12	91.33	90.86	92 . 46	93.82	10.10	94.29	96.21	96.52	95.92	96.63	97.64	98.19	99.49	102.05	105.15	104.93	102.36	101.54	98 . 5×	92.79	87.74	85 . 66		H N N
50.	85.90	98.89	88.36	88.53	R9. R1	90.39	40.37	91.03	42.8A	93.46	02.50	20.02	95.65	96.05	95.91	64.49	97.25	05 33	100.28	172.84	104.87	103.58	101.87	100.67	97.74	91.40	86.17	84.09	MC	
40.	86.25	30°25	86.95	88.44	<u>88</u> .88	39.46	89.31	91.07	03.15	92.98	9.3. OR	93.62	94.98	05.47	95.77	96.63	96.74	09.45	100.93	103.59	104.53	102.04	101.24	100.23	94.70	89 . PG	84.50	87.39		
FRFG	55	۳ ۲	Å	Ę	125	160	202	250	315	400	ک د	630	မီဒိ	1000	1220	1600	CUUZ	2 L U U	3150	4 J00	5000	5300	3000	00001	10500	15000		25 707		

:

ALPHA OPTION - SAF

TURRULANCE CORRECTION - YES

REFRACTION CORRECTION - YES

1 ļ 1 This section reads the NACELINE input, initializes parameters and arrays, prints the urput arrays. The ANGLIST statement, with ANGLIST mass (INUTLy, contains the list of parameters which in a burring to the PLTRAN Trogram. See Section 1.0 for addinations of these parameters. This section contains all of the formati statements within this protract. Bernaus 1000, 1010, and 100 are used to prior, the right transformation 1010, 1010, 1020, and 1110 are used to prior the flight transformed array and pupt options. Formats successing \$250, state various error conditions which will cause the program to stop. ł ļ This sectors intrusi free LAMA, (EERA-SEX, FORD) MACE, and SPO assessments. It such the netted fact the LAMA (EERA block) SMERTU and (CONT) are used by withouther fills, which is face flight framework and (CONT) are used by withouther fills, which is face flight framework and (CONT) are used sectors in the lawa of netter distribu-stationation. The users the strend and is a face flight framework additionation statement lating the store of the arrange show are being upon of calculated. The type statement distributes certain variables as frequencies. NAMELISI Statement Lines 10350-10380 Lines 105.04.1 0430 Lanes 10150-10330 Times Tardet 10160 Section C Section B Section A pur 101300 1000 FORMAT (1H1/1X, "FLTTRANS PROGRAM", 101300 1010 FOPMAT (1H1/1X, "FLTTRANS PROGRAM", 10220 1010 FOPMAT (158,13,115)/(10220 1020 FORMAT (15,13,17(F7,21)) 10230 1020 FORMAT (11/1X, "FLTTRANS PROGRAM", 10230 1100 FORMAT (11/1X, "FLTTRANS PROGRAM", 10240 8 STX, "FLIGHT TFRANS PROGRAM", 10250 8 STX, "FLIGHT FFSECTION - ", A3, SX, "ALPHA OFTION - ", A3, 10290 8 STX, "REFRACTION - ", A3, SX, "ALPHA OFTION - ", A3, 10290 8 TURBULANCE CORRECTION - ", A3, SX, "ALPHA OFTION - ", A3, 10300 BOOD FORMAT (1H0, "ERROR READING NAMELIST INPUT") 10300 8 "NEEDED TO DETERMINE AIR ATTENUATION") ٩ -OR SHIELDS AND BASS, IABS UDOUT THIS COMPATER FRUGHAM, DEVELOPED BY GENERAL ELECTRIC UNDER OCIDE THE HIGH VELOCITY JET NOISE HEQUETION PROGRAM, TRANSFORMS OLICOC MEASLALE ONE-THIRD OCTAVE BLAD SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS OLICOC MEASLALE ONE-THIRD OCTAVE BLAD SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS ODIOD OBTAINED JSING A FREE JET FACILITY TO THOSE IN FLIGHT ODIOD COMMON FELECOM ABSORP(33,2), DOPCON(5), FRED(33), 0050 COMMEN FLACON ABSORP(33,2), DOPCON(6), FRED(33), & IALPHA, LODPS, LOSHFI(6), IFREQ(33), ISB, NBCDL, & NBCDO, RPD, SADSND, TESTD & NBCDO, RPD, SADSND, TESTD COMMON / SAMFEL/ (FEFRC,1 TUREC.ND, PL COMMON / COMFEL/ DIAMJT, EM, FF, LIE, NP, SPL1(10), SPLF(10), _____DIMENSION ANGLE(19)_ANGOT(19)_FPAR(33)_SPLDIN(2)_____ & SPIDDT(2),SPIN(5),SPOT(5),SPLDS(19,33),SPLFLT(19,33) & TSPL(19,33) 140 WRITE (NBCD0,1000) WRITE (NRCD0,1010) SPIDIN,SPIN, (ANGLE(1),1=1,NANG) US0 150 J±1,NKRG0 WRITE (NRCD0,1020) IFREG(J), (ISPL(1,J),1=1,NANG) NAMELIST /INPUT/ ANGLE, DIAMJT, FLTVEL, IALPHA, IDOPS, & IREFRC. JIUBEC. NANG. NFREQ. & SCFACT, SPIDIN, SPIDOT, SPIN, SPOT, SPDSND, & TESTD, TSPL 900 #30% ** 1547505 NRBTAGE5/FLTRANC(BCD,NOGO) 110 READ (NBCD1, INPUT, END=900, ERR=800) IF (TESTD.LE.0.0) 00 T0 820 SET AIR ATTENUATION INDICATOR FOR SAE I ABS=2 (IALPHA, EQ. ISB) INTEGER SPIN, SPOT ANGOT (1) = ANGLE (1) D1ST=TESTD/1000.0 PRINT INPUT SPECTRUM 0450C READ NAMELIST INPUT DO 120 1=1.NANG 100 D0 102 1=1,19 ANG01(1)=0.0 NANGOT = NANG 10390C 10400C INITILALZATION & THETD(10) 102 CONTINUE 150 CONTINUE 120 CONTINUE I ABS= 1 Ŀ 10120 10130 10140 101500 101500 10520 105300 101100 105800 10340C 0440C 10500 101400 100700 10410 10430 10620 0600 10380 10490 4 10640C 0360 10610 10460 0350 10470 10550 10560 10590 10600 4

1 1 I i 1 I Į Input angles must be even multiples of ten. No carrypolation will be done to establish spectra at angles on einher end of the array. Because of test conditions an array sometime' does have a missing angle. The data for an array is completed by using linear interpolation to fill in the missing angle. The interpolation is done between angles using the angles on either side of the missing angle. Menever possible, linear interpolation is used to evaluate an input StD of trees. Zero StD: levels any occur due to correcting the measured data for the background house on the free jet. The interpolation is done between frequencies for the given angle rather than between aggles. If the zero StU is not between two nonzero SPL's it will be set to the nearest nonzero SPL value. This section contains calculations for the scale factor, which wanter and frequenty parameters and user literar instropolation to determine the \$U's a frequenties where the input SU's write serve when S is the adjusted scale factor and SO.O is again the frequency of the first third outave frequency band. where S, is the input scale factor and S0.0 is the frequency of the finite function to the frequency band. The terms are the third octave frequency which is closest to Sr. Let this be F. Then where W is the Much number, V is the flight velocity, and C is the speed of sound for a 59° standard day. where D is the diameter of the jet in inches and S is the adjusted scale factor. where FP is the frequency parameter corresponding to third octave frequency band j and F_j is the frequency for band j . even third-The input scale factor sust be adjusted to account for octave outer band shifts. P = (F x D x S)/(12.0 x 1116.0) This is accomplished as follows: Frequency parameter/constant Sr - 50.0 x Sr FP, = P × F, 5 = F/50.0 N - V/C Lines 10650-11540 Zero SPL values Missing angles Scale factor Mach number Section D Thus. ۵
 IDESOC
 CALCULATE
 SCALE
 FACIOR
 (SCFACI)

 10660
 160
 SCFREGAFREG(1)*SCFACT
 FROM INPUT
 SCALE
 FACIOR
 (SCFACI)

 10660
 160
 SCFREGAFREG(1)*SCFACT
 0600
 162
 J=1, WFREG
 0600
 162
 J=1, WFREG

 10660
 1F
 (SCFREGALT)
 SCFAC1)
 30
 T0
 164

 10660
 1F
 (SCFREGALTFFREG(J))
 30
 T0
 164

 10700
 0F
 SCFREGALFFREG(J))
 30
 T0
 164

 10700
 CO
 TF
 SCFREGALFFREG(J))
 30
 T0
 164

 10700
 CO
 TF
 SCFREGALFFREG(J))
 30
 T0
 164

 10700
 I64
 TO
 I66
 1070
 1070
 1070
 1070

 10720
 I64
 IC
 IC</td NANGOTTHANGOT+1 NANGOTTHANGOT(1)+10.0 ANGOT(1+1)=ANGOT(1)+10.0 CONST=(ANGOT(1+2)-ANGOT(1+1))/(ANGOT(1+2)-ANGOT(1)) CONST=(ANGOT(1+2)-ANGOT(1+2))/(ANGOT(1+2))-TSPL(1,0)) TSPL(1+1,0)=TSPL(1+2,0)-CONST*(TSPL(1+2,0)-TSPL(1,0)) 75PL(1,J)=TSPL(1,J-1)+(TSPL(1,JJ)-TSPL(1,J-1))/DIV 250 CONTINUE 260 CONTINUE 10740 IF (DELI.V.) 10740 IS SCALE*CNFRED/FRED(1) 109400 IS SCALE*CNFRED/FRED(1) 108400 EM=FLTVEL/SPDSND 10820 180 EM=FLTVEL/SPDSND 10820 180 EM=FLTVEL/SPDSND 10840 D0 180 J=1, NFRED 10840 190 FPA(J)*FRED(J)*CONST 10850 190 FPA(J)*FRED(J)*CONST (ANGOT(1+1)-ANGOT(1).LE.10.5) GO TO 285 11280C TEST FOR ZERO FLIVEL (NO TRANSFORMATION) 11280C TEST FOR ZERO FLIVEL.01. 001 00 T0 300 11300 D0 290 J=1, NFREQ 11310 D0 290 I=1, NAN00T 11320 290 CONTINUE 11340 00 T0 566 D0 260 11, NAM9 D0 260 11, NAM9 D0 250 J1, NFREQ IF (J.9E. NFREQ) 00 T0 220 JJ1*J4I D0 210 JJ*J1, NFREQ D0 210 JJ*J1, NFREQ IF (T2PL(1, JJ), 0T, 001) 00 T0 230 IF (T2PL(1, JJ), 0T, 001) 00 T0 230 60 IF (J.LE.1) 00 TO 260 120 220 IF (TSPL(1,J-1).LE..001) 00 TO 260 100 TSPL(1,J):TSPL(1,J-1) 100 00 TO 250 100 230 IF (J.0T.1) 00 TO 240 IF (I.LE.NANGOT-1) 00 TO 265 DC 270 J=1, VERED (1A, J) TSPL(1A+1, J)=TSPL(1A, J) 270 CONTINUE 1 A= NANGOT DO 275 1KNT=1+1, NANGOT ANGOT(1A+1)=ANGOT(1A) 10860C TEST FOR ZERO SPL VALUES 10890C TEST FOR ZERO SPL VALUES 10890 DO 260 1=1, NANO 10890 DO 250 J=1, NFREQ TSPL(1,J)=TSPL(1,JJ) GO TO 250 11080C TEST FOR MISSING ANGLES 240 DIV=JJ-J+1 CONTINUE 275 CONTINUE I - V = I - I 1=1 265 1F n 210 280 10950 110700 11030 10900 10910 10920 020 11120 11160 111**90** 11200 11210 11240 000 11060 0 1090 000 10990 11100 1220 \$ 50 1104 SEE Maiere

		Section E Lines 11360-12060	This section prepares duta for the flight transformation subroutine, FEINE. At quadrant data are transformed thishild different time forward quadrant data. LIE is the indicator that relis FEINE the quadrant free which the data were taken. It is set to one for the aft quadrant or to two for the forward quadrant. Data for the aft quadrant angles [90" through 100") are transformed first. Then the process is repeated for the forward housing (50" hence h 90").	The input angles are neared from the injet. Fill% requires them to be measured from the exhaust. To convert from injet or chanat freforence eith input angle is subtract. From sub. The angles are varie to the fill sub- coutting the infill array subsection from the input SNF intry, are stored in the corresponding SNF values taken from the input SNF intry, are stored in the corresponding SNF values taken from the input SNF intry, are stored in the corresponding SNF values taken from the input SNF intry, are stored in the forth array. The input SNF's are converted to "lossless" by adding balk either SNF or SNF eids and area. Therefore, it is investigation the process of finling the SNL array for each much frequency. FT is set to the frequency parameter corresponding to that input frequency.	FEINE Heaves the transformed stury in the SNLB array. Upon treturn from FEINE the SNLE array is stored in the SNLBT array which will eventually contain all flight transformed sound pressure levels.		
C SET THETD ARRAY FOR REAR QUADRANT ANGLES 300 19-MUGOT 1=' 310 1F (ANGOT(1R) LT 89 0) CO TU 320 THETD(1)=100 0-ANGOT(1R) 18-11 1=1+1+1 1=	C FLIGHT THANSFORMATION FOR REAR QUADRANT, ALL FREQUENCIES LLE=1 00 390 J=1,NFRE0 FP=FPAR(J) ADDER=ABSORP(J,IABS)=DIST C SET SPL) ARRAY FROM TSPL, TAKE OUT AIR ATTENUATION (LOSSLESS) 340 11-NANGOT+)	D0 350 1=1,NP 11=11-1 252 CONTINUE C CALCULATE FLIGHT TRANSFORMATION C CALL FEIHE C	C STORE SPLF IN SPLFLT ARRAY K=NP+1 DD 370 1=NA,NANGOT K=K-1 SPLFLT(1,J)=SPLF(K) 370 CONTINUE	C 390 CONTINUE C SET THETD ARRAY FOR FORWARD QUACRANT ANGLES C SET THETD ARRAY FOR FORWARD QUACRANT ANGLES 1 = 1 402 THETDL(1)=180.0-ANGOT(1R) 1 = 1 1	1=1+1 410 NP=1 NP=1 NP=1 C C ELLGHT IRANSFORMATION FOR FORWARD QUADRANT. ALL FREQUENCIES C ELLGHT IRANSFORMATION FOR FORWARD QUADRANT. ALL FREQUENCIES DO 490 J=1,NFREQ FOFFREABS(J) 1ABS)=DIST ADDFREABS(J) 1ABS)=DIST	C SET SPLI ARAY FROM TSPL, TAKE OUT AIR ATTENUATION (LOSSLESS) 440 II=NA+ DO 450 I=1+NP II=II-1 SPLI(I)=TSPL(II,J)+ADDER 450 CONTINUE	C CALCULATE FLIGHT TRANSFORMATION C CALL FEIHE C STORE SPLF IN SPLFLT ARRAY K = NP +1 D C 27 0 1 = 1, NP K = K -1 A7 0 CONTINUE 470 CONTINUE
1188 1188	115100000000000000000000000000000000000	11550 11500 115000 11500 11500 115000 115000 11000 11000 11000 11000 11000 11000 11000 11000 11000 11000 11000 11000 11000 110000 110000 11000000	11630 11640 11650 11660 11660	11750 11720 11720 11720 11750 11750 11750	111780 11780 11810 11810 11820 11810 11850 11850 11850	11860 11860 11900 11900 11900 11920 11930 11930	1120200

120800	OCPPLER SHIFT	
12090	498 IF (IDDPS NE ND) 60 TO 510	
12110	DO 500 J=1.NFRED	
12120	SPLDS((1, J)=SPLFLT(1, J)	
12130	500 CONTINUE	
12150	510 00 570 1=1 NANGT	
12160	DOPFAC=1.0/(1.0-EM*COS(ANGOT(1)*RPD))	
12170	DC 520 K=1,6	Section F
12190	IF (DOPFAC.GE.DOPCON(K)) GO TO 520 IFLAG=IDSHFT(K)	Lines 12080-12510
12200	GO TO 53C	The flight transformed array, stored in the SPLFLT array, may be Doppler
12210	520 CONTINUE 151 AG 2	shifted. The boppier factor is calculated as:
12230	530 00 570 J=1, NFREQ	D = 1.0/(1.0-M x cos A ₁)
12240	JJ=J+IFLAG 15 (11 OF 1) OF TA EAO	where W is the Mach number and $A_{\rm A}$ is the ith input angle.
10060	21 (30.02.1) 60 10 340 20 021 1)=20 51 11-2 0+51 041(1-11)	The Doppler factor is commared with values tabulated in the DOPCON table.
12270		This then determines the Doppler shift which is tabulated in the corresponding insuff table. These satisfy doilow
12280	540 IF (JJ. LE. NFREQ) 60 TO 560	
12300	550 JF (SPLDS(1,J)*SPLFLI(1,NFREW)-3.0*FL0A1(JJ-NFREW) 550 JF (SPLDS(1,J).67001) 60 T0 570	
12310	SPLDS(1, J)=0.0	
12320	GO IO 5/0 #440 SPID6/1 1)-SPIELT/1 11)	
12340	570 CONTINUE	
123500		
123600	PUT AIR AITENUATION BACK IN	The founder chifted array is stored in the SFIDS array. Since the flight
12380	200 00 304 3ª1, MFREU ADDER=ABSORP(J, 1ABS) * DIST	transformed array is "lossless" the standard day air attenuation are subtracted.
12390	DO 584 I=1, NANGOT	The flight transformed array is then printed out.
12400	SPLDS(1,J)=SPLDS(1,J)-AUDEK	Control it returned to Cartion C to pressure to transform another error
124200		COLLEGE IN VERTICE TO SELLIOI C TO DIEDATE TO LIANNICE ALLON .
124300	PRINT FLIGHT TRANSFORMED SPECTRUM, SPLDS	Error Returns - Lines 12530-12570
12440	386 WRITE (NBCDD,1100) USITE (NBCDD,1100) SBIDGT SBET (ANGGT(1) 1-1 NANGGT)	When an error is encountered in the program a comment is printed and the
12460	WKITE (NGCUO, TUTU) SPITUOI, SPUT, (ANGUINI), 1°TI, NANGUI) Do 590 J=1, NFREQ	program terminutes. The formats used for printing these statements may be found in Section B.
12470	WRITE (NBCDO, 1020) IFREQ(J), (SPLDS(I, J), I=1, NANGOT)	
12490	WRITE (NBCDO, 1110) FLTVEL, DIAMJT, SCFACT, SCALE, IREFRC, ITURBO	, I ALPHA
125000		
12510 12520C	60 T0 100	
125300	ERROR RETURNS	
12550	BUU WRITE INBUUD, BUUU) Gâ tâ 900	
12560	820 WRITE (NBCD0, 8200)	
12570	GO TO 900	
12590	900 \$TOP	
12600	END	
20000C 20010C		
200200	BLOCK DATA SUBROUTINE FOR FLTTRANS	-
20040	BLOCK DATA	
20060	COMMON /BLKCON/ ABSORP(33,2),DOPCON(6),FREQ(33),	
20070	& IALPHA, IDOPS, IDSHFI(6), IFREQ(33), ISB, NBCDI,	
20090	COMMON /BLKFEI/ IREFRC, ITURBC, NO, PI	

Section 6 Lines 2011-5/12 The MLA structure active activitie in region priorite, evaluate a coastant, of evaluate activities in region activities activities coastant, of evaluate activities to the state activities activitities activititie	The following constructs of the following constructs of the following constructs of the following constructs are assigned values	Constant Set to Definition ISB SR 14194 A Tested agains: 15k to deterring hetters 54 to 15 and 15 and 15 and 15 and hetters 54 to 15 and 15 and 15 and attenuation is requested RPD 1.745(2) at 10 ⁻² matters from degrees to 113,000 hetters from degrees to 113,000 hetters for andhet for monetat input. NSCN0 00 11 outenents for andhet input.	NO NO Used to determine whether an option is set to YLS or NO. PI 3.1415926 1 The following tables are evaluated 1	Table Definition DOPCON The Depyler furths: technicic with this table to determine the longifier shift IDSHET This table correction is in the under of frequency is to POPCON and contains the number of frequency hands to longifier shift the spectrum.	ABS/APP(1,1) S.E. air attenuation table for a 50° standard day. ABS/APP(1,2) Shields and hys atmospheric attenuation table for a 50° trandard Jus The one third octave frequency brands in interger FREQ The one-third octave frequency brands used in FREQ The one-third octave frequency brands used in the calculations.	
DATA NGCDI (05 DATA NGCDO (06) DATA IALPHA OHSAE/ DO DATA IALPHA OHSAE/ DATA IDJPS (04)YES/ DATA IRFRC OHYES/ CALA IRFRC OHYES/ DATA IURBC (04)YES/ DATA NO (24)NO/ DATA NO (2	D DATA DOPCON /0.56,0.71,0.69,1.12,1.41,1.78/ D DATA 105HFT /3,2,1,0,-1,-2/ DC DATA PL /1.7453235-2/ D DATA RPD /1.7453235-2/ D DATA RPD /1.7453235-2/ D DATA RPD /1.7652235-2/ D DATA RPD /1.76522355-2/ D DATA RPD /1.765223355-2/ D DATA RPD /1.765223355-2/ D DATA RPD /1.76522355-2/ D DATA RPD /1.76522355-2/ D DATA RPD /1.775223355-2/ D DATA RPD /1.775223355-2/ D DATA RPD /1.775223355-2/ D DATA RPD /1.775222355-2/ D DATA RPD /1.7752223555-2/ D DATA RPD /1.7752223555-2/ D DATA RPD /1.7752723555-2/ D DATA RPD /1.77527235555-2/ D DATA RPD /1.7752723555-2/ D DATA RPD /1.775272555-2/ D DATA RPD /1.775272555-2/ D DATA RPD /1.775272555-2/ D DATA RPD /1.77527555-2/ D DATA RPD /1.77527555-2/ D DATA RPD /1.77527555-2/ D DATA RPD /1.775555-2/ D DATA RPD /1.7	00 AIR ATTENUATION - SAE, 59 DEG. 00 DATA (ABSORP(1,1),1=1,33) / 143368, 179323, 229739, 00 & 077286, 090239, 11454133, 572862, 724422, 915994, 00 & 186768, 1.46879, 1.84874, 2.38951, 3.03453, 3.97129, 00 & 186858, 1.46879, 1.84874, 2.38951, 3.03453, 3.97129, 00 & 2.84432, 9.03521, 12.8734, 18.7629, 26.9699, 01 & 3.89.9609, 58.6695, 84.57555, 121.5555, 175.774, 256.393, 02 & 363.185, 519.9455, 522.1577,	OC AIR ATTENUATION - SHIELDS AND BASS, 59 DEG OC AIR ATTENUATION - SHIELDS AND BASS, 59 DEG DATA (ABSORP(1,2),111,33) / G C 0. 016864.025557,042256,064760,098255,153155 C 2. 223740,317355,440318,590096,345135,917527 C 2. 223740,317735,440318,500096,54535,917527 C 2. 223740,317735,440318,500096,50056,315527 C 2. 223740,317735,440318,500096,50066,3153757 C 2. 223740,317735,440318,500096,500056,3153757 C 2. 223740,317735,440318,500096,500056,3153757 C 2. 223740,317735,440318,500056,300056,3153757 C 2. 223740,317735,440318,500056,300056,3153757 C 2. 223740,317735,440318,500056,300056,3153757 C 2. 223740,317735,440318,500056,300056,3153757 C 2. 223740,317735,440318,500056,300056,3153757 C 2. 223740,317745,300,317745,30056,300056,300056,300056,30056,30000000000	0 8 5.17598, 7.9361, 1.9746, 5.9111, 26.9328, 40.7421, 5.958 0 8 5.17598, 7.9311, 26.9238, 40.7421, 5.958 0 8 61.3409, 95.2370, 139.113, 198.203, 276.829, 376.470, 5.058 0 8 61.3409, 95.2370, 139.113, 198.203, 276.829, 376.470, 5.058 0 8 61.3409, 95.28370, 139.113, 198.203, 276.829, 376.470, 5.058 0 8 61.3409, 95.28370, 139.113, 198.203, 276.829, 376.470, 5.058 0 8 405.966, 619, 037, 799.2837 0 8 405.965, 619, 037, 799.2837 0 8 203, 276.470, 500, 500, 500, 500, 500, 500, 500, 5	0 & 630,000,1000,12500,1600,2000,2500,31500,5000,5000,5000, 0 & 6300,60000,12500,16000,20000,25000,31500,40000,50000, 0 DATA FRED /50, 630,900,1100,125,1160,200,2200,3150, 0 & 4000,500,6300,4000,11000,1250,1600,2000,3150, 0 & 4000,500,6300,9000,11000,1250,1600,20000,3150, 0 & 25000,31500,40000,50000,12000,12000,120000,3150, 0 & 25000,31500,40000,50000,12000,12000,1000, 0 & 25000,31500,40000,50000,12000,12000,1000, 0 & 25000,2000,000,40000,50000,12000,12000,000,000,000,000,000,000	

900×#RL	N *=;1547555/NRBTASK5/FE1HEC(BCD, NOGO)	
2000400	SUBROUTINE DERIVED FROM PROGRAM FEIHE	
2000500	CORIGINAL PROGRAM CAME FROM RAMANI MANI, Research Labs, Schenectady	
200000	SUDROUTINE FEIHE	
2000900	COMMAN AR KEEL / DECEOF ITUDAR WA PI	
200120	COMMON / COMFEL / DIAMJT, EM, FP, LIE, NP, SPLI(10), SPLF(10),	
200130		
200150	DIMENSION A(10,10), AVERR(5), B(10), CORR(10), ERROR(10),	
200160	& F(10,10),F1(10),FF(10,10),G(10),GF(10),GP(10), & LJVAL(10),IND(10),INDEX(10),SPL(10),SPLFTM(10,5),SPLP(10),	
200180	<pre>& THET(10), W(10), X(10), Y(10), YY(10), Z(10)</pre>	
	DATA CEM /1 D/	
2002100		
200220	IF (NP. GE. 6) GO TO 120	
200240	WKITE (UZ,IIB) 116 förmat (/354 program reduires at least 6 prints)	
200250	00 TO 5000	Section H
200260	120 NSST=3-LIE	Lines 200220 through 200350 is test to determine if the injet and enhance
2002620	V PALCIN ATTON OF DEFDACTION CODDECTION	are data to be transformed have at least six points, if not the computation
200270	CALCULATION OF REFRACTION CONNECTION	will be torminated.
200280	MAX=MCASE+1	
200290	T0P12=(2./Pf)==2	Lines 200200 Unrough 200060 contain the routine to calculate the refraction correction as a function of angle and frequency to be applied to the input sound
200310	ETTT=CETTTETT THETO=ATAN(SORT(2.*EMM+EMM**2))	pressure levels. LJE is set equal to 2 for the forward quadrant computation and equal to 1 for the aft quadrant communities. Mit is the level of evention
200320	THETOD=THETO#180./PI	at which the fitting of input data is initiated. Specifically NuX equal to 1, 2
200330	DØ 157 [#],NP	or 3 corresponds to monopole, dipole or quadrupoic source types, respectively. The equations used to calculate the refraction correction are summarized on
200350	CTH=COS(TH) * T1/1800.	pages 267 and 268 of Reference 6.
200360	00=(1EMMsCTH)==2	
200370	GTH#SIN(TH)	
200390	CIHZ*CIH*CIH XP=FP±STH	
200400	YP=FP#SQRT(ABS(CTH2-(1EMM*CTH)##2))	
200410	SCHUBE: 26*EFFM*(30.7*FP-4.35)	
200430	9CH061 ≅41,67*55mH [F(\$CH08,07,SCHUB1)SCHUB≠SCHUB1	
200432	CORR(1)=0	
200434	IF (IREFRC.EQ.NO) GOTO 562 15 / 58 / 12 / 20 12 15 25	
200450	CALL BESLJY (XP. FJOX. FJIX. FYOX. FYIX)	
200460	IF (THETD(1).0T.THETOD) 60 TO 150	
200470	CALL BESLI(YP, FIOY, F(1Y)	
200490	HBG10=YP#F11Y#FJ0X+XP#F10Y#QU#FJ1X A]BGT0=YP#F11Y#FY0X+KP#F10Y#QQ#FY1X	
200500	GO TO 153	
200510	150 CALL BESLJ(YP,FJ0Y,FJ1Y) 2027	
200530	ADDT0=YP#FJJY#FY0X-XP#FJ0Y#QQ#FYJX	
200540	153 CRR=TOP12/(RBdT0##2+4(B0T0##2) CCBB/1)4 34305#44(R0/CBB)	
<u>.</u>		

ş

1 ļ Lines 2010 Contraction on any second structure to the most study of data structures of the second of the second of the second structure control (1971) 10 and Meeters. i i James 200001 Encloye 2007 Controlling the turbulence of sorrycan contection link contention of Alicebon of Federics and angle. In Prior 2007D and 20050 that socretion is added to the refraction contection. In lines 2007AG through 200810, the input sound pressure levels, SPL(I) are corrected for ruthulence absorption and refraction. The output of this section is SPL(I). This section, lines 201040 through 201401, cilculates the normalized F array which is i function of simplicity organ (is reample, buts array for the quadrupic fifting level now to written at follows: the forward quadrant This section, lines 2008/0 through 200890, determines the minimum sour J pressure lovel in a given such thermines the deflative to this vidue for the transming levels and then linearizes these lovels. This section, lines 200900 through 201000 calculates the normalization constants, N₅ using the expression are the exponent of the singularity type being considered. This 1 and h integral was evaluated using (quarteen 85% 514 from Reference 15. for to Cos 160/N1 Cos 160 Sin 160 /N2 Sin 160/N3 Sin⁴150, V₁ S10⁴140/S₃ 5104130/53 510⁴120/N₄ sin⁴110/N₁ Similar generalized styre-sizes may be written and also for the various singularities considered 51n⁴100/N3 SIN⁴91. N cos²¹ ê sin²^h ê dê. Cos²150 Sin²150/N₂ Costisu Sintisers. Cos⁺120 Sun⁺120/N; Cost 10 Sin-119/N. Costinu Sintiar V. Costed Sin2ports $N_{S}^{2} = 2/- \int_{0}^{\pi/2} c_{c}$ Cos⁴130/N₁ Cos⁴120/N₁ Cos4150/N Cos⁴140/5 Cos⁴110/N Cos 100/N Cos490/N1 Section J Section M Section 1 Section K Section L ٤ 200662C 200666C CALCULATION O' TURBULENCE ABSORFTION CORRECTION 200566 IF (ITURBC EQ NO) 60 TO 157 200522 FA IF (TAC90 6T 3) 7500-53 200590 IF (LIE EQ.2) 60 TO 578 200700 TAC=TAC90 6T 3) 7AC90-53 200700 TAC=TAC90-2 (I 5-THETO(1)/60 J 200720 6CTO 157 200730 60 TO 157 200730 61 157 200730 15 (ITAC 11 - 1TAC) 200330 200 170 121 NE 200350 188 L11 NE 200350 188 CANTINE 200350 200 170 120 CANTINE 200550 200 170 120 CANTINE 200350 200 170 120 CANTINE 200350 200 170 120 CANTINE 200350 200 170 120 CANTINE 200750 200 120 CANTINE 200750 200 110 CANTINE 200750 200 110 10 CANTINE 200750 200 200500 462 F (LIE E0 2) 60 T0 467 200560 15.483.THETD(1.20.) LT.1.) 208H(1)=56HUB 200590 15.483.THETD(1.20.) LT.1.) 208H(1)=56HUB 2 200590 15.483.THETD(1)=30) LT 1 (208P(1)=56HUB 2 200510 15.483.THETD(1)=50) LT 1 (208P(1)=56HUB 4 200540 60 T0 562 TERM=GAMF(TA)*GAMF(TB)/(C*GAMF(AA)*GAMF(BB)) YY(1)=S0RT(TERM) F(J,1)=CTH2**(MAX-J)*STH2**(J-1)/YY(J) ţ 1 0:485(THETD(1)-90) 1F (0.07.1.) 60 70 580 F(MAX,1)=1./YY(MAX) 200900 TEXTERMAX-11+1 200900 TEXTERMAX-11+1 200910 TEXTERMAX-11+1 200930 Do 248 (TEXTE) 200950 Do 248 (TET)+1 200950 DE 248 (TT)+1 200950 TETE(1-1)+1 200950 TETE(1-1)+1 200950 TETE(1-1)+1 200950 TETE(1-1)+1 200950 TETE(1-1)+1 200950 TETERMAX-11+1 200950 TETERMAX-11+1 200050 TETERMAX-11+1 200050 248 CONTINUE 201050 2000 248 CONTINUE 201050 248 CONTINUE 580 CTH2=C0S(TH) **2 XUINT STH2=SIN(TH) ##2 450 CONTINUE GO TO 400 GO TO 157 201120 20130 20130 20140 20150 20150 201100 200560

cction N This section, lines 20170 through 201270, sets the Farray G(160) quired for the least squares fitting routine. Also the Barray G(180) defined as the Innerrized values, G(1) relative to the Affined as the Garray would be written as follows: G(180) inimum SPL level. The Garray would be written as follows: G(180) G(100)	ection 0 G(90) ection 0 G(90) This section calls line 201300 the "NULS" subroutine for calculating officients of the singularity level being considered. In general this ubroutine solves the problem of finding a nonnegative vector $\tilde{\lambda}_i$ given asist squares sonse.		ection P This section, lines 201290 through 201520, is the recombination procedure ad test to distrimine the less singular distribution. The generalized resolution procedure is described in Reference 6 and an example is also resented.		section Q This section of the program, lines 201530 through 201560, calculates the imediated static and flight main square Pressure Pressure Devels. Of(1) is the	intestized tevels initight. Gr(L) are the predicted linearized levels.	
201170 D0 1030 1=1, MAX 201190 13VL(1)=1 201190 1030 COVTINUE 201200 D0 1160 1=1.NP 201210 B(1)=6(1) 201220 1160 COVTINUE 201220 1160 COVTINUE 201220 D0 1240 J=1.MAX 201220 D0 1240 J=1.MAX	201250 1200 CONTINUE 201270 1250 CONTINUE 201270 1250 CONTINUE 201280 CALL MILSIA, D. NP. MAX. B. X. RNORH, W. Z. INDEX. MODEJ O 201300 Y(J)=X(J)/YY(J) 201300 2140 CHI NUE 201300 2140 CONTINUE	201330 00 2390 J=1,1 201340 JJ1=MAX+J-1 201340 JJ1=MAX+J-1 201350 DD 2310 JJ=1,E+06 201350 T2±JJ-JJ1 201370 T1=MAX+1-1 201300 T2±JJ-2+1 201400 T2MHY(JJ1=AAMF(T2)=GAMF(T3)/GAMF(T1)	201410 IF (TERM .LT. FF(1,J)) FF(1,J)*TERM 201420 IF (ABS(FF(1,J)) .LE 1.0E-06) FF(1,J)=0. 201440 DD 2380 JJ=1.JJ1 201450 T1=MAX+1-1 201450 T1=MAX+1-1 201450 T2=JJ-J+1 201450 T2=JJ-J+1 201480 T2MM=AAF(T1)/(GAMF(TZ)*GAMF(T3))	201490 Y(JJ)=Y(JJ)-FF(I,J)=TERM 20150 2380 CONTINUE 20150 2390 CONTINUE 20150 2400 CONTINUE 201530 DD 2430 J=1,MAX 201530 DD 2430 J=1,MAX 201550 DD 2430 CONTINUE 201560 DD 2680 J=1,NP 201560 DD 2680 J=1,NP	201370 GF(1)=0. 201580 GP(1)=0. 201580 STH2=SOS(THET(1))==2 201500 STH2=SIN(THET(1))==2 201510 CAF=1./(1.Eft(2))==2 201500 JJ=1/9AL(J) 201530 JJ=1/9AL(J)	201650 CF1-5CF**1 201650 CF1-5CF**1 201650 FF (ABS(THETD(1)-90.) .0T.) 0C TO 2650 201650 0F (1)=6F(1)+FF(J,J) 201690 2638 SUM=0. 201700 DD 2668 JJ=1,J 201710 SUM=SUM=AFF(J,JJ)*CTH2**(J-JJ)*STH2**(JJ-1) 201710 SUM=SUM=AFF(J,JJ)*CTH2**(J-JJ)*STH2**(JJ-1) 201720 2685 CONTINUE 201740 2670 CONTINUE	201750 2680 CONTINUE

11 ł I į This wethough the sequencing of the study (1994, events the threated several state that the sector second several state (1995, events a second several state) is seen that the several second several state (1995, events a several se This section, here 2003 the sign characteristic for the radius of the formation in integrations of a solution of the sign of the relationship (i.e.) a function. This relation which is exclusioned in deference by ł 1 Ì ł Ţ Section S Section R ı α Ś } ł 201770 IF (PFII) LE 9) (PFII)=0E-90 201770 IF (PFII) LE 9) (PFII)=10E-20 201700 SPEPTILSPERTIAL 34295A-MOG(3FII) 201900 SPERTIAL 34295A-MOG(3FII) 201900 EFRORTINE 201900 INTO 201900 EFRORTINE 201900 EFRORTINE 201900 EFRORTINE 201900 EFRORTINE 201900 EFRORTINE 201900 INTO 201900 INTO 201900 INTO 201900 INTO 201900 EFRORTINE 201900 INTO 201900 INTO 201900 INTO 201900 INTO 201900 EFRORTINE 201900 EFRORTIN ļ 11.1

- - - .

NÖH

		Section T Lines 220000 through 252070 contains the subroutine from Reference 16 which determines the coefficients of the singularities which are used to which determines the coefficients of the singularities when on-third predict the relative marinised man square pressures in a given nor-third	octave band. In general, the program as ofter stue projects of finding a non- negative vector X_1 given matrix A and vector P such that the error $11 \text{ A } \overline{X} + b \text{ 11}$ is minimized in the least squares sense.		
SUBROUTINE MMLS (A.MDA.M.N.B.X.RNORN.M.ZZ.INDEX.MODE) C.L LAWSON AND R.J.HANSON, JET PROPULSION LABORATORY, 1973 JUNE 15 TO APPEAR IN 'SOLVING LEAST SQUARES PROBLEMS', PRENTICE-HALL, 1974 ************************************	A = X = B SUBJECT TO X .GE. O A(), MDA, M. M MA IS THE FIRST DIMENSIONING PARAMETER FOR THE ARRAY A() ON ENTRY A() CONTAINS THE M BY N MATRIX, A() ON EXIT A() CONTAINS THE PRODUCT MATRIX, QFA , WHERE Q IS AN M BY M ORTHOGONAL MATRIX GENERATED IMPLICITLY BY THIS SUBROUTINE B() ON ENTRY B() CONTAINS THE M-VECTOR, B. ON EXIT B() CON-	<pre>x() 00 ENTRY X() NEED NOT BE INITIALIZED. ON EXIT X() WILL CONTAIN THE SQUUTION VECTOR. RNORM ON EXIT RNORM CONTAINS THE EUCLIDEAN NORM OF THE RESIDUAL VECTOR. W() AN N-ARRAY OF WORKING SPACE. ON EXIT W() WILL CONTAIN AN N-ARRAY OF WORKING SPACE. ON EXIT W() WILL CONTAIN THE DUAL SQUUTON VECTOR. WILL SATISFY W(1) = 0. FOR ALL I IN SET P AND W(1) LE. 0. FOR ALL I IN SET Z INDEX() AN INTEGER WORKING SRAXO OF LENGTH A LEAST N. TO ENTRY OF WORKING SRAXO OF THIS ARRAY DEFINE. THE SETS INDEX() ON EXIT THE CONTENTS OF THIS ARRAY DEFINE. THE SETS</pre>	P AND Z AS FOLLOWS. INDEX(1) THRU INDEX(INSETP) = SET P INDEX(12) THRU INDEX(122) = SET Z. IZ1 = NSETP + 1 = NPP1 IZ2 = N MODE THIS IS A SUCCESS-FAILURE FLAQ WITH THE FOLLOWING MEANINGS. THE DIMENSIONS OF THE PROBLEM ARE BAD. THE DIMENSIONS OF THE PROBLEM ARE BAD. EITHER M LE. O OR N LE O 3 ITERATION COUNT EXCEED. MORE THAN 3=N ITERATIONS.	SUBROUTINE NNLS (A, MDA, M, N, B, X, RNORM, W, ZZ, INDEX, MODE) DIMENSION A(MDA, N), B(M), X(N), W(N), ZZ(M) INTEGER INDEX(N) ZEROSO ORESI TWOSZ FACTORSO 01 MODESI F (M, GT. 0, AND. N. GT. 0) GO TO 10 MODESI	IO ITER=0
220000C 220010C 220020 220020 220020 220050 220050 220050 220050	220100 222010 2220140 220150 220150 220150 220160 220160	220210 220220 220220 220240 220260 220260 220260 220280 20080 20000 200800 200800 200800 200800 200800 200800000000	220310 = 220310 = 220310 = 220310 = 220310 = 220310 = 220310 = 220310 = 220310 = 220310 = 220310 = 2204100 = 22041000 = 22041000 = 220410000000000000000000000000000000000	220430 * 220450 220450 220450 220490 220490 220500 2205100 2205500 220520 2005200 20052000 20052000 20052000 20052000 20052000 20052000 20052000 20052000 20052000 20052000 2005200000000	220550

Ē

REJECT J AS A CANDIDATE TO BE MOVED FROM SET Z TO SET P. RESIDRE ALNPTIJJJ. SET W(J)=0AND LOOP BACK TO TEST DUAL IF (ZTEST) 130,130,140 COFFTS ADAIN 130 A(MPP1, J).SET W(J)=0AND LOOP BACK TO TEST DUAL 130 A(MPP1, J).SET W(J)=0AND LOOP BACK TO TEST DUAL 130 A(MPP1, J)=ASAVE 00 TO 50 141 INDEX J=INDEX(12) HAS BEEN SELECTED TO BE MOVED FROM 151 Z TO SET P. 152 T O SET P. 151 Z TO SET P. 152 AND 153 A(MPP1, J)=SAVE	140 00 150 # 10-00 150 00 150 # 10-00 150 00 150 11 10 151 121 121 11 10 151 121 121 11 10 151 121 122 00 T0 170 151 121 122 122 00 T0 170 151 121 121 122 00 T0 170 151 121 121 122 00 T0 170 151 121 121 122 122 151 121 121 122 122 151 121 121 121 122 151 121 121 121 121 151 121 121 121 121 121 151 121 121 121 121 121 121 121 121 121	DO 180 DAIL-JJJ=ZERO 190 CONTINUE ALL-JJ=ZERO 190 CONTINUE SCLVE THE TRIANGULAR SYSTEM. 00 W(J)=ZERO SCLVE THE SOLUTION TEMPORARJLY_IN_ZZ(). 00 TO 400 STORE THE SOLUTION TEMPORARJLY_IN_ZZ(). 200 CONTINUE ****** 210 TEREITER+1 ITERATION COUNTER. 10 ITERATION COUNTER. DO 10	PRINT 440 220 CONTINUE SEE IF ALL NEW CONSTRAINED COEFFS ARE FEASIBLE. ALPHA=TWO DO 240 IP=1,NSETP IF NOT COMPUTE ALPHA. PO 240 IP=1,NSETP IF (ZZ(IP) 230,240 IF (ZZ(IP) 230,240 IF (ZZ(IP) 230,240 IF (ALPHA LE.T) 60 T0 240 ALPHAF LE.T) 60 T0 240 ALPHAF LE.T) 60 T0 240	JJ=IP CONTINUE IF ALL NEW CONSTRAINED COEFFS ARE FEASIBLE THEN ALPHA WILL STILL = 2. IF SO EXIT FROM SECONDARY LOOP TO MAIN LOOP IF (ALPHA EQ.TWO) GO TO 330 IF (ALPHA EQ.TWO) GO TO 330 OTHERWISE USE ALPHA WHICH WILL BE BETWEEN 0. AND 1. TO
221150 221150 221150 221150 221150 221150 221150 221200 221200 221200 221200 221200	221260 221260 221280 221310 221310 221330 221340 221360 11 221360 12 221360 12 221360 12 221360 12 221360 12 221360 12 221360 12 221360 12 221360 12 221360 12 221360 12 221360 12 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22	221390 221400 221400 221430 221450 221450 221450 221490 2215000 22150000000000	221550 = 2215500 = 221550 = 221550 = 221550 = 221550 = 221550 = 22155000 = 22155000 = 22155000 = 22155000 = 22155000 = 22155000 = 22155000 = 22155000 = 22155000 = 22155000 = 22155000 = 22155000 = 22155000 = 22155000 = 22155000 = 22155000 = 221550000 = 221550000 = 221550000000000000000000000000000000000	221650 2 221660 2 221600 * 221690 * 221700 *
4 ļ Ì NDEX.[21] NDEX.[21] SEE IF THE REMAINING COLFFS IN SET P ARE FEASIBLE THEY SHOULD BE RECAUSE OF THE WAY ALPHA WAS DETERMINED. BE RECAUSE OF THE WAY ARE INTERASIBLE IT IS DUE TO ROUND-OFF ERROR. ANY THAT APP NON-DOSITIVE WILL DE SET TO ZERG. AND MOVED FROM SET P TO SET Z ADD 0300 JUSTINGETP TO SET Z ISINDEX.[J] ļ COMPUTE THE NORM OF MAIN LOOP ***** COME TO HERE FOR TERMINATION COMPUTE THE NORM OF THE FINAL RES DUAL VECTOR ••• THEN SOLVE AGAIN AND LOOP BACK 20 340 1P=1,NSETP 1=1N0Ex(12) x(1)=22(1P) ALL NEW COEFS ARE POSITIVE LOOP BACK TO BEGINNING TO 33 XXXXXX END OF SECONDARY LOOP XXXXX DO 270 L=1,N 1F (L hE.11) CALL 62 (CC,SS,A(J-1,L),A(J,L)) CONTINUE DG 280 J=JJ.NSETP 11=(NDEA(J) 100EX(J) =11 100EX(J-1)=11 100EX(J-1)=11 A(J)111=ZERO A(J)111=ZERO 2 3 CONTINUE 280 CALL 62 (CC, SS_B(U-1),B(U)) 290 NPP1=NSETP 1:1N0E4.JJ) 260 %11:2580 1F (JJ E0 NSETP) 60 TO 290 JJ=JJ=1 1F (1 1) 260,260,300 CONTINUE .1F (NPF1.6T M) 60 T0 370 D0 360 1=NPP1,M SM=SM+B(1'**2 GO TC 390 370 DO 380 J=1,N 380 W(J)=2ERO 390 RNORM=SORT(SM) NSETP=NSETP-1 1-121=121 350 SM=ZERO 00 340 250 330 SC ? 360 i 1 * . . × - 016.J 222.00 -\$22110 * 222190 * 221730 221730 221750 221750 222120 222130 222150 222150 222220 221710 221810 221820 221820 221730 .850 221850 22030 222170 222180 222250 2222260 2222260 130 221990 22090 222200 221300 221840 268152 006.23 222000 222050 22060 22280 221920 22020 05223 222070 222230 221350 221910 026.22 222240 iar Car ļ

INOH

RETURN THE FOLLOWING BLOCK OF CODE IS USED AS AN INTERNAL SUBROUTINE - TO SOLVE THE TRIANGULAR SYSTEM. PUTTING THE SOLUTION IN ZZ(). 00 DO 430 L=1,NSETP 10 L=0.1) GO 420 10 A10 11=1.1P	10 Z2(1))=Z2(1).4(1,JJ)=Z2(1P+1) 20 JJ=NDEX(P) 30 ZZ(1P)=ZZ(1P/A(1P/JJ) 40 FORMAT (35H0 NNLS QUITTING ON (TERATION COUNT.) 40 FORMAT (35H0 NNLS QUITTING ON (TERATION COUNT.)	SUBROUTINE HIZ (MODE, LPIVOT, L1, M, U, IUE, UP, C, ICE, ICV, NCV) C. L. LANSON AND R.J. HANSON JET PROPULSION LABORATORY, 1973 JUN 12 TO APPEAR IN 'SOLVINO LEAST SQUARES PROBLEMS', PRENTICE-HALL, 1974 CONSTRUCTION AND/OR APPLICATION OF A SINGLE HOUSEHOLDER TRANSFORMATION. 0 = 1 + U=(U==17/B) HOUSEHOLDER TRANSFORMATION. 0 = 1 + U=(U==17/B) HOUSEHOLDER TRANSFORMATION. 0 = 1 + U=(U==17/B) HOUSEHOLDER TRANSFORMATION. 1 + U=(U==17/B) HOUSEHOLDER TRANSFORMATION. 1 + U=(U==17/B) HOUSEHOLDER TRANSFORMATION. 1 + 1 OR H2. LILM IF LL LE. M THE TRANSFORMATION HILL BE CONSTRUCTED TO	<pre>CERT DECEMENTS INDERED FROM LID THROUGH M. TFL 1 G1. M THE SUBROUTINE DOES AN IDENTITY TRANSFORMATION U(), UUP ON ENTRY TO HI U() CONTAINS THE PIVOT VECTOR. U(), UUP UP LIG 1/2 THE SIDRARE IDENTRY ID AND UP CONTAIN QUANTITIES DEFINING THE VECTOR U OF THE HOUSENCLOER TRANSFORMATION ON ENTRY TO HE UC AND UP SHOULD CONTAIN QUANTITIES PREVIOUSLY COMPUTED BY HI THESE WILL NOT BE MODIFIED BY H2 U() ON ENTRY TO HI OR H2 C() CONTAIN QUANTITIES PREVIOUSLY COMPUTED C() ON ENTRY TO HI OR A C() CONTAIN QUANTITIES PREVIOUSLY COMPUTED BY HI THESE WILL NOT BE MODIFIED BY H2 U() ON ENTRY TO HI OR H2 C() CONTAINS ON MATTIN WHICH WILL BE REGY DO A S A SET OF VECTORS TO WHICH THE HOUSEHELDER</pre>	TR' ORMATION IS TO BE APPLIED. ON EXIT C() CONTAINS THE SET OF TRANSFORMEE VECTORS. ICE STORAGE INCREMENT BETWEEN ELEMENTS OF VECTORS IN C(). ICV STORAGE INCREMENT BETWEEN ELEMENTS OF VECTORS IN C(). ICV STORAGE INCREMENT BETWEEN VECTORS IN C(). NCV NUMBER OF VECTORS IN C(). TO BE TRANSFORMED IF NCV LE, O NO DERATIONS WILL BE DONE ON C(). SUBROUTINE H12 (MOE, LI), H, U, IUE, UP, C, ICE, ICV, NCV) DIMENSION ULLVE, M), C(1) DOUBLE PRECISION SM, B.	<pre>if (0 GE_LPIVOT_CR_LPIVOT GE_LU_OR_LL.GT.M) RETURN CL=ABS(U(1,LPIVOT)) IF (MODE_EQ_2) GO_TG_60 IF (MODE_EQ_2) GO_TG_60 0 10 J*L1,M 10 CL=AMATION. ***** 16 (CL) 130,130,20(1,J)),CL)</pre>	20 CLINV=DNE/CL SM=(DBLE(U(I,PIVOT))*CLINV)**2 DO 30 J=L),M 30 SM=SM+(DBLE(U(1,J))*CLINV)**2 30 SM=SM SM1=SM
222280 222290 = 222310 = 222330 = 222330 =	222350 222350 222360 222380 222380 222390 222390 222390	230020 # 230020 # 230050 # 230060 # 230060 # 230080 # 230080 #	230100 * 230110 * 230140 * 230150 * 230150 * 230150 * 230190 * 230190 *	230210 * 230220 * 230220 * 230250 * 230250 * 230250 * 230260 * 230280	230310 230320 230320 230340 = 230350 = 230350 =	230380 230390 230400 230410 230410 230430 #

é SUBROUTINE 01 (A, B, C0S, SIN, SIG) C L LAWSON AND R. J. HANSON, JET PROPULSION LABGRATORY, 1973 JUN 12 TO APPEAR IN "SOLVING LEAST SOUARES PROBLEMS", PRENTICE HALL, 1974 COMPUTE GRIHOGONAL ROTATION MATRIX. COMPUTE. MATRIX (C, S) SO THAT (C, S)(A) = (SORT(A**2+B**2)) (-S,C)(B) (0) **** IF B = 0 , RETURN 001 COMPUTE SIG = SORT(A**2*8**2) SIG IS COMPUTED LAST TO ALLOW FOR THE POSSIBILITY THAT SIG MAY BE IN THE SAME LOCATION AS A OR B ***** APPLY THE TRANSFORMATION 1+U*(U+*1)/B 60 F (CL) 130,130,70 70 F (CL) 140,170 8=DBLE(UP)+U(1,LPIVOT) 8=DBLE(UP)+U(1,LPIVOT) IF (b) 90,130,130 B MUST RE NONPOSITIVE HERE IF (SM) IUC, SM=SM*B C(12)=C(12)+SM*DBLE(UP) C(12)=C(12)+SM*DBLE(UC1,1) C(14)=C(14)+SM*DBLE(UC1,1) C(14)=C(14)+SM*DBLE(UC1,1) Definition of the second ONE=1. 1F (ABS(A) LE ABS(B)) GO TO 10 XR=B/A CL=CL*SGRT(SM1) IF (U(1,LP1VOT)) 50,50,40 CL=CL 50 UP=U(1,LP1VOT)-CL 50 UP=U(1,LP1VOT)=CL GO TO 70 ļ) XR=A/B YR=SORT(ONE+XR**2) SIN=SIGN(ONE/YR,B) COS=SIN=XR 10 1F (B) 20,30,20 20 XR=A/B CONTINUE CONTINUE CONTINUE END 110 230500 × 230510 230520 230520 230530 230550 230550 230550 230550 230550 230550 230500 230520 230520 230520 230530 240020 240030 * 240040 * 240050 * 230750 240000C 240010C 240060 240070 240080 230440 230450 230450 230460 230460 230480 230480 230650 230660 230680 230680 230680 230700 230710 230720 230730 230730 233640

×.

						2	ines 20020 through 200510 is a subrouting used to evaluate the ad Bessel functions, $I_0(X)$ and $I_1(X)_J$, of the first kind and argument χ .		
0 SIG=ABS(B)*YR 0 RETURN 0 30 SIG=ZER0 0 31 SIG=ZER0	0 SUN-CERO 0 SUN-ONE 0 RETURN 0 END	0C 0C SUBROUTINE 02 (COS,SIN,X,Y) 0 SUBROUTINE 02 (COS,SIN,X,Y) 0 S.L.LANSON AND R.J.HANSON, JET PROPULSION LABORATORY, J972, DEC J5 0 TO APPEAR IN 'SOLVING LEAST SQUARES PROBLEMS', PRENTICE-HALL, 1974 0 TO APPEAR THE ROTATION COMPUTED BY 01 TO (X,Y). 0 YE=SINAXACOSAY	D X=XR O RETURN C END	0C FUNCTION DIFF(X,Y) 0 FUNCTION DIFF(X,Y) 0 C.L.LAWSON AND R.J.HANSON, JET PROPULSION LABORATORY, 1973 JUNE 7 0 C.L.LAWSON AND R.J.HANSON, JET PROPULSION LABORATORY, 1973 JUNE 7 0 TO APPEAR IN 'SOLVING LEAST SQUARES PROBLEMS', PRENTICE-HALL, 1974 0 DIFF=X-Y 0 RETURN 0 END	00 0 T=X/3.75 0 SUBROUTINE BESLI (X,BI0,BI1) 0 T=X/3.75 0 T==T=X=2 0 A2=3.5156229 0 A2=3.5156229 0 A2=3.5089424 0 A6=1.2067492	0 A6=.2659732 0 A10=.0360768 0 A10=.0360768 0 A12=.0045813 0 A12=.0045813 0 A12=.014581 0 A1=.514908594 0 A1=.514908594	0 86=.15004934 0 86=.02658733 0 810=.00301532 0 812=.00301532 0 881=((((01812+12+88)±12+86)≭12+86)×12+84)±12+82)±12+.5	0 BI1=BB1*X 0 00 TT 830 0 200 TN=1./T 0 02= 3999428 0 C1=.01328592 0 C1=.00228319	0 c5=.02015/365 0 c5=.020315281 0 c5=.02635537 0 c6=.02635537
24025 24025 24026	24029 24029 24030(25102 25102 25103 2510 2510 2510 2510 2510 2510 2510 2510	25108 25108 25109 25109	252000 250000 250000 2500000 2500000000	260021 260021 260021 260021 260021 260021 260021 260021 260021 260021 260021	26012 26010 26010 26012 20012 200000000	26016 260171 260181 260191	26021 260221 260231 260231 26024(26026(260291

			V Section V Lines 27000 through 200500 contain two subroutines used to evaluate the Bessel functions of the first and vs.comd bank a, a(X), and y(X) and y(X) - of attrement X. The results of these 0 and V are used to aid if the calculation of the refraction corrections described in item ii.	
260310 C7=- 01647633 260320 C8= 0039237 260320 C8= 0039237 260330 C81=1(1(1(58+TN+C5)*TN+C5)*TN+C3)=TN+C2)*TN+C1 260360 B10=EB1/36T(X) 260360 B10=ED10=EP(X) 260370 D0=- 03989024 260370 D0=- 03989024 260370 D0=- 0103155 260370 D2=- 0103155 260420 D3=- 0103155 260420 D3=- 0103155 260420 D4=- 0289367	266450 D1= 0123754 266450 D1= (((108*TN+D7)*TN+D6)*TN+D4)*TN+D3)*TN+D2)*TN+D1)* 266460 D1=(((108*TN+D7)*TN+D6)*TN+D5)*TN+D3)*TN+D2)*TN+D1)* 266450 B1=(((108*TN+D7)*TN+D6)*TN+D5)*TN+D3)*TN+D2)*TN+D1)* 266490 B1=B1/5KP(X) 266490 B1=B1/5KP(X) 266500 B30 RETURN 260500 B30 RETURN 2700005 2700102	270020 SUBROUTINE BESLJY (X, BJO, BJI, BYO, BYI) 270030 FI = 3. 1415926 270050 K32=1X/3.1x*2 270050 A3=-2.2499997 270050 A4=1 2556208 270050 A6=-3156208 270090 A6=-3156208 270100 A102 - 0039444 270100 A12=-0021 270100 A12=-0021 270120 BJO=((((A12*X32+A10)*X32+A6)*X32+A6)*X32+A2)*X32+1 270140 YO=3.54560	270150 Y2= 60559366 270150 Y2= 60559366 270160 Y4=- 74350384 270180 Y10= 00427916 270180 Y10= 00427916 270180 Y10= 00427916 270220 H0= 5 270220 H0= 5 270220 H0= 5 270220 H0= 5 270220 H6=- 039542955 270220 H6=- 039542955	<pre>c 270260 He = 00443319 270270 H10= - 00031761 270280 H12= 1108E -04 270300 D1=H1Xtx 270300 D=H1Xtx 270300 D=C 2.F1)*txAL09(X/2.)*BJ1 270300 D=C 6366198 270300 D=C 6366198 270300 D=C 221209 270300 D=C 221209 270300 D=C 1.3164827 270350 D6=1.3164827 270350 D6=1.3164827</pre>

60 D8=.3123951 70 D10=0400976 80 D12=.0027873 80 P12=.0027873 80 P12=.1(1(1012=*32+D10)=×32+P8)=×32+D4)=×32+D2)=×32+D0+D 00 BY1=Y1X/X 10 60 T0 760 20 353 X3=3./X 30 C0=.7816456	40 C1=775.000 40 C1=775.00 50 C2=0005274 50 C4=.00032312 50 C5=00072805 80 C5=.00014476 10 F0=(1(1(L6±X3+C5)±X3+C3)±X3+C2)±X3+C1)±X3+C0 10 T0=78539815 10 T0=78539815 10 T0=3854E-04	40 13- 00262573 40 13- 00054125 60 14- 00054125 60 14- 00013558 70 16- 00013558 70 16- 00013558 70 16- 00013558 70 16- 1. /SGRT(X))*F0xC0S(THETAO) 70 BYC=(1. /SGRT(X))*F0xSIN(THETAO) 70 8YC=(1. /SGRT(X))*F0xSIN(THETAO) 70 61- 156E-055 70 61- 156E-055 70 61- 1365-05 70 70 7105 70 7	70 E6=0002033 80 Fi=(T((E6:X3+E5)*X3+E4)*X3+E3)*X3+E2)*X3+E1)*X3+E0 90 061=(T((E6:X3+E3)*X3+E4)*X3+E3)*X3+E2)*X3+E1)*X3+E0 90 01=12499612 90 04=.00074349 90 04=.00079154 90 05=000799166 60 THETA1=(T(((06*X3+05)*X3+04)*X3+63)*X3+62)*X3+61)*X3+60+X 70 BJ1=(T_/SGRT(X))*F1*SLON(THETA1) 90 DJ1=(T_/SGRT(X))*F1*SLON(THETA1) 90 DJ1=(T_/SGRT(X))*F1*SLON(THETA1)	90 760 RETURN 00 END 201 END 201 END 10C 10C 10C 10C 10C 10C 10C 10C 10C 10C	70 A4=1.2556208 80 A6=3163866 80 A8=3163866 80 A13=044479 00 A12=.00021 10 A12=.00021

0 BJ0=(((((A)2*X32+A10)*X32+AB)*X32+A6)*X32+A2)*X32+A2)*X32+1 10 H2=. 56249985 10 H3= 21093573 10 H3= 21093573 10 H3= 0043319 10 H12= 1096-04 10 H12= 1096-04 10 H12= (((H12*X32+H10)*X32+HB)*X32+H6)*X32+H1)*X32+H0 10 H12= (((H12*X32+H10)*X32+HB)*X32+H6)*X32+H2)*X32+H0 10 BJ1+H1X*X 10 BJ1+H1X*X 10 BJ1+H1X*X 10 DJ72 750 10 DJ72 750	0 355 X323.X 10 C0: 775 06 50 C1=-77E-06 50 C1=-77E-06 50 C3=-000055214 50 C3=-000072805 50 C3=-00014076 50 C5=-00014076 50 C5=-00014076 50 C5=-00014076 50 T1=-0416639 50 T1=-0416	00 T3=:00262573 00 T4=:00054125 00 T5=:00029353 00 TFETAO=((((T6+X3+T5)*X3+T4)*X3+T2)*X3+T2)*X3+T1)*X3+T0+X 00 BJ0=():/S0RT(X))*F0=CDS(THETAO) 00 BJ0=():/S0RT(X))*F0=CDS(THETAO) 00 E2:.01659657 10 E2:.01659657 10 E2:.0017105 10 E2:.0017105 10 E2:.0017105 10 E2:.0017053 10 E2:.0017053 10 E2:.0017055 10	00 01= 12499612 00 02=.565E-04 20 03=.00074348 30 04=.00074348 40 055.00079924 40 055.00079924 50 06=.00029166 50 THETA1=((((06*X3+65)*X3+64):X3+62)*X3+61)*X3+60+X 50 THETA1=((((06*X3+65)*X3+64):X3+62)*X3+61)*X3+60+X 70 BJ1=(1./SGRT(X1)*F1*COS(THETA1) 50 760 RETURN 50 F00 RETURN	

i

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

II, IA, IR	-	Indices used to denote a specific angle in a given array.
ANGOT	-	Angle array for the flight transformed data.
NCBDI	-	Input file code number.
INPUT	-	Namelist name for the input parameters.
END	-	Used to signal that all namelist input parameters have been read.
ERR	-	Used to signal an error was encountered while reading the input data.
TESTD	-	Input parameter.
NANGOT	-	The number of angles in the ANGOT array.
NANG	-	Input parameter.
ANGLE	-	Input parameter.
DIST	-	TESTD divided by 1000 and is used for calculating the atmospheric absorption correction.
IABS	-	Air attenuation indicator which either chooses the SAE model or the Shields and Bass Model.
IALPHA	-	Input parameter.
ISB	-	Constant used to identify the Shields and Bass air attenu- ation model.
NBCDO	-	Output file code number.
SPIDIN	-	Input parameter.
SPIN	-	Input parameter.
J,JJ,JJ1,	-	Are indices used to denote a specific frequency in a given array.
NFREQ	-	Input parameter.
IFREQ	-	Integer list of one-third octave band center frequencies.
TSPL	-	Input parameter.

SCFREQ	-	Scale model frequency to the nearest one-third octave band.
FREQ	-	Array of one-third octave band center frequencies.
SCFACT	-	Input parameter.
CNFREQ	-	Frequency variable used to calculate the frequency shift corresponding to a scale factor which would result in a integer number of third octave band shifts.
DEL1, DEL2	-	Are used to determine which one-third octave band center frequency is closer.
SCALE	-	New scale factor which would allow an integer number of third octave band shifts.
EM	-	Free jet Mach number.
FLTVEL	-	Input parameter.
SPDSND	-	Speed of sound, 1116 ft/sec, assuming a 59° Standard Day.
CONST	-	Intermediate variable name.
PI	-	3.141659
DIALT	-	Input parameter.
FPAR	-	Frequency parameter array.
IKNT	-	Index used to adjust the input data arrays to allow insertion of a missing angle.
SPLDS	-	Output data array of the FLIGHT transformation program. This is the answer.
THETD	-	Angle array used for calculations in the transformation process. These angles are measured from the exhaust.
NP	-	Number of angles in the THETD array.
NA	-	An index which identifies the 90° angle in the ANGOT array.
LIE	-	Index to identify either the forward quadrant, LIE = 2, or the aft quadrant LIE = 1.
FP	-	The frequency parameter $\pi f/SPDSND$ DIAMJT.
ADDER	_	Air attenuation in decibels applied to a given frequency.

ABSORP	-	Air attenuation array. This array defines the amount of air attenuation which should be applied to a given one-third octave band.
SPL1	-	Input SPL array to the flight transformation after being corrected for air attenuation.
FEIHE	-	Name of the main subroutine for the flight transformation. The subroutine corrects the input data for refraction turbulence absorption and dynamic effect.
К	-	An index which defines a specific angle in the SPLF array.
SPLFLT	-	Is the flight transformed array before doppler shift.
IDOPS	-	Input parameter.
DOPFAC	-	Doppler factor used to determine the number of frequency bands the SPLFLT array has to be shifted.
COS	-	Library subroutine to calculate the cosine of an angle.
RPD	-	Constant used to convert angles from degrees to radians.
DOPCON	-	An array to which the doppler factor, DOPFAC, is compared to determine the number of frequency shifts.
IFLAG	-	The number of frequency bands that specific parts of the SPLFLT array are shifted by.
IDSHFT	-	The table used to determine IFLAG.
FLOAT	-	Instrinic function to change from integer to real numbers.
SPIDOT	-	Input parameter.
SPOT	_	Input parameter.
IREFRC	-	Input parameter.
ITURBC	-	Input parameter.
NSET, MCASE	-	Are indices which define the level of singularity.
TOPI2	-	Constant, TOPI2 $(2/\pi)^2$.
THETO	-	The critical angle θ_{c} .
THETOD	-	The critical angle in degrees.

ТН	-	Is a specific angle of the input angle array in radians.
XP	-	FP sin θ
ХР	-	FP ($ \cos^2\theta - (1-M\cos^2\theta)^2 $) ^{1/2}
SCHUB	-	Refraction correction in dB in the aft quadrant if FP>3 (before the shape factor is applied).
SCHUB1	-	Is the maximum refraction correction for FP>3 before the shape factor is applied. Note: that if SCHUB is greater than SCHUB1 then SCHUB1 is used.
BESLJ, BESLYJ, BELI,	-	Subroutines for the evaluation of Bessel functions.
RBOTO	-	Real part of the denominator term in the solution of the sound pressure for the plug flow model.
ΑΙΒΟΤΟ	-	Imaginary part of the denominator term in the solution of the sound pressure for the plug flow model.
CORR(I)	-	Is used to denote either the refraction correction or the refraction correction plus the turbulence absorption cor- rection in decibels.
TAC 90	-	Turbulence absorption correction at 90°.
TAC	-	Turbulence absorption correction at the other acoustic angles.
SPL(I)	-	Input sound pressure levels corrected for refraction and turbulence absorption.
SPMIN	-	The minimum sound pressure level at a given frequency and in a given quadrant.
G(I)	-	The linearized delta mean square pressure levels.
F(J,I)	-	The array established as a function of singularity type.
XX	-	Intermediate variable used in the calculation of the mean square pressure.
APB, IEX, C, AA, BB, TA, TB, TERM	-	Intermediate variables used in the calculation of the normalization constants.
YY(I)	-	Normalization constants N_S

B(I)	-	Input array for the NNLS subroutine.
A(1,J)	-	Input array for the NNLS subroutine.
X(J)	-	The output from the NNSL routine.
NNLS	-	Subroutine for calculating coefficients of the singu- larities, refer to reference 16 for details.
Y(J)	-	The coefficients of the singularities from the NNLS routine divided by the appropriate normalization con- stants
T1, T2, T3	-	Are intermediate variables used in the recombination procedure.
(LL) Y	-	Are the coefficients of the singularities after the recombination procedure.
CAF	-	The square of the doppler factor, (1/(1+M Cos $ heta_{ m E})^2$
GP(I)	-	Predicted relative mean square pressure levels.
CAFJ,SUM	-	Intermediate variables used for correcting the measured relative mean square pressures for dynamic effects
GF(I)	-	Relative mean square pressure levels corrected for dynamic effects.
SPLP	-	Predicted sound pressure levels.
SPLF, SPLF'IM	-	Are the input sound pressure levels corrected for re- fraction turbulence absorption and dynamic effects.
ERROR(I)	-	Difference between the predicted and measured sound pressure level at a specific angle and frequency.
AVERR	-	Average error for a specific one-third octave band directivity pattern.
GAMF(x)	-	Gamma Function.

ï

المسادية المحاربة والمتقال القلعان

ř

175

LIST OF SYMBOLS

- . .

-

فسيستعد المرادية للمراد

واستحددائه حتوافت فيادمون معتمانا والتلا

فالمكانية المنافرة والمتقافية فالمتاريخ فالكلاف بالمكانية والاتكار وفراتك معرتيها والمعادية فالمتع

Symbol	
A	- Nozzle Exhaust Area, ft ² .
AR	- Suppressor Area Ratio, Determined by the Total Nozzle Area, Excluding any Plug, to the flow area of the nozzle.
^C fg, ^C f	- Thrust Coefficient.
D, d	- Diameter, Ft.
EPNL	- Effective Perceived Noise Level, EPNdB.
Fs	- Ideal Gross Thrust, lbs _f ,
М	- Jet Mach Number or Freestream (External) Mach Number.
OASPL	- Overall Sound Pressure Level dB.
Р	- Pressure, lbs _f /in ² ,
PNL	- Perceived Noise Level, PNdB.
Rr	- Radius Ratio Determined by the Ratio of the Inner Radius to the Oute: Radius for the Particular Flow Passage.
r/r ₀	- Normalized Radial Position When Referring to Tertiary Plume Surveys.
SPL	- One-Third Octave Sound Pressure Level, dB.
Т	- Temperature, °R.
U _{max}	- Velocity at Tertiary Nozzle Exit Plane, ft/sec.
Ū	- Mean Velocity When Referring to Tertiary Flow Plume ft/sec
U'	- Turbulent Velocity when referring to Tertiary Flow Plume, ft/sec.
v	- Jet Velocity, ft/sec.
W	- Weight Flow Rate, lbs _m /sec.
x	- Axial Distance, ft.

LIST OF SYMBOLS (Concluded)

Symbol

β	- Shock Cell Noise Parameter - √M ² 1.
θi	- Acoustic Angle Relative to Inlet Axis, degrees.
ω	- Jet Density Exponent.

Subscript

1	- Tertiary Exit Flow Plane.
2	- Tortiary Flow Plane at Nozzle Exit Plane.
FS	- Tertiary Flow (Freestream) Conditions or Full Scale Conditions.
i	- Inner Stream or Bypass Flow (Usually Cold).
m,ma,mix	- Mass Averaged Conditions.
ο	- Outer Stream, Tertiary or Ambient Conditions.
\$	- Static Conditions.
Т	- Total or Tertiary Flow Conditions.

Superscript

o - Outer Stream

i - Inner or Bypass Stream (Usually Cold).



REFERENCES

- Stringas, E.J. and Kazin, S.B., "Supersonic Transport Noise Reduction Technology Program - Phase II," General Electric Company, FAA-SS-73-29-1, September 1975.
- Atvars, J., et al., "SST Technology Follow-On Program Phase II," Boeing Company, FAA-SS-73-11, March 1975.
- Clapper, W.S., et al., "High Velocity Jet Noise Source Location and Reduction: Task 3 - Experimental Investigation of Suppression Principles; Volume III - Suppressor Concepts Optimization," General Electric Company, FAA-RD-76-79, III - III, to be Published.
- 4. ANON, "Evaluation of Jet Noise Suppression Potential," ICAO Committee on Airport Noise (CAN), French Working Paper Prepared for Working Group E, April 1977.
- 5. Brausch, J.F., "Flight Velocity Influence on Jet Noise of Conical Ejector, Annular Plug and Segmented Suppressor Nozzles," NASA CR-120961, August 1972.
- Clapper, W.S., et al., "High Velocity Jet Noise Source Location and Reduction: Task 4 - Development/Evaluation of Techniques for In-flight Investigation," General Electric Company, FAA-RD-76-79, IV, February 22, 1977.
- Williams, J., "Aeroacoustic Requirements for Model Noise Experiments in Subsonic Wind Tunnels," Appendix 4, AGARD Advisory Report No. 105, August 1977.
- 8. Plumblee, Harry E., et al., "Effects of Forward Velocity on Turbulent Jet Mixing Noise," Lockheed-Georgia Company, NASA CR-2702, July 1976.
- 9. Knott, P.R., "Free Jet Acoustic Investigation of High-Radius-Ratio Coannular Plug Nozzles," NASA Contract NAS3-20619, to be Published.
- Clapper, W.S., et al., "High Velocity Jet Noise Source Location and Reduction: Task 3 - Experimental Investigation of Suppression Principles; Volume II - Parametric Testing and Source Measurements," General Electric Company, FAA-RD-76-79, III - II, to be Published.
- 11. Task 1 Supplement Certification of the General Electric Jet Noise Anechoic Test Facility, Report No. FAA-RD-76-79, February 1977.
- 12. Knott, P.R. and Mossey, P., "Parametric Laser Velocimeter Studies of High-Velocity, High-Temperature, Turbulent Jets," "Chapter III of Vol. II AFAPL-TR-76-68 Supersonic Jet Exhaust Noise Investigation," Knott, P.R., Editor (July 1976).

- ANON, "Standard Values of Atmospheric Absorption as a Function of Temperature and Humidity," Society of Automotive Engineers, ARP-866A, March 1975.
- 14. Knott, P.R., Blozy, J.T. and Staid, P.S.; "Acoustic and Performance Investigation of Coannular Plug Nozzles," NASA-Lewis Research Center/ General Electric Company; NASA Contract NAS3-19777, to be Published.
- 15. Dwight, "Tables of Integrals and Other Mathematical Data" Fourth Edition, MacMillan, 1963.
- Hanson, R.J. and Lawson, C.L., "Solving Least Squares Problems," Prentice-Hall, 1974.
- Stringas, E.J., "High Velocity Jet Noise Source Location and Reduction: Task 6 - Noise Abatement Nozzle Design Guide," General Electric Company, FAA-RD-76-79, VI, to be Published.
- ANON, "Design Integration and Noise Study for a Large STOL Augmentor Wing Transport - Task I," Prepared Under Contract NAS2-6344, The Boeing Company, Report No. D6-60139.
- Shields, F.D. and Bass, H.E., "Atmospheric Absorption of High Frequency Noise and Application to Fractional - Octave Bands," University of Mississippi, NASA CR-2760, June 1977.
- 20. Hay, J.A., "Lateral Noise Propagation," British Aircraft Corporation Limited," Acoustics Report 526, April 21, 1977.